STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
11/16/2021 10:00 AM

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

This meeting will be held in person and the public is welcome to attend.

Storey County Board of County Commissioners are hosting a teleconference meeting this month.
Members of the public who wish to attend the meeting remotely, may do so by accessing the following
meeting on Zoom.com. Public comment may be made by communication through zoom.

*Join Zoom Meeting;: https://zoom.us/j/597519448 Meeting ID: 597 519 448

Dial by your location
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US
+1 301 715 8592 US
+1 312626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
Meeting 1D: 597 519 448
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/adi9WjdtNr

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969.

JAY CARMONA ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY

CLAY MITCHELL
VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.




All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member
of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed,
and acted upon separately during this meeting. Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the
agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for
consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the
time allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

M

10.

CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration and possible approval of the Agenda for November 16, 2021.
DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes for October 5, 2021.
CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
I Consideration and possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. GPS Property Maintenance & Construction LLC - Contractor / 2295 S. Virginia St.
# 16 ~ Reno, NV
B. Prestige Construction, LLC - Contractor / 1220 E. Greg St. Ste. 5 ~ Sparks, NV
C. Silver State Construction LLC - Contractor / 35 N. Edison Way Unit 35 ~ Reno,
E.VSilver State Plumbing LLC - Contractor / 4535 Copper Sage St. ~ Las Vegas, NV
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/ FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Proclamation for Flood
Awareness Week, November 14-20, 2021.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):




Presentation and discussion by Kristin VanderMolen, Assistant Research Professor,
Desert Research Institute on Development, Implementation, and Evaluation of
Stakeholder-Driven Wildfire Smoke Monitoring and Messaging in Rural Nevada.

11.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Appoint broker of record in accordance with the results from the 2021 Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) to provide insurance brokerage, consulting, and risk
management services for property, casualty, automobile, cyber, and workers’
compensation insurance for Storey County for a period of up to five years.

12.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
modifying the Solid Waste Collection Franchise Agreement between Storey County
and Waste Management of Nevada, Inc. to establish and reduce Sunday trash
collection rates for commercial customers in Virginia City and Gold Hill, Storey
County, Nevada from December 1, 2021, through the remainder of the franchise
agreement.

13.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Indigent Defense Service Plan
designed to meet the requirements of the State of Nevada in accordance with NRS
260.070 and to comply with the Nevada Supreme Court’s orders in ADKT 411.

14.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion, public workshop, and possible direction to staff on formulating for future
board action the FY2022 - 2028 Storey County Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
including facilities and infrastructure, plans and studies, and equipment and vehicles.
A final CIP draft will be considered for approval by the board at a later meeting.

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

16.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion, public workshop, and possible direction to staff on formulating for future
board action the FY2022 - 2028 Storey County Fire District Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) including facilities and infrastructure, plans and studies, and equipment and
vehicles. A final CIP draft will be considered for approval by the fire board at a later
meeting,.

17.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:




18.

19,

20.

21.

22.

23.

Consideration and possible action to approve disposal by means of auction, donation,
or sale, surplus District Self Contained Breathing Apparatus, and associated fire
equipment.

RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DICSUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of the granting of easements to NV Energy for
Canyon Way, Wild Horse Drive, Megabyte Drive and Waltham Way for underground
gas pipeline facilities that will extend from Tracy to South Reno.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of amendment to the Development Agreement
between Tahoe Reno Industrial Center LLC, (TRIC ) DP Operating Partnership, LP
and Storey County (Development Agreement) regarding the spacing of marijuana
establishments within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center as set forth in that
amendment to the Development Agreement approved on August 17, 2021 which
would reduce the required distance from an existing marijuana establishment from 1
mile to 500 feet.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding SCR
11 (formerly BDR 1109 and 1148) interim legislative committee to study Innovation
Zone draft legislation, and other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of update to Storey County Administrative
Policies and Procedures, Policy 613 - Leave for Coronavirus (COVID-19) Related
Reasons.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval Business License Second Readings:

A. Commerce Construction CO LLP - Contractor / 4050 W. Sunset Rd. ~ Las Vegas,
NV

B. CraneTech, Inc. - Contractor / 42 E. Freeport Blvd. Unit B ~ Sparks, NV

C. LiNiCo Corporation - General / 2500 Peru Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

D. Lund Mechanical LLC - Contractor / 345 Ash Springs Ct. ~ Sparks, NV

E. Zen Stained Glass - Home Business / 198 S. H. St. ~ Virginia City, NV

F. Potluck Nevada, LLC - Food Truck / 545 Crampton St ~ Reno, NV

G. QCS, LLC - Contractor / 504 N. Phillippi St. ~ Boise, ID




24, PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
25.  ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
NOTICE:

¢ Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

e Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

¢ Inaccordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil

rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.




USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notity the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 11/09/2021; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St,
Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the
Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and
Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV. This agenda was also
posted to the Nevada State website at https:/ /notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey County website at
https:/ /www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter.

r

By

Vanessa Stephe

erkflreasurer




| Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

| Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - ' Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins
BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible approval of the Agenda for November 16, 2021.

*+  Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

» Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0969

¢  Staff Summary: None

* Supporting Materials: See attached

« Fiscal Impact: None

» Legal review required: False

*  Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

«  Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 5 mins
BOCC Meeting |
| Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes for October 5, 2021.

+  Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

+ Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0969

»  Staff Summary: None

* Supporting Materials: See attached

* Fiscal Impact: None

= Legal review required: False

*  Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

*  Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
OCTOBER 5, 2021 10:00 A.M.

MEETING MINUTES
JAY CARMONA ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY

CLAY MITCHELL
VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Carmona, Vice-Chairman Mitchell, Commissioner Gilman, County Manager
Austin Osborne, Clerk/ Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, , Comptroller Jennifer McCain, Senior Planner
Kathy Canfield, Emergency Management and Community Relations Director Lara Mather, District
Attorney Anne Langer, Community Development Director Pete Renaud, Public Works Director Jason
Wierzbicki, Project Manager Mike Northan, Employee Relations Jeanne Greene, Recorder Marney
Hansen-Martinez, Human Resources Director Tobi Whitten, IT Director James Deane, Community
Chest Director Erik Schoen, Sheriff Antinoro, Communications Manager Becky Parsons, Battalion
Chief Shane Dixon, St. Mary’s Art Center Executive Director A Perry, Senior Center Director Stacy
York

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman Carmona at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Commissioner Carmona led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 5, 2021.
County Manager Osborne requested Items 18 and 19 be moved to October 19, 2021.

Public Comment: None

Motion: [, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today's Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes for
August 17, 2021.




Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the Minutes for August 17, 2021, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA
I For consideration and possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $907,594.23.

II For consideration and possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. First Class Vending Inc - Out of County / 3990 W. Naples Dr.,Las Vegas, NV
B. PEC Solutions LLC - Contractor / 5960 Main St NE ~ Minneapolis, MN
C. Precision Concrete - Contractor / 1640 W. Brooks Ave., N. Las Vegas, NV
D. R.C. Pacific Construction Inc. - Contractor / 7070 Galilee Rd., Roseville, CA
E. Scratch Baking Queen - Home Business / 194 Ave De La Demerald, Sparks, NV
F. Silver Strike Concrete Inc.-Out of County /3401 Fitzgerald Rd., Rancho Cordova, CA

Il For consideration and possible action, 1st reading for approval of a General Business License and
Cannabis License for Pure Tonic Concentrates; 420 USA Pkwy, Sparks NV 89434; Applicant is Jacob
Ward.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve today's Consent Agenda as presented, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action) None

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Sheriff Antinoro:
» Federal Magistrate, William Cobb, donated a photograph of his grandfather, who had been
Sheriff in the 40's, as well as his father's actual badge. Both items are on display in the
Sheriff's Office. He also donated a painting of the courthouse. These items are significant
part of history.

Jason Wierzbicki, Public Works Director:
e They are closed to finishing in Mark Twain - wrapping up cleanup and drainage, getting
ready for winter.

Mike Northan, Project Coordinator:

e Column repair at the V&T Depot is complete - back to what it was prior to the 6.0
earthquake.

» Public Works has been talked to about cleaning up the site.

o The plans for the Station 72 apparatus building have been received. A couple of small
changes need to be made and then it should be out to bid in a couple of weeks.

e [T addition and punch-list are complete. The IT Department has moved in and is
operational.

(§]




» Will work with the tenants of that building on a site improvement plan addressing traffic,
deliveries, and parking issues.

e A new facility for the Lockwood Community Center is being considered. A working group
has been put together - Public Works, Project Management, Comptroller's Office,
Community Relations, and Senior Services. Direct involvement of community members
will be included. The Lockwood community has been looked to determine issues/needs to
be addressed - including flooding, fires, seismic events, and with the major highway -
possible "hazmat" events. Possible uses include: evacuation gathering point, emergency
operations center - which would open potential funding. Senior Centers in other areas
were visited to see what works and what doesn't.

Lara Mather, Acting Emergency Management Director:

» Covid update: 12 new cases for the week ending September 29th with 4 recoveries, 49 active
cases. The previous week there were 11 positives. This keeps (the County) under the mask
mandate. The use of home test kits is becoming more popular. It is unknown how that will
affect the reporting and brings up a question of accuracy.

» Thursday, October 7", CCH&HS will be doing testing and vaccinations at the Virginia City
Senior Center.

e Boosters are available only to people who received Pfizer vaccine. Boosters cannot be mixed.
The booster is given 6 months after the initial series. Ms. Mather reviewed the requirements to
receive a booster.

e Third doses are for those moderately to severely immune-compromised.

* Questions - contact CarsonCitygethealthy.org or Carson City Health & Human Services.

» Itis felt the vaccination rate for Storey County is lower than actual. An on-line survey is
available on the County website - no personal information is asked - to determine how many
people in the County have been vaccinated. Or call Emergency Management at 847-0986. This
will provide the County, and other agencies, with percentages.

» Community Project Grants: Not one call has been received. Ms. Mather is happy to deliver
applications and answer any questions - as well as help with completion of applications.

» Attended the State of Nevada Dept. of Emergency Management "THIRA" conference. This is a
risk assessment done every three years to determine risks or gaps in emergency management -
with different scenarios and responses. It also helps FEMA understand what communities
need in the way of funding.

On behalf of Honey Tapley:
e A State Historic Preservation Fund Grant to restore the walkway in front of the Courthouse
has been drafted. The County was awarded $32,000.
e The County will work closely with SHPO to determine the best way to restore the blocks that
make up the walkway.

Vice Chairman Mitchell asked about the numbers of reported Covid cases in the County and whether
or not it's possible that recoveries are not being reported timely or not at all. Will the survey provide
data from not just those vaccinated but from across the community?

Ms. Mather: Part of the problem is backlog with the State and CCHHS. CCHHS will contact the
people that are positive. If unable to reach that person at the end of the quarantine period (14 days) -
that person cannot be taken off the positive list until after 30 days. This is happening a lot. People

3




are encouraged to answer when called so they can be taken off the positive list. If we can get
everyone to answer yes or no to the survey, it would be great.

Mike Nevin, Water & Sewer Projects Manager:
Hillside Tanks Project:

* Substantial completion inspection from USDA was conducted September 22", Qutstanding
items to be finished have been addressed. One, completion of fencing around the site. Also
repairs were made to the outflow ditch - which would carry water if the tanks have to be
drained.

« All final USDA paperwork should be done by the end of the month. Waiting for the
engineering company to provide "as built" drawings and operation/ maintenance manuals.

Gold Hill Sewer Project:

e USDA and SRF conducted inspection of this project also on September 22", A couple of
issues need to be addressed.

e Fabrication of the louvers was delayed but are scheduled for delivery by October 18h.
Painters will be on back on October 11'" to finish painting required for completion.

¢ The plant is up and operational with training and start-up last week - with very few issues that
were easily resolved.

e Substantial completion should be by the end of October, with final USDA payments due by
the end of November.

Jennifer McCain, Comptroller:
» The audit is still moving forward and on tract to finish within Taxation guidelines. This
should be available at the first meeting in December.

James Deane, I'T Director:
e ITis 100% moved into the new building,.

Pete Renaud, Community Development Director:
¢ Chris Hammond, Code Enforcement/Nuisance Officer has been here one year. He has abated
36 nuisances, unfortunately there are 31 new ones.
» He will be attending a meeting today regarding the effluent pipeline. They will be moving
down into Rainbow Bend - he will probably know more today on a timeline. This will come
down Canyon Way, over the drainage, and running along the back side of Rainbow Bend.

Erik Schoen, Community Chest Director:

e Last Friday night they held the first "drive-in" movie at the parking lot across from the pool.
Perfect night and temperatures. There were 25 cars, 100 people. Before the movie starts, all of
the adults are out talking to each other, kids are zipping around on scooters, going to the park
- an idealic scene and very heartwarming. Adults are welcome on their own. The "drive-in"
will be held again this Friday night and the next. There may be a couple in November.

* The "haunted ride along" will be held on October 22",

Austin Osborne, County Manager:
» Work is still being done to update the County website. This should come to the Board in

December or January.




» A'town hall" will be held this Thursday at Louise Peri Park in Lockwood. This is a very
important meeting focused on flooding, FEMA response, and flood insurance. A lot of
qualified people will be there to answer questions from the community.

* Another "town hall" will be scheduled for November in Virginia City. Locations are being
looked at.

» Lara Mather is the acting Emergency Management Director with the retirement of Joe Curtis.

* Joe Curtis' retirement will be celebrated at Pipers this Friday and at the October 19th
Commission meeting,.

Stacy York, Senior Center Director:
e Flu clinic dates: October 7th, Lockwood Community Center and Virginia City; Wednesday,
October 13t at the VC Highlands Fire Station.
» (Covid) Vaccination surveys are available at both Senior Centers.
e The "lasagna cookoff" will be held (tentatively) November 5" at 6:00PM.

Arika Perry, St. Mary's Art Center Director:

e On behalf of Deny Dotson, Tourism Director - welcome to Kimberly Burciaga, new Marketing

Manager. She will be a great addition to the team.
St. Mary's Art Center:

e Thank you to Jason (Wierzbicki) for the lawn aeration.

* A contractor has been identified for the SHPO CCCHP Preservation Grant. They have
working to identify porch leak issues, ramp issues, chimney repointing repair, and east facade
window restoration. The bid amount ($206,000) is more than double the grant amount
($100,000). An additional funding request has been submitted to SHPO - with three different
options and funding request amounts. The work may have to be adjusted or creative solutions
found. They were lucky to find a contractor during this construction boom - the majority of
the work will be done in March 2022.

» The fall art reception will be this Saturday, honoring local artist - Larry Williamson, along with
two other local artists. Live music will be presented and admission is free.

e The "imagination children's art program" has been launched with a new staff member, Renee
Grennan, who has a great following in children's programming.

» With Hauntober - they will present a monthly paranormal investigation October 16,

Advance registration is required.

» Halloween "tricks, treat and art for kids" will be held October 31* at 5:30 - 8PM. Ghost
investigations for teens will be held 8PM to 10PM - limited to 15 kids.

» Annual Halloween, paranormal investigation week - a critical fundraiser - will be held Friday
to Sunday.

*  Website has been updated allowing pre-scheduled bookings for private access to art galleries
& historical tours, classes, and special events.

* A new, art focused library has been opened in the 4" floor gallery.

» Working on restoration and installation of theater seats from the former theatre on C Street.
This will be a 20-person theatre - with movies, poetry readings, artist critiques, and a variety of
other uses.

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk:
» Judge Cobb donated a drawing of the Justice of Peace that is on the front of the building. It
will be displayed in the courtroom. Thank you to the Judge.

t’




8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment): None

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Presentation by Western Nevada Development District
(WNDD) regarding goals, services, programs, and performance to the counties which WNDD serves
including Storey County.

Sheryl Gonzales, Executive Director of WNDD, presented an overview of WNDD and the services
they provide. WNDD Goals include: economic resiliency, infrastructure, quality of life, and
government/organizational capacity. Services provided include: economic development strategy &
regional planning; an economic recovery and resiliency plan; grant research, application, and
management; community studies, assessments & planning. Ms. Gonzales reviewed these services
and discussed the difference between WNDD and regional development authorities. WNDD's
mission is to create an environment in which economic development can occur.

Ms. Gonzales reviewed the strategies and actions needed to meet the above goals. The goals were
determined by issues exasperated or unveiled as a result of the pandemic and economic impact.
WNDD is represented on several State emergency management teams to help develop protocol and
actions for an emergency that requires economic response and recovery. Ms. Gonzales discussed
WNDD's regional accomplishments.

Public Comment: None
Commissioner Gilman commented on the great job they have done and the help provided in the past.
Ms. Gonzales: Commissioner Gilman's support over the years is appreciated.

Vice-Chairman Mitchell: Are the programs targeted or open to local municipalities or are they more
regional based?

Ms. Gonzales: The grant opportunities through, good jobs, challenge, and the build-back-better
programs are looking at regional, catalytic change. Ms. Gonzales reviewed the three phases of the
build-back better grants. Only 30 will be given throughout the United States. WNDD will help their
agencies in any way they can.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION AT 11:00 AM: Request from Deputy Secretary for Elections
Mark Wlaschin, Nevada Secretary of State's Office, to discuss a formal voter outreach campaign. The
intent of this campaign is to provide clear, factual and non-partisan information. (Heard following
item 9.)

Mark Wlaschin was present on behalf of Secretary of State, Barbara Cegavske, to discuss the voter
outreach campaign and requesting assistance from the County. A need has been identified that more
time needs to be spent with voters discussing how elections are conducted. Adding to apparent
confusion, the 2021 Legislative Session created changes on how elections are conducted, which will
create even more questions and confusion in an already complex process.

6




In order to maximize the effectiveness of the voter outreach campaign, the County Clerk is requested
to direct him to advocacy groups, community leaders, and others, who would benefit from a
discussion about elections. The voters deserve to hear how the process works.

Public Comment:

Christina Schwanke, Storey County Republican Party Chairwoman and Virginia City Highlands
resident: Many people in the County have come to her with concerns about elections. Including
concerns about Dominion voting machines, which date back before the 2020 election. She referred to
results from an audit of Arizona votes with duplicate and mis-counted votes, among other issues.
Ms. Schwanke said voter rolls in the County, and in Nevada, are severely compromised. People
reported receiving more than one ballot. Ms. Cegavske admitted non-citizens voted in 2020. Nothing
has been submitted to say anything is being done to fix this. (Ms. Cegavske) said there is no way to
check citizenship. With universal mail-in ballots, there are questions regarding who checks to see if
signatures match. It will take more than a conversation with the Secretary of State's Office. Ms.
Schwanke feels there needs to be a full forensic audit of Clark and Washoe County's, if not the rest of
the State.

Commissioner Gilman: Applauds the effort. Like so many, he is concerned with the election process.

Vice-Chairman Mitchell: Welcomes more communication. There have been conversations in the
community and with local representatives. There may be "rough sledding" because of the gravity of
concerns. The answer is "more, not less".

Chairman Carmona: Applauds (Mr. Wlaschin) for coming here and starting the conversation.
There's one contact you may want to reach out to for further explanation. We'll wait to see what
develops.

Mr. Wlaschin: The comments about the timing absolutely need to be addressed. They waited to
come to a meeting so they can now say, here are the things in close coordination with County Clerks
across the state, that have been accomplished to make things better from 2020 looking at 2022 and
saying here's what we're going to do". They can meet with Vanessa Stephens and reach out to
individuals with concerns and address them. There needs to be a series of conversations to address
the number of concerns.

No Action Taken.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the updated
language and requirements for the Storey County Application for Grant funds and the new Storey
County Building Restoration Grant Application. These applications will be for Federally registered
501(c)3 nonprofit organizations located in Storey County to apply for county support.

Lara Mather, Acting Emergency Management Director, reviewed the presentation given by Bonnie
Drinkwater to all the non-profits the County provides support for, regarding the fiduciary
responsibility of the Board of Directors.

Ms. Drinkwater has extensive knowledge of the legality and funding sources for non-profits and
discussed best practices for 501(c)3 non-profits, including the goal of non-profits to support
themselves, run on their own - without substantial support from one organization

7




This (County's) application is re-worded to realign with best practices support. The same
documentation will be asked for from all the non-profits. The goal was quality, transparency,
fiduciary responsibility, and providing a way for non-profits to govern themselves.

[t is incredibly expensive to restore and maintain historic buildings. For Storey County owned
buildings, there is an additional application where non-profits can apply for support for the building.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: Supports allowing private organizations to meet community needs when
possible. He also supports the need for transparency and accountability and insuring a proper
process. Along with efforts for transparency and accountability comes greater "bureaucracy" - things
we try to balance. We don't want to burden with a process that slows down the work done by non-
profits. But there has to be a certain amount of accountability for taxpayer funds supporting these
organizations. We hope this balance can be struck.

Ms. Mather agrees. Several of the executive directors of non-profits she works with have extensive
backgrounds in grants - writing and management. We are not asking for anything that is not
provided to other grantors. She is happy to work with everyone with any questions or concerns.
Every requirement on the list is what a private foundation would require.

Chairman Carmona likes the direction this is going. Everything will be uniform for the communities,
and 501(c)3's.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the updated language and requirements for the
Storey County Application for Grant funds and the new Storey County Building Restoration Grant
Application. These applications will be for Federally registered 501(c)3 nonprofit organizations
located in Storey County to apply for county support, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Update on progress of action items identified in the Storey
County Hazard Mitigation Plan as required by participation in the National Flood Insurance
Program, Community Rating System.

Senior Planner, Kathy Canfield, explained - as part of the County's participation in the National
Flood Insurance Program, Community Rating System (CRS), an annual progress report of the
County's Hazard Mitigation is required. For the hazardous mitigation plan, Ms. Canfield reached out
to the individuals that would be responsible for each item. They gave her updates on where they are
at. She was surprised at how many things have been started and worked on since the plan was
initiated in June 2020, especially dealing with what the last year brought and unexpected items.

Public Comment: None
Ms. Canfield noted this (Plan) is posted on the County's website and social media.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Interlocal
Agreement between Storey County and Washoe County to provide meals to the Lockwood




Community/ Senior Center at the rate of $3.6359 for an average of twenty (20) or more meals per day
over a five-day week, Monday - Friday.

Stacy York, Senior Center Director, explained meals have been provided to Lockwood Community /
Senior Center from Washoe County. This item is for approval to renew the contract with Washoe
County. The price has stayed the same.

Public Comment: None
Commissioner Gilman commented this is a positive project and benefits the Lockwood community.

Vice-Chairman Mitchell: If, and when, there is a commercial kitchen, doesn't know that even then
would there be a basis (to provide meals on a regular basis) for such a small number of meals.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the of Interlocal Agreement between Storey
County and Washoe County to provide meals to the Lockwood Community/ Senior Center at the
rate of $3.6359 for an average of twenty (20) or more meals per day over a five-day week, Monday -
Friday, and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

14. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

15. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to approve the
purchase of a Dozer and necessary modifications for the Fire District out of Capital Reserve funds not
to exceed $58,000.

Battalion Chief and Wildland Coordinator Shane Dixon explained that since putting this item on the
agenda, this dozer has been sold. They would like to raise the amount to $100,000 in order to see if,
sometime in this budget cycle, another (dozer) comes up. To date this year, they have billed out
$76,000 for the current dozer. Last year - $782,143 in fire billings, off district assignments. Now the
dozer does not leave this area - getting a second dozer means there is always a dozer in the County,
available for a fire.

Public Comment: None

Jennifer McCain, Comptroller: There was work to make Budget adjustments for the $58,000. More
work will be needed in looking for another $100,000 in an already tight budget. If approved, note
that it is pending budget approval.

Battalion Chief Dixon explained it would not be an extra $100,000 but raising the $58,000 to $100,000 -
contingent on fire billings coming in this year.

Ms. McCain: Would like the opportunity to review the billings and make sure the funds are
available.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: Roughly what percentage of the $76,000 made from the dozer were hard
costs? What percentage can be applied to the asset?

9




Battalion Chief Dixon: $76,000 is strictly billing for the dozer. This dozer cost about $25 - it was a
government excess. These are no longer available. Next year the dozer will be ready for an under-
carriage - a large undertaking. He does not like to take it out of service for any amount of time if
something else is not available. The dozer only goes to local fires.

Vice Chairman Mitchell: Is fuel in the mix?

Battalion Chief Dixon: When on assignment, fuel as well as anything that breaks while on the fire, is
covered under the fed contract.

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the purchase of a Dozer and necessary
modifications out of the Fire District Capital Reserve funds not to exceed $100,000, pending budget
approval by the Comptroller's Office, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to approve the
District Fire Chief to enter into an Agreement for fuels reduction with NV Energy and Nevada
Division of Forestry.

Battalion Chief and Wildland Coordinator Shane Dixon reviewed the contract for fuels reduction.
The Fire District was given $3 million and purchased a cat skid-steer and a chip truck. Five
employees are working every day, mostly in the Highlands doing fuels work. Most of the work is
being done under power lines. Senate Bill 508, gives the State the ability to put money towards
making the fuel breaks larger going from 600 feet up to 1,000 feet. The County was late coming to
SB508 - so there is no money up front but is another funding source to do aggressive fuels work.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the District Fire Chief to enter into an
agreement for fuels reduction reimbursement with NVEnergy and the Nevada Division of Forestry,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

18. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to authorize the
County Manager to execute an agreement with Titan Electrical for traffic signal maintenance on USA
Parkway in the amount of $22,200. All costs beyond $1,500.00 associated with the traffic signal
maintenance will be reimbursed by NDOT in accordance with the interlocal agreement with NDOT
NM-389-18-016 AMD1.

Continued to 10/18/2021
19. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution No. 21-633, a resolution setting grade and
salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey

10




County officials for the 2021-22 fiscal year and superseding prior action by resolution for appointed
Storey County employees with adjustments to the Emergency Management Director position.

Continued to 10/18/2021

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff
and lobbyists regarding SCR 11 (formerly BDR 1109 and 1148) interim legislative committee to study
Innovation Zone draft legislation, and other properly related matters.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from this item.

Mr. Osborne said the situation is still being monitored. There is some indication that this matter may
be "folding up", or going away, or something of that nature. At this point, it is still being treated as if
things are moving forward. He recommends the Board to reaffirm the April 6! letter - that support
of cryptocurrencies, technological related blockchains, research and development, and all other
economic exercises continues; support the Painted Rock planned unit development "smart city", and
to oppose separate, local governances. He also recommends continuing support of these things into
the foreseeable future - as specified in the Master Plan, the Subdivision Ordinances, as very clearly
stated by this Board on numerous occasions.

Public Comment:

Eileen Gay, Painted Rock resident: Expressed extreme gratitude for the presentation(s) Storey
County has been able to make - very impressive. Thank you Commissioners, City(?) Manager, and
lobbyists for the thoroughness in their approach to what the Innovation Zone would propose, and for
the continued and very thorough effort.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to reaffirm direction to County staff, lobbyists and
professional services to consider appropriate research, analysis, and actions on SCR11 Innovation
Zone interim study which will best protect and represent the county to continue opposing separatist
government concepts, and to promote economic and land development, including a PUD at Painted
Rock, through existing legal framework in the 2016 Master Plan of Storey County, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Chairman Carmona, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

District Attorney Anne Langer asked that Agenda Item #15 be reconsidered. The actual item said
that funds requested not exceed $58,000. This needs to be continued to the next meeting as the
amount approved exceeds the amount requested. Also, based on the fact that this needs to be
discussed with the Comptroller.

There was discussion regarding how to rewind the motion.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
TO RECONSIDER THE MOTION ON ITEM #15.

11




Public Comment: None

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action to approve the purchase
of a Dozer and necessary modifications for the Fire District out of Capital Reserve funds not to exceed
$58,000.

Motion: [, Fire Commissioner Mitchell, in light of the change in the dollar amount being requested
on this item, I move to rescind our previous motion to approve and to continue this item to our
October 19" meeting at the Storey County Courthouse for further consideration, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,

Mr. Osborne asked District Attorney Langer if it would be appropriate, when this item is continued
to the 19', that the agenda language may change with the higher set amount - that there will be
change to the agenda language at that time by the Fire Chief.

Fire Commissioner Mitchell: Is there need to include that in the motion, is there latitude for it to
come back?

District Attorney Langer: Thinks basically what you did works.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3).

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action, Business License for
Virginia City Trading Co.; 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

Sheriff Antinoro, reccommended approval of the Business License for Virginia City Trading Co. The
Background investigation has been completed. Applicants are seeking to sell firearms and are
awaiting ATF permitting /license. Approval of this license will allow them to sell ammunition, gun
parts - everything except firearms. Background investigations are complete with nothing that would
preclude them from doing what they want to do, including sale of firearms as soon as ATF
permitting is received.

Public Comment: None

Motion: [, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve the second reading of the General Business
License for Virginia City Trading Co.; 62 N C St., Virginia City, NV 89440, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Recess called at 11:54 AM
Meeting reconvened at 12:00 PM

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of 2nd reading for
General Business License for Brandy Dickson, Massage/ Therapeutic Services. PO Box 537, Virginia
City, NV 89440




Sheriff Antinoro: The background has been completed on this applicant. Nothing was found to
preclude her from getting a license. This is a massage/therapeutic service.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve 2nd reading for General Business License for
Brandy Dickson, Massage/ Therapeutic Services. PO Box 537, Virginia City, NV 89440,

Vice Chairman Mitchell asked if this applicant will have a physical location, or be a mobile business?

Sheriff Antinoro: Applicant has a mobile service and does not anticipate customers coming to her
residence - but going to the customer's location.

Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible action, Business License
Second Readings

A. Motive Energy Telecommunications - Out of County / 1307 Striker Ave. Ste. 110 ~ Sacramento,
CA

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell, move to approve Business License Second Readings, Item A,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Mitchell, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

24. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Mike Northan, Storey County resident: Is pleased to see attention is being made to the election
system. Mr. Northan expressed concerns about up-coming, possible mandated vaccines.

25. ADJOURNMENT of all active and recessed Boards on the Agenda
Chairman Carmona adjourned the meeting at 12:07 PM

Respectfully submitted,

By:

erk-lreasurer

Vanessa Stephens




‘ Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. GPS Property Maintenance & Construction LLC — Contractor / 2295 S, Virginia St. #
16 ~ Reno, NV

B. Prestige Construction, LLC — Contractor / 1220 E. Greg St. Ste. 5 ~ Sparks, NV

C. Silver State Construction LL.C — Contractor / 35 N. Edison Way Unit 35 ~ Reno, NV
D. Silver State Plumbing LLC — Contractor / 4535 Copper Sage St. ~ Las Vegas, NV

Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) |
move to approve all first readings (if removed from Consent Agenda by request)

Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Contact Number: 7758470966

Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the Consent Agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's Meeting for approval.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

| | Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 88440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office November 7, 2021
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

e Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the November 16, 2021 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
FIRST READINGS:

GPS Property Maintenance & Construction LLC — Contractor / 2295 S. Virginia St. # 16 ~ Reno, NV
Prestige Construction, LLC — Contractor / 1220 E. Greg St. Ste. 5 ~ Sparks, NV

Silver State Construction LLC — Contractor / 35 N. Edison Way Unit 35 ~ Reno. NV

Silver State Plumbing LLC — Contractor / 4535 Copper Sage St. ~ Las Vegas, NV

.

TOF>

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 5
. BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

+ Title: Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Proclamation for Flood
Awareness Week, November 14-20, 2021.

*  Recommended motion: [, (commissioner), move to approve Storey County, Nevada,
Proclamation for recognizing Flood Awareness Week November 14-20, 2021.

* Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

Department: Contact Number: 7758471144

« Staff Summary: Staff recommends Storey County join in with the other local, state and
federal agencies in recognizing Nevada Flood Awareness Week. November 14 - 20,
2021. Staff encourages the commissioners and the public to go to
www.NevadaFloods.org for more information on flooding issues and concerns and what
can be done to prepare for flood events.

¢ Supporting Materials: See attached

« Fiscal Impact: None

+ Legal review required: False

*  Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

«  Board Action:

| | Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County, Nevada
Proclamation

WHEREAS, Storey County recognizes the significant threat that flooding poses
to our residents, our businesses, the community, the region and
our local economy; and

WHEREAS, Storey County has experienced flood events from the Truckee
River, weather events and flooding of local streams, channels and
creeks, and

WHEREAS, Risks can be reduced and communities can be prepared to be more
aware and resilient by educating vesidents and businesses on
actions they can take to prepare for flood events; and

WHEREAS, During Flood Awareness Week, local, state and federal agencies
are working together across Nevada to inform the public about
the dangers of flooding, iow to protect their homes and families,
and businesses from a flood event and plan for recovery;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners does
hereby proclaim November 14th through November 20" as

Nevada Flood Awareness Week

And urges all citizens to increase their awareness of the risks of floods by
visiting www.Nevada Floods.org and learn how you can be prepared.

Dated this Sixteenth Day of November, 2021

Jay Carmona, Chair
Storey County Commission




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report |

| Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM -  Estimate of Time Required: 15
BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Presentation and discussion by Kristin VanderMolen, Assistant Research
Professor, Desert Research Institute on Development, Implementation, and Evaluation of
Stakeholder-Driven Wildfire Smoke Monitoring and Messaging in Rural Nevada.

Recommended motion: Receive and File.

Prepared by: AGENDA SUBMITTER

Department: Contact Number: 7758470986

Staff Summary: The goal of this project is to increase wildfire smoke risk mitigation in
Northern Nevada counties through the development. implementation, and evaluation of
stakeholder-driven monitoring and messaging. The project includes the following tasks:
(1) install and evaluate the performance of select portable (Wi-Fi independent) air quality
sensors that measure particulate matter and other pollutants at 3-4 sites in each
participating county: (2) identify wildfire smoke risk information needs of emergency
managers and publics in those counties; (3) develop education materials for emergency
managers to use to address the identified information needs of the public (i.e., through
messaging and other forms of outreach): and (4) evaluate the effectiveness of onsite
monitoring and messaging to mitigate wildfire smoke risk in participating counties.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:



[ | Approved

| | Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




Project Title:
Development. Implementation, and Evaluation of Stakeholder-Driven Wildfire Smoke Monitoring and
Messaging in Rural Nevada

Project Description:

The goal of this project is to increase wildfire smoke risk mitigation in Northern Nevada counties
through the development, implementation. and evaluation of stakeholder-driven monitoring and
messaging. The project includes the following tasks: (1) install and evaluate the performance of select
portable (Wi-Fi independent) air quality sensors that measure particulate matter and other pollutants at
3-4 sites in each participating county: (2) identify wildfire smoke risk information needs of emergency
managers and publics in those counties; (3) develop education materials for emergency managers to
use to address the identified information needs of local publics (i.e.. through messaging and other forms
of outreach): and (4) evaluate the effectiveness of in situ monitoring and messaging to mitigate wildfire
smoke risk in participating counties. The project originated in and will build on an emergent effort
between the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) and emergency managers to equip
rural Nevada counties with the monitoring and messaging resources required for local wildfire smoke
risk mitigation. As such, the project is designed to be conducted in close collaboration with
participating emergency managers with the intention of meeting the specific monitoring and messaging
needs of their respective counties.

Primary benefits of this project to participating counties include: (1) ongoing air quality monitoring
that generates local, accurate. real-time data that will be publicly accessible on NDEP’s website and
the US Environmental Protection Agency’s AirNow.gov website and mobile app; (2) a “quick guide™
(physical and electronic document) for interpreting the data generated (i.e., the guide will help people
make connections between different particulate matter concentrations, potential health impacts, and
recommended protective actions): and (3) a set of custom wildfire smoke risk education and messaging
materials developed in response to the unique information needs of each county. The format of the
education and messaging materials will be determined with input from emergency managers but could
include, for example: a library of short (<Im) videos explaining essential concepts that can be shared
in conjunction with air quality warnings, and a package of infographics with simple, easily recallable
messages to aid interpretation of air quality data and understanding of recommended protective actions.

Contacts:
Desert Research Institute: Kristin VanderMolen (kristin.vandermolen(@dri.edu)
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection: Danilo Dragoni (ddragoni@ndep.nv.gov)

Funder:

The project is funded in-full by a grant from the US Environmental Protection Agency. There are no
costs to participating counties. All materials. including air quality monitors and wildfire smoke risk
education and messaging materials, will be provided under the project grant.



Storey County Board of County

| Commissioners
| Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - | Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.
- BOCC Meeting ) , .
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action |

+ Title: Appoint broker of record in accordance with the results from the 2021 Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) to provide insurance brokerage. consulting. and risk management
services for property, casualty, automobile, cyber, and workers™ compensation insurance
for Storey County for a period of up to five years.

*+  Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and bid results
from the 2021 Request for Qualifications (RFQ). I (commissioner) motion to appoint A
and H Insurance Services, Inc. to be the broker of record to provide insurance brokerage,
consulting, and risk management services for property, casualty, automobile, cyber, and
workers' compensation insurance for Storey County under the following conditions:

* 1. The term of the of the broker of record will be a period of one year from this approval,

» 2. The broker of record will be eligible to continue brokerage services for up to four
additional years with board approval, and

* 3. The broker demonstrates good faith effort and involves the county closely throughout
the process to market and bid casualty, automobile, cyber, and workers’ compensation
insurance services provided to the county by its insurance carrier, and

* 4. The county implements and the broker cooperates with a FY2021-22 fiscal year a
third-party evaluation of the cost and effectiveness of its insurance programs for property,
casualty, automobile. cyber, and workers’ compensation insurance, and furnishes the
findings and recommendations of that evaluation to the board within one year from this
approval.

+ Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

+ Staff Summary: Storey County purchases and manages its casualty. automobile, cyber,
and workers’ compensation insurance through an insurance broker. Brokerage services
are currently provided to the county by A and H Insurance Services, Inc. Insurance is
currently provided to the county by its carriers the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool
(POOL) and the Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT), a member-based insurance
pool and compensation trust for various public agencies in Nevada.

* The broker is responsible for ongoing management of the county’s insurance plan
including tracking and managing coverage and claims, verifying plan accuracy and
adequacy, acting on behalf of the county to analyze and negotiate renewal rates and
terms, assisting with underwriting, guiding the county and members with claims




processing, reviewing coverage, and assisting with regulatory compliance. The broker is
also responsible for marketing insurance carriers annually to ensure that the county is
receiving the highest and most cost-effective coverage.

In 2021 the county engaged in a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to scope the regional
market to determine if greater or more economical brokerage services may be offered.
The RFQ applied to the four insurance brokerage services “authorized™ by the county's
current insurance carriers POOL and PACT. Four firms responded to the RFQ including
A and H Insurance Services. Inc: LP Insurance Services, LLC.; Warren Reed Insurance;
and Alpine Insurance. The County Manager convened a committee of five county
officials to review the written responses and personally interview the best qualified
responders.

A and H Insurance Services, Inc. was found to be aligned with the size and structure of
the county and its needs. The firm’s strengths included level of experience with public
sector agencies; staff education, experience, and organizational diversity: in-house
resources; capacity to leverage and foster competitive bidding: flexibility in services
offered, including adaptability to meet specific needs of the county; and ease of
accessibility and personal services.

L.P Insurance Services, LLC. was found by the committee to be the next best bidder, and
the firm would also be well positioned to meet the county’s needs for the same reasons
described above.

Based on evidence from written submittals and committee interviews of the best bidders.
the committee recommends A and H Insurance Services, Inc. to be the county’s broker of
record for up to five years per the RFQ, but with board performance review and approval
for continued services after one year, under the conditions of approval specified in the
recommended motion.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: none

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

| ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager’s Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS
FOUR

GENERAL LIABILITY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE
BROKERAGE SERVICES

FOR
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

Posted September 14, 2021, through October 5, 2021
Submittal Deadline October 5, 2021
(Statements due by 4:00p.m. PST, October 5, 2021)

Prepared By:

Storey County Manager’s Office
P.O. Box 176 / 26 South “B” Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
775.847.0968
www. storeycounty.org

Page 1of 7



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager’s Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

TABLE OF CONTENTS

REQUEST FOR

QUALIFICATIONS. ...cosncvsssvsvnnsimsrvasey susorsornmpasmpoosnanse 3
I Overview
[I.  Performance Requirements

[II. Submittal Information
[V. Evaluation and Award Process
V.  Broker Qualification Questionnaire

Page 2 of 7



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager’s Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

Insurance Brokerage Services for
Property, Casualty, Automobile, Cyber, and Workers’ Compensation
Insurance
RFQ Due October 5, 2021

L OVERVIEW

Storey County is requesting qualifications (RFQ) from qualified firms to provide Insurance
Brokerage, Consulting, and Risk Management Services to the 2022 Fiscal Year for
Property, Casualty, Automobile, Cyber, and Workers’” Compensation insurance services. It
is the intention of Storey County to appoint a Broker of Record for a period of up to five
years. The successful firm must be a licensed Nevada insurance producer, must be
“Appointed” by, or accepted to, broker with the Nevada POOL/PACT, must have a
minimum of ten (10) years of experience representing county governments and/or taxing
districts, and must have access to various competitive insurance markets.

II. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

The successful candidate will provide the County with insurance services including, but not
necessarily limited to the following:

1. Procuring and providing property and casualty insurance coverages and any
additional coverages as may be usual and customary to Municipal Government.

2. Reviewing, marketing, placing, and procuring such other insurance coverages as
may be requested by Storey County, subject to the County’s review and approval of
the premiums for the same.

3. Seeking competitive programs and marketing coverage on an unbiased basis and in
the best interest of the County and providing detailed coverage comparisons for
submitted proposals.

4. Conducting quarterly stewardship meetings and reviews with staff and officials to
summarize activities and placements on behalf of the County.

5. Preparing annual market analyses and forecasts by insurance line including trends,
market availability, pricing, and market direction.

6. Assisting the County in developing and maintaining the underwriting information
necessary to market the insurance coverages.

Page 3 of 7



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager’s Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

7.

10.

11,

12.

13:

14.

15.

16.

Assisting the County in developing insurable values for all real and personal
property.

Assisting the County with risk exposure and control, claims management, data
collection and analyses, claims and insurance auditing, and methods and practices
to reduce risk and exposure, increase insurance marketability, and otherwise
improve conditions impacting insurance.

Assisting the county with ensuring that insurance carriers are properly representing
and looking out for the best interest of the County.

Verifying accuracy and adequacy of county policies potentially effecting claims and
risk.

Maintaining active and constructive relationships with insurance carriers to ensure
smooth operation, delivery of benefits and services, and to assist with claims,
questions, and challenges that arise.

Monitoring the financial ratings of the carriers and advising the County of any
reduction or exhaustion of the aggregate limits in any insurance policy. In the event
of any aggregate limit impairment, advising the County of any limit reinstatement
options available.

Issuing certificates of insurance as required.
Attend County meetings as requested.

Reviewing construction and other contracts as requested by the County and
commenting on the insurance and hold harmless indemnification provisions
contained therein.

Monitoring the claims services provided by the insurers and assisting the County in
the preparation of proofs of loss.

Page 4 of 7



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager's Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

III. Submittal Information

1.

3.

A copy of this RFQ may be requested from the County Manager's Office at the
address shown in subsection (2) of this section, electronically at

blopez@storeycounty.org or by telephone at 775.847.0968

All statements must be received by the Storey County Clerk’s Office no
later than 4:00 p.m. PST, October 5, 2021. Submit statement in a sealed
envelope to one of the following:

Mail/Delivery To: In-Person To:

Storey County Clerk Storey County Clerk’s Office
Post Office Box Drawer D 26 South “B” Street

Virginia City, NV 89440 Virginia City, NV 89440

The Submittal must contain six (6) copies of the statement.

IV. Evaluation and Award Process

1.

The County shall use its best judgement in conducting a comparative assessment of
the statement.

Storey County is not obligated to enter any contract as a result of the RFQ.

All conditions stated within the statement must be firm for a period of ninety (90)
days following the proposal deadline.

Storey County reserves the right to reject any and all statements or any part thereof
and to select the most responsive statement that is deemed in the best interest of
the County.

The proposal must be signed by a duly authorized official of the proposing firm.

The County will select finalists that appear to have the ability to service the County’s
needs. On-site visits may be scheduled with the finalists; these on-site visits are
anticipated to occur in September or October of 2021. The County may ask the
finalists to travel to the County Manager's office in Storey County, Nevada to
present further details and respond to questions.

The selected finalist will be considered for approval by the Board of Storey County
Commissioners at a regularly scheduled meeting, and the selected finalist will be
noticed of the meeting at or before the time of agenda posting.

Page 5 of 7



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager’'s Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

8. One Broker will be selected following the visits/interviews and Board approval, and

notifications will be sent to the remaining submitting firms within one week of Board
action.

Prior to execution of the Contract for brokerage services, the successful respondent
must provide a certification of errors and omissions coverage with limits of
$3,000,000 and A.M. Best credit rating of no less than A-, VIII. The County reserves
the right to cancel the Contract at the end of each annual period by giving at least
60 days prior written notice, or to cancel with cause at any time giving 60 days of
notice.

V. Broker Qualification Questionnaire

1.

Is the firm “Appointed” by or accepted to broker with the Nevada Public Agency
Insurance Pool (POOL) and the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT)
with which the County is currently insured?

List the name, history, and location of the firm where the County’s account will be
handled.

What is the size of your firm, number of employees and additional locations?

Who will be the principal contacts for the County including names, titles and staffing
plan? Include resume information and professional experience for all individuals that
will be assigned to the account.

How long has your local office and your overall firm been in business in Nevada?

How many governmental entity accounts does your firm represent and what types
of insurance are provided for them? Please include the below information for at least
three (3) of your accounts:

e Name of Firm

e Point of Contact (name and number)

e Lines of coverage written

e Years of Service for the account

¢ summarize your approach to insurance placements

« identify all markets used to provide specific details regarding services you
provide.

Explain your approach to marketing and timelines of events relating to insurance
placement, general accounts service (policy review, inquiry response time, issuance
of certificates, etc.), loss control and any other services you would provide.

List the top five (5) commercial insurers with whom you place business (or may
approach for business?)

Page 6 of 7



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager’s Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

9.

10.

I1.

1.2

13,

14.

Describe the level of experience your firm has with insurance and risk management
associated with owning and repairing historic buildings and structures.

Describe fees for proposed services and are they fixed or variable per project.
Describe commission fees and structure for all services. Include a fee schedule for
services to be provided and indicate with explanation if they are fixed or variable,
what commissions are involved, what services are included in fees, what fees are
charged for services not included in base fees.

Are fees all inclusive, or do certain services require additional fees? What costs of
your firm are covered?

If this agreement is renewed for one or more consecutive years, will the annual fee
be guaranteed?

If selected as Storey County’s Broker, what services will you provide the County as
part of your Broker fee? What “value added” services do you offer, and what is the
additional fee for those services?

If selected as an exclusive Broker, how can you assure Storey County that you have
provided the most comprehensive and competitive product for their consideration.

Page 7 of 7



A..H

Insurance

October 5, 2021

A and H Insurance, Inc. is pleased to provide a response to the Request for Qualification for insurance
brokerage services for Storey County, Nevada. A and H Insurance is proud to be the current Broker, as well as
the continuous broker for Storey County for the prior thirty plus years.

After review of all aspects of both the overview and performance requirements, A and H Insurance, has and
does meet and exceed each requirement stated. We are happy to receive any questions posed and look forward
to further interviews.

We value the relationship A and H has formed with Storey County over the last thirty years and look forward to
not only continuing to serve Storey County, but also continuing to innovate the way in which we serve.

Please advise with any questions or comments.

Thank you,
[ Al L
Bradley A. Pearce, Ghairman Kayla D. Woods, Municipality Manager

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




Table of
Contents

Broker Qualification Questionnaire

/_ . } , N A
2
| Appendix A - Résumés
IK e —
I/_— -
' 3 Appendix B - Service Timeline
’/"';_ = e i i ATA_'.*;\
4 Appendix C - Service Commitments
/__—_ e e
o Appendix D - State of the Market
L L - L
——— %
6 .~ Appendix E - Coverage Comparison
— I S ;
T T N
7 - Appendix F - Municipality Accounts
! Managed
S——— J
8 : Appendix G - Zywave
NI J
e } "y
9 | Appendix H - Certificate of
; Insurance, Professional Liability
" | (E&0) )
a ’ B
N N J




Lnsurance

Broker Qualification Questionnaire-

1. Is the Firm appointed by or accepted to broker with the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool and the
Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust with which the county is currently insured?

The Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool selected A and H Insurance as one of the first
appointed brokers of the Pool/Pact in 1987 when the program was founded by Wayne Carlson
and four participating counties.

A and H Insurance continues to work as an appointed agent with the Pool/Pact to serve public
entities in Nevada.

2. List the name, history and location of the firm where the County's account will be handled.

A and H Insurance was founded in 1957 by Russell Adams and is one of the earliest agencies
formed in the state of Nevada. We take pride in maintaining license #14 in the state of Nevada
as well as now holding licenses in twenty-seven additional states.

After a nine-year tenure as Nevada State Insurance Commissioner, Dick L. Rottman joined the
agency in 1979. He had come to the state in 1970 at the behest of the University of Nevada to
create an insurance program at the University.

In 1984, Brad Pearce and Carol Ingalls merged an agency formed in 1980 with Adams and
House Insurance (A and H Insurance). Both had underwriting, marketing, and risk management
experience having worked with an insurance carrier prior to joining A and H.

The agency has continued to grow into one of Nevada’s largest and most respected insurance
agencies with offices in five northern Nevada communities. In addition, an Arizona location was
added in 2019. We are proud to have an employee base throughout the state of Nevada.
Several years ago, we formed a Municipality team within the agency to coordinate our
professional services with the Pool/Pact as well as secure and administer relations with the
traditional marketplace. That team is currently managed and coordinated by Kayla Woods with
additional support by Lori Marshfield.

Currently the Municipality team consists of nine A and H staff members, our legal counsel, and
two independent risk management and safety firms utilized as needed.

A and H prioritizes giving back to our community and donates over $20,000 annually to local
charities in addition to the hours of volunteer service given by our employees. Specifically in
Storey County, A and H is actively contributing to the Community Chest, Storey County Senior
Center Foundation, Historic 4" Ward School, St. Mary’s Art Center, Pipers Opera House and
the Storey County Jeep Posse.

Brad Pearce, Kayla Woods, and Lori Marshfield are based out of our Reno, Nevada location,
located at 3301 South Virginia. This location is the A and H Headquarters and where Storey
County’s account will be handled.

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




" and

]+ . '
INSHranct

3. What is the size of your firm, number of employees and additional locations?

¢ AandH Insurance has 57 employees in the state of Nevada.
* We have locations in Reno, Fernley, Winnemucca, Elko, Yerington, and Apache Junction, AZ.
¢ We manage in excess of $100,000,000 in premiums for our clients.

4. Who will be the principal contacts for the County including names, titles and staffing plan? Please
include resume information and professional experience for all individuals that will be assigned to the
account.

» Brad Pearce, Kayla Woods, and Lori Marshfield are the principal contacts for the County.
* We have also included resumes for Kayla and Lori in Appendix A

Bradley Pearce - Chairman - Shareholder - Insurance Agent

Bradley Pearce has served in numerous capacities with A and H
Insurance. He has been with A and H Insurance for 41 years. He has
resided in the State of Nevada since 1970 and is a graduate of the
University of Nevada, Reno. After serving as a commercial underwriter
and marketing representative with Fireman'’s Fund Insurance from
1976-1980, he joined the insurance agency ranks. Brad is a
knowledgeable and technically skilled insurance agent having served
numerous roles with the Nevada Independent Insurance Agents (NIIA).
He maintains an agent, broker and surplus lines license, not only in
Nevada, but also in some 25 additional states. Additionally, Brad maintains a reinsurance
intermediary license with the Nevada Division of Insurance.

Brad has developed an extensive book of varied commercial accounts throughout his sales career.
He is a leading agent within A and H Insurance and the insurance community at large. He serves as a
mentor for a number of insurance producers. Due to his longevity in the industry, Brad's reputation
has been the cornerstone of numerous insurance carrier appointments.

While at A and H Insurance, he has held the positions of agency president, treasurer, and is currently
the chairman. He and his wife are major shareholders in the agency. He takes pride in the strong
reputation of professional integrity that the agency maintains within the state and with its insurance
carrier relations. He has been instrumental in the acquisition and integration of nine agencies into A
and H Insurance.

Additional accomplishments include a strong role in the creation of four insurance companies,
serving in various senior management capacities with each.

I have had the privilege of being with A and H for 21 Years. The professional, friendly and personal service
is amazing! | would recommend them to anyone seeking personal or business insurance. Brad and Christie
and their team are the best! Tamara D. - Customer since 2000

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




andH
urance

Ins
Kayla Woods - Sales Executive

Kayla Woods is a Sales Executive for A and H Insurance and specializes
in commercial insurance with a focus in providing coverage for
municipalities. Kayla started her career in insurance in personal lines and
quickly chose to move to commercial insurance as a result of her
background, education and passion in business management. After
learning the details of managing commercial insurance in a service role,
she moved into a sales role four years ago. This experience has provided
her with a strong knowledge and understanding of insurance, carriers,
and coverage forms.

In July of 2020, she joined the A and H team after working for an insurance brokerage in Truckee,
California and specializing in hard to place property insurance due to extreme wild fire exposure and
older, historical, wood frame buildings. Kayla now has over seven years of insurance experience and
is passionate about providing an excellent and easy insurance experience for her clients.

When not managing insurance, Kayla loves spending time outdoors and in nature. She just
purchased her first home in Washoe Valley, Nevada and enjoys regular dirt bike rides to Virginia City
from her house. Kayla is driven by helping people, hearing their stories, and being of service in any
way she can. She brings an innovative and fresh energy to insurance and is excited to continue to
build her experience, expertise and career in the insurance industry.

Kayla is quite frankly the most responsive, knowledgeable and patient rep | have worked with in some
time. John L. - Customer since 2020

Lori Marshfield - Account Manager

Lori is a Commercial Insurance Account Manager providing service and
support for commercial insurance clients. Her background includes
working on the carrier side of insurance, and she holds several industry
designations: Chartered Property and Casualty Underwriter, Certified
Risk Manager, Associate in Risk Management, Associate in Commercial
Underwriting, Associate in Personal Insurance, and Certificate in General
Insurance.

Lori Marshfield has been our Account Manager for many years and she
continues to obtain the best quotes for Centerline Construction, even though
our company is not currently active. She is a huge asset to A and H
Insurance!!! Charles H. - Customer since 2011

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




5. How long has your local office and your overall firm been in business in Nevada?

A and H Insurance, one of the first agencies in Nevada has been conducting business in Nevada
for over sixty years.

We are proud to be the largest agency in Northern Nevada that remains independent and 100%
locally owned and operated. We are also proud to be family owned and operated. Recently,
many local agencies have been selling full or majority ownership to out of state private equity
groups and national insurance firms. A and H has a commitment and intent to remain a truly
local firm in Nevada primarily focused on serving Nevadans.

6. How many governmental entity accounts does your firm represent and what types of insurance are
provided for them? Please include the below information for at least three of your accounts:

A and H Insurance represents 45 governmental accounts in the state of Nevada. We provide a
complete compliment of coverages for these entities including General Liability, Professional
Liability, Employment Practices Liability, Cyber Liability, Abuse and Molestation, Commercial
Property, Earthquake, Flood, Builders Risk, Employee Benefits and Bonds. A full list of all the
public entities we manage can be found in Appendix F.

Below are three of our accounts as well as contact information

o Lyon County

Point of Contact: Josh Foli, 775-463-6510

Lines of coverage written: All those stated above

Years of service for the account: 30+ years (inclusive of those provided by
O'Keefe Insurance, which was acquired by A and H Insurance in 2016)
Approach to insurance placements: Pool/Pact continues to offer the most
comprehensive coverage and the most competitive price.

Markets and services provided: Pool/Pact is the carrier currently being utilized
and a full complement of services summarized in our Service Timeline (Appendix
B) and Service Commitments (Appendix C).

o Humboldt County

Point of Contact: Dave Mendiola, 775-623-6300

Lines of coverage written: All those stated above

Years of service for the account: 6 years

Approach to insurance placements: Pool/Pact continues to offer the most
comprehensive coverage and the most competitive price

Markets and services provided: Pool/Pact is the carrier currently being utilized
and a full complement of services summarized in our Service Timeline (Appendix
B) and Service Commitments (Appendix C).

o Esmerelda School District

Point of Contact: Anabel Guerrero, 775-572-3250

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




= Lines of coverage written: All those stated above

= Years of service for the account: 2 years

= Approach to insurance placements: Pool/Pact continues to offer the most
comprehensive coverage and the most competitive price

* Markets and services provided: Pool/Pact is the carrier currently being utilized
and a full complement of services summarized in our Service Timeline (Appendix
B) and Service Commitments (Appendix C).

7. Explain your approach to marketing and timelines of events relating to insurance placement, general
account services (policy review, inquiry, response time, issuance of certificates, etc.), loss control, and
any other services you would provide.

At A and H Insurance, our knowledge and experience guide the marketing strategy we
implement for our clients. The Insurance marketplace is ever changing. Carrier’s appetite for
risk and the risks they are willing to contemplate is directly influenced by the state of the
marketplace and the level of profitability carriers experience within certain sectors and lines of
coverage. We pride ourselves in not only our research regarding the current state of the
marketplace but also interacting with all carriers, both established and new, to gauge their
appetite regarding our client’s risk. We have included an article on the state of the marketplace
in Appendix D for additional information. BUSINESS

In the case that we find a carrier that is willing and INSURANCE

capable of providing an alternative for our client, the
conversations start early and occur often. We have
included our Service Timeline which has and will
continue to be customized for Storey County in
Appendix B. The intent of the Service Timeline is to
provide more transparency to our client as we
develop, design, and implement your individual Risk

Reduction Plan. Much like an iceberg, the majority of FL(’LE\ lTh'1“f'E
the work we do occurs below the surface and, as we SUPPO R)T

PERSONAL
INSURANCE

LIFE & HEALTH
INSURANCE

DISASTER
PLANNING

continue to innovate our practices, it is our goal to RISK CYBER
increase the transparency and understanding of the ANALYSIS SAFETY
services we provide to our clientele. Y i din

: p . . ou will fin RISK REDUCTION LOSS
the Service Timeline that the marketing process for VISITS PREVENTION

Storey County is an ongoing activity and will be
ramping up in the coming months if we determine an alternative to the Pool would be viable
and desired.

In the public sector, we have also developed a Coverage Comparison which we have provided
for you in Appendix E. This coverage comparison dissects the alternatives available to entities
in the public sector and how they measure up in terms of coverages, limits and value-added
services. This comparison is updated by our agency throughout the year in order to manage and
dissect the different carriers available to you, our client. We shop insurance for certain public

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




o HLC
entities to test the market place on an annual basis. In the last several years, we have found that
even if carriers can compete with coverage limits, the pricing is still significantly higher than
what the Pool is offering.

Finally, in Appendix C we have included our Service Commitments which outline the standards
A and H has in place to ensure our clients are receiving value in exchange for the commissions
being paid for our services as a trusted advisor to the County.

8. List the top five commercial insurers with whom you place business (or may approach for business).

The top five commercial insurers that A and H insurance places business with, in terms of
premium, are as follows:

o Chubb

o Travelers

o Liberty Mutual/Safeco

o CNA

o POOL/PACT

9. Describe the level of experience your firm has with insurance and risk management associated with
owning and repairing historic buildings and structures.

A and H insures many historic buildings throughout Nevada and California. Historic buildings
present a very unique and complex risk when it comes to insurance and do require additional
due diligence on behalf of the agent, carrier, and insured.

The design and construction of historic buildings makes them more vulnerable to damage,
especially by fire, and more expensive to repair. Attempting to rebuild with similar materials,
usually requiring skilled labor, in addition to being in accordance with modern building codes,
legislation and in compliance the historic commissions and preservation offices leads to large
claims and out of pocket losses.

It is important to realize that unless a special appraisal has been conducted, typically at the cost
of the insured, historic buildings are insured for their functional replacement cost. Functional
replacement cost means that a 12,000 square foot office building would be replaced with a
12,000 square foot office building. The building would be modernized and up to code, but
without replication of the historic features present in the original building.

Rebuilding with like quality and materials in the event of a loss is extremely difficult in today's
world. Rebuilding with replicated quality and materials can cost multiple times the amount to
rebuild with a functional replacement cost. The additional expense to replicate historic
buildings can either be purchased through additional coverage and premium from the carrier or
is an out-of-pocket expense sustained by the insured after a loss.

Counties with historic buildings need to have a conversation with the community regarding
how the community wants to rebuild in the event of a loss. Does the community want to
budget for a fund that pays out of pocket for the extra expenses of replication in the event of a
loss? Does the community want to purchase additional appraisals and pay additional premium
to insure for rebuilding with the extra expense of replication? Will the Comstock Historic
District and The Nevada State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) allow for a building to be

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




54

and
111 10"

[nsurang

rebuilt with functional replacement cost and no replication? Or, do they require all historic
buildings to be rebuilt with replication? Does the SHPO or Comstock Historic District have
funds for the community to assist with the additional expense of replication in the event of a
loss?

* As your trusted advisor, the above are the questions we ask in order to develop, design and
implement the appropriate Risk Reduction Plan that best serves your county and community.
This plan will not be set in stone and will change as the community changes. Having a trusted
advisor that is familiar with the unique exposures of your county and community will make
navigating the changes within your community easier. As Storey County’s trusted advisor for
over 30 years, we are confident we have the knowledge, expertise and experience to provide
superior advice and guidance.

10. Describe the fees for proposed services and are they fixed or variable per project? Describe commission
fees and structure for all services. Include a fee schedule for services to be provided and indicate with
explanation if they are fixed or variable, what commissions are involved, what services are included in
the fees, what fees are charged for services not included in the base fees?

* Aand H Insurance, does not charge fees in addition to the commissions we are paid from the
insurance carriers we place coverage through for our municipality accounts. We operate on an
average gross revenue of 12.5% which is the average commission paid to our agency from
insurance carriers. Some insurance carriers pay us as high as 25% of the annual premium in
commission, while others pay as little as 6%. The Pool/Pact is currently paying its appointed
agents 6.5% of the annual premium in commission. This percentage is determined by Pool/Pact
members who sit on the advisory board.

e Itisimportant to note that the way A and H Insurance operates is not a standard in the
industry. Many agencies are focused on paying increased shareholder dividends and passing
that cost along to the insureds through added fees. A and H is focused on serving fellow
Nevadans, taking care of our employees, and creating a financially stable company that is able
to effectively and efficiently serve our clients.

* The services A and H Insurance provides as a trusted advisor vary depending on the client, the
state of the insurance marketplace, the carriers, loss history, and the unique exposures for each
client. The commission we are paid, as a percentage of annual premium is our compensation for
the development, design, and implementation of a unique Risk Reduction Plan for each entity
we serve. A Risk Reduction Plan begins with carrier placement and reactive service and, more
importantly proactive service. Our Service Timeline and Service Commitments found in
Appendix B and C outline and set benchmarks in order for A and H to provide superior carrier
placement, reactive and proactive services.

* Our experience, reputation, commitment and consistent service to public entities like Storey
County over the last 40+ years is what enables us to develop a unique Risk Reduction Plan for
each entity we serve as a trusted advisor to.

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




11. Are fees all inclusive, or do certain services require additional fees? What costs of your firm are
covered?

A and H Insurance does not charge additional fees on our municipality accounts. All services
provided in the development and implementation of a unique Risk Management Plan are included
in the commission paid to A and H Insurance by the carrier coverage is placed with.

12. If this agreement is renewed for one or more consecutive years, will the annual fee be guaranteed?

A and H Insurance does not charge fees on our municipality accounts in addition to the commission
paid to A and H Insurance by the insurance carrier coverage is placed though. If we are to place
coverage with an alternative carrier, the commission percentage can change. In addition, if in the
future we place Storey County’s insurance with an alternative carrier to the Pool Pact, it is possible
that the carrier may only be accessed though a wholesale broker. In that scenario we would be the
retail broker. The wholesale broker likely will charge a broker fee, but A and H Insurance would not
gain any part of or profit from that fee. In some circumstances when an insurance carrier chooses
to pay the agent no commission, or a commission percentage that is significantly lower than the
market average, A and H Insurance may negotiate a fee-based compensation and forgo
commission. If this occurs, it is on a case-by-case basis.

13. If selected as Storey County’s Broker, what services will you provide as part of your Broker fee? What
“value added” services do you offer and what is the additional fee for those services?

A and H Insurance does not charge broker fees on our municipality accounts in addition to the
commission paid to A and H Insurance by the carrier coverage is placed through.

The services provided in exchange for commission can be split into three overall categories
comprised of purchase and placement of insurance with customized products and pricing, reactive
service, and proactive service.

o Placement of insurance is done through selecting a carrier that best addresses the coverage
needs for the client and offers the coverages at a fair price. As the insurance marketplace
changes, the carriers that best address the coverage needs will change as well. Our role is
to ensure that our client is receiving the coverage that meets their needs, in its most
comprehensive form, at the most competitive price.

o Reactive serving includes items such as responding to client needs, reporting claims, issuing
certificates of insurance, issuing endorsements on policies, and answering questions.

o Proactive service includes items such as facilitating insurance renewals, creating and
providing various reports to management as needed, risk reduction visits, a risk reduction
plan, identifying risk of loss, analyzing insurance needs, auditing the current insurance
program and exploring alternative options as needed, making recommendations, examining
options, asking questions, and reducing the potential risk index.

The way in which we accomplish placement of insurance, reactive service and proactive service is
outlined in the Service Timeline and Service Commitments found in Appendix B and C.




A..H

Insurance

14. If selected as an exclusive Broker, how can you assure Storey County that you have provided the most
comprehensive and competitive product for their consideration.

A and H Insurance has extensive experience serving public entities in the state of Nevada,
including Storey County for the last 30 years. We continue to innovate and evaluate the way in
which we serve, in order to accommodate the inevitable changes in our client’s environment.
We believe the way in which we serve our clients must be dynamic as each entity we serve is
unique and ever changing. We value communication and relationships with our clients. We
value asking questions. We value people. We value feedback. We value our experience and at
the same time value learning, innovating, and serving. Our values are your benefits. Our values
are your assurance that we will do the work necessary. In the context of providing the most
comprehensive and competitive product for your consideration, our coverage comparison in
Appendix E and our current State of the Marketplace in Appendix D will show you the research
we do on an annual basis to ensure we are offering the most comprehensive and competitive
product to match your unique risk management and insurance needs.

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




and H

Insurance

Appendix A — Team Résumés

KAYLA DIANE WOODS

EDUCATION
Sonoma State University, Rohnert Park, CA Graduated: May 2011 Bachelor of Science Business Administration, Marketing Concentration

L Mentor Pragram, Fall 2010. Partnered with Oakland Athletics Stadium Operations

. Advanced Work Experience Fall 2010, Event Coordinator for Santa Rosa Ski and Sports
LICENSES, ACCREDITATIONS AND ACHIEVEMENTS

California and Nevada P&C Insurance License since 2014

California and Nevada Health and Life License since 2015

Graduate of Hartford School of Insurance in 2018

Graduate of 2018 North Lake Tahoe/Truckee Leadership Program
Ambassador of the Truckee Chamber of Commerce, 2016 to current
CLCS- Commercial Lines Coverage Specialist Designation, 2018

3 out of 5 CISR courses completed to receive designation, 2018/2019

A and H Insurance, Inc, Reno, NV July 2020 - Current
Sales Executive, Municipality Manager
. Prospect, market, and bind new Commercial Business
* 55,737,500 Book of Business built in first 9 months of employment
Sierra Insurance Associates, Truckee, CA July 2016 - June 2020
Sales Executive- Commercial Lines Producer January 2018 - Current
. Prospect, market, and bind new Commercial Business
. Manage and train account executive to renew and service accounts
$600,000 book of business in two years generating about $70,000 in annual revenue
Added 160+ new clients to the agency
Develop and maintain marketing strategy and lead lists
. Participate in multiple community groups and volunteer opportunities to build brand and network
*  Train new employees, support agency operations including IT and CRM platform (AMS360), and monitoring of efficiencies and service standards
Account Executive, Commercial Lines July 2016 - January 2018
*  Manage a book of business of 300+ clients and $2,000,000+ in premium including service, remarketing, and retention
. Marketing and web content management
L] Facilitated Book Roll of $6,000,000 in premium
AAA, Truckee, CA April 2015 - July 2016
Licensed Soles Associate- Personal Lines

Ly Customer Service for all insurance clients

L Sales to assist agent
State Farm, Portola, CA September 2014 ~ April 2015
Licensed Associate/Administration

- Account Servicing

. Office Organization

Vail Resorts Retail, LLC, Vail Resorts, Truckee, CA, November 2011-August 2014
Manager of three branded stores; The North Face, Patagonia, Icebreaker November 2013-Present
Manager of True North at the Ritz Carlton November 2011-November 2013

= Increased sales 70% from 2012 to 2013 and 30% over budget

» Member of Employee Giving Council which works with local nonprofits to facilitate the grant application process

L Active participant and volunteer for the Vail Resorts Echo program which serves youth, the environment, and our local community

L Create business plan and budget to maximize sales, efficiency, and minimize expenses

v Hire, train, manage, and schedule staff of twenty-four employees

» Implement daily routines to facilitate meeting and exceeding budgeted contribution margin, labor goals, and shrink goals for the store

o Employee of the year for fiscal year 2014
*President of Prosperity Partners BNI Chapter, Member of Reno Rotary, Graduate of Hartford School of Insurance®

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




wa H

Insurance

LORI A. MARSHFIELD, CPCU, CRM, ARM, AIDA, AU, API, INS

20 FOX GLOVE CT., RENO, NV 89511
775-853-9407

OBJECTIVE:

AREAS OF
EXPERTISE:
LICENSE:

To continue building my career in a field where my education, experience and
motivation can be utilized.

Office Administration Communication

Marketing Organizing

Nevada Property and Casualty

DESIGNATIONS: Chartered Property and Casualty Underwriter (CPCU)

EXPERIENCE:

12/101t0
present

5/99-12/10

6/97 -4/99

4/90 - 4/97

EDUCATION:

VOLUNTEER

EXPERIENCE:

Certified Risk Manager (CRM)

Associate in Risk Management (ARM)
Associate in Insurance Data Analytics (AIDA)
Associate in Underwriting (AU)

Associate in Personal Insurance (API)
General Insurance (INS)

A and H Insurance, Inc. -Reno, NV

Commercial Accounts Manager: Market new business and renewals. Provide
help and support to customers with questions or problems. Cross sell other
lines of insurance. Analyze and review policies and endarsements for accuracy.
Assist other managers when necessary.
Reiser and Associates, Inc. -Reno, NV

Account Consultant/Agent/Office Manager: Organize and instruct staff. Keep
Track of the workflow. Provide help and support to customers. Review audits
for accuracy and file formal audit disputes. Analyze and review policies and
endorsements for accuracy.

AmGrip -Reno, NV

Underwriting Consultant: Analyze and determine State Fund accounts eligible
for association retrospective rating plans. Assist in state fund employees’
training. Help develop the policyholder services model office procedures.
Communicate and work with State Fund, policyholders and staff members.
Nationwide/Wausau Insurance -Columbus, OH; Annapolis, Md; Visalia, CA
Commercial Lines Underwriting Specialist: Accept, retain and price
commercial risks according to established underwriting policies, practices,
and standards. Interpret and analyze coverage forms. Maintain working
knowledge of insurance laws and regulations. Participate in field under-
writing.

California State University, Fresno -Fresno, CA
B.5., Business Administration (Accounting) - Dec. 1984

Multiple Subjects Teaching Credential - Dec. 1987
Palomar Jr. College -San Marcos, CA
A.A., Liberal Studies -Jan, 1982

CPCU Sierra Nevada Chapter President

CPCU Committee Membership Chairman

Builders Association of Northern Nevada Women's Council and National
Association of Women in Construction -historian and member
Nationwide Civic Action Program Steering Committee member and
newsletter contributor

Wausau Insurance Activities Store bookkeeper

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com



and
Insnrance

Appendix B — Service Timeline

September

® & 8 @

Research and prepare alternative markets for renewal shopping.

Present in front of October Commissioner meetings as needed for approval to market.
Attend NACO conference

Review Commissioners meeting minutes and attend board meeting if possible
Continue to audit policy coverage forms and make any changes necessary

October

Gather supplemental applications if marketing and provide to insured.

Present at October meetings if needed.

Review marketing timeline.

Set up pre loss control visits with alternative carriers if applicable,

Update and discuss alternative market placement and cooperation needed in order to coordinate application
process.

Quarterly Loss Run review, site visit

Check in on satisfaction with Pool

Discuss our role as agents and anything we can be doing better or differently,

Review Cornmissioner meeting minutes

—

November

Pool applications and alternative market supplementals go out if marketing
Contact with clients regarding Pool applications.

If marketing, set up marketing "to do” list

Begin gathering data focusing on property data and updates.

Review commissioner meeting minutes.

December

L

Assist clients with renewal applications
Review board meetings

Happy Holidays site visits

Review Commissioner meeting minutes

January

Pool applications are due, begin checking for accuracy by comparing to last years' application, changes throughout
policy term and to accessors website, Verify appraisals are accurate.

Alternative market supplemental applications in if marketing.

Quarterly Loss Run review with insured and site visit

Check in on satisfaction with Pool

Discuss our role as agents and anything we can be doing better or differently. Discuss potential alternatives to Pool
if applicable.

Review board meeting minutes, attend board meeting if possible

February

Continue working with alternative markets,
Check in with clients we will be marketing, indications, final decision if marketing
Review board meeting minutes, attend board meeting if possible

March

Notice to Pool marketing.
Review board meeting minutes, attend board meeting if possible

April

Pool-Pact Annual Meeting

Alternative market quotes in.

Loss Run review with clients

Discuss our role as agents and anything we can be doing better or differently. Discuss potential alternatives to Pool
if applicable.

Review board meeting minutes, attend board meeting if possible

May

Schedule renewal presentations, coordinate with benefits.
Renewal proposals come in

Invoicing is generated

Renewal presentations finalized

Review board meeting minutes, attend board meeting if possible

June

Renewal proposal presentations, agents go on "tour” to present to boards

July

Renewal meetings review and action items as needed
Notes for next year, action items, areas of opportunity
Review renewal policies and coverages for accuracy
Send out certificates of participation

Collect premium payment and pay carrier

August

Objectives and timeline of service for next year developed
Review commissioner meeting minutes, attend meeting if possible

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




A.H

Appendix C — Service Commitments

Dedicated service representatives who are available by direct cell phone numbers, no 1-800 numbers
Monthly newsletter with calendar of important events and training opportunities (starting January 1*
2022).

3. Boots on the ground who will regularly visit Storey County and stay up to date on changes within the

county.

Assist with appropriate calculation of premiums by proactively reviewing appraised values on property

schedules well in advance of renewal and throughout policy term.

5. Routine reviews of the County Assessor’s record to ensure all public agency locations have been

included for coverage.

Regular and timely communication with the Pool, with appropriate documentation regarding changes in

property (locations and values), vehicle schedules, and changes in operations in addition to maintaining

our own records of changes as a cross check to ensure the Pool accurately updates policies as
requested.

7. Completion of a review and/or comparison of year-over-year renewal application
Information in order to identify deviations and inaccurate information year over year.

8. Regularly scheduled and timely consults with insured to review coverage documents including
coverages, exclusions, and any changes to the coverage documents or enhancements that could benefit
the member.

9. Provide resources in addition to the Pool's resources to create these policies as needed. Shares use of
Zywave through A and H Insurance. Sample of services Zywave offers is included in Appendix G.
Zywave can assist our clients with HR, job descriptions, benefits, and content for publications.

10. Attend POOL/PACT human resource and risk management trainings at least annually and promote
trainings to County staff to maximize participation in trainings.

11. Regularly provides copies of the POOL/PACT Vehicle Accident Packet to Storey County.

12. Encourage use of Pool/Pact grants and assist with application process.

13. Discuss and educate county on value added services provided by their carrier in order to minimize risk
for the organization.

14. Assist member with contacting Loss Control Team for assistance with safety issues or training.

15. Quarterly loss runs review with insured. Identify Risk Management resources that might assist in
mitigating or eliminating future claims and recognizing patterns that are occurring.

16. Assists client with timely return of renewal applications.

17. Attends County’s annual board meeting and review meeting minutes on a biweekly basis

18. Attends POOL/PACT annual board meeting and advocate for insured

19. Assist with review of vendor contracts with insurance provisions.

20. Respond to certificate and service requests same day, issue in house certificates within 24 hours.

Requests out to carrier for non in house certificates same day.

& A

o

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




A and H
Appendix D — State of the Marketplace

For the current state of the marketplace for the public sector we have chosen to share an article with you
written on September 8" of 2021 by Adam Mazan, Dante Pezzi, and Russ Stein of Risk Placement Services. We
feel this article articulates the several factors creating the “perfect storm” in the marketplace for the public
sector. With the loss of capacity from reinsurers, Covid-19, increased sexual abuse and molestation claims, an
attack on law enforcement, reduction in market participation and nuclear verdicts, we have turbulent
environment for insuring all entities, but especially those in the public sector. This is a time similar to the mid
1980's when Wayne Carlson developed the idea to create the Pool. After several years of hard work and
perseverance he was able to insure the first entities within the Pool in 1987. At that point in time, the public
sector was seeing premiums increase 10x and were unable to obtain the coverage needed to truly indemnify
the organization and transfer of risk through insurance. The increases we saw with the Pool this last year again
were mitigated by the hard work of the NPAIP and their negotiations with the reinsurers which was
accomplished as a result of their tenure and experience running this program. The carriers that offer alternative
markets to the Pool have been hit in the same way but in a more extreme fashion. Instead of 10% increases we
have seen 30% to 50% increases or carriers non-renewing and pulling out of the marketplace completely. The
stability offered by the Pool is also not present in the alternative markets as the possibility of a large claim
resulting in a non-renewal is very real.

A Turbulent Time for Public Entities: State of the Marketplace Update

It's no secret that the public entity casualty marketplace has arguably been the most turbulent of them all over
the last couple years, even when compared to other classes of business.

Now, past the halfway point of 2021, agents need to understand what is driving the current state of the market,
why we're in this current predicament and what the future looks like in order to educate clients about the
space, what's behind their rising costs, and what they can do to control it.

Loss of Markets Leads to Loss of Capacity

Over the last two or so years, the public entity casualty marketplace has seen a mass exodus of carriers from
this class of business, especially in the western states. The driving force behind this active migration from
previously-entrenched carriers is clearly due to big losses.

Specifically, the ongoing civil unrest the country saw last summer, coupled with rising settlements and even
costs to defend claims has pushed a lot of carriers to rethink their positions entirely. The unfortunate side effect
is a lack of adequate capacity available for municipalities, and competition between carriers that are still actively
participating in the space is very sparse.

This has led to extremely difficult renewals for insureds, causing many to rethink the purchase of liability
insurance, specifically excess liability insurance, altogether. This is absolutely not recommended in this day and
age, given the increasingly litigious environment, however it does become a matter of whether a municipality
can even afford their renewal and what that cost, passed onto taxpayers, will be.

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




A and H

Insurance

Reinsurance 101

While the conversation may be difficult to have and fall on deaf ears with the more price-driven buyers, the
important distinction we must make to clients during this difficult market is that the lack of capacity is being
driven by the bigger picture: the reinsurance world. Over the last few years, increased litigation, the rise in
nuclear verdicts and even the increased costs and frequency of natural disasters around the world have all
impacted the reinsurance marketplace.

Many insureds may not be familiar with reinsurance, which is essentially the purchase of coverage by a primary
insurer to cover a single risk or even a large swath or chunk of similar risks with similar exposure, thereby
mitigating the primary insurer’s potential loss payout in the event of a catastrophic loss, or multiple catastrophic
losses, across their book of business. It is the primary insurer's way of spreading their own risk by their issuing
of capacity to insureds.

Reinsurers operate similar to insurers in the sense that they make decisions on whether or not to provide
reinsurance to a primary insurance company or to a book of business by considering loss ratio and exposure,
amongst other contributing factors. Given increased claims costs, jury verdicts and rise in judicial “hell holes,”
reinsurers have become significantly more hesitant to offer capacity on public sector business and if they do,
the offering is at a significantly increased costs than in years past. Increased cost is passed onto the primary
insurer, who must then increase their cost of providing capacity to an insured.

It all but boils down to a simple supply and demand equation. With less capacity available in the reinsurance
marketplace for public sector business due to loss history, costs and other aforementioned factors, there is less
capacity available from primary insurers or and an inability for those primary carriers to secure reinsurance
capacity, which results in increased costs.

A New Wave of Contributing Factors

In addition to the continued market-driving nuclear verdicts and increased litigation costs, there are additional
factors that are impacting and will continue to impact the public entity marketplace going forward.

1. COVID-19

For the most part, the impact of COVID-19 hasn't truly been felt by municipalities when relating to their
insurance costs, however that may not be true for much longer. With the continued surge of the new Delta
variant, coupled with the return to work and subsequent talk of how or whether or not to show proof of
vaccination for employees, the next year could prove pivotal. More lawsuits could be filed in regards to EPLI
claims or if the employee contracted the virus at work after being told they could no longer work from home,
While there haven't been many concrete cases and verdicts exploring this yet, it is very likely that there will be
an increase in lawsuits going forward.

A bright spot, however, may be the Public Readiness and Emergency Preparedness Act (PREP) which provides

immunity of liability for entities and individuals involved in the development, manufacturing, testing, distribution
and/or administration of countermeasures against a present or credible threat to public health. While PREP isn't
a complete protection of liability as it provides a statutory exception for actions or failures to act that constitute

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




AandH

[

willful misconduct, it may help municipalities in their fight to mitigate COVID claims or suits brought against
them.

2. Sexual Abuse and Molestation

SAM coverage has been a hot topic for years in the public sector, education and religious and non-profit classes
of business, though recently it has garnered significant attention due to certain jurisdictions and their
exploration of increasing look-back windows. These are now established in eight states and the District of
Columbia.

There are also reviver statutes, which is state legislation enacted to allow adult survivors of childhood sexual
abuse to bring civil claims (often negligence or assault and battery) after the statute of limitations has passed
and even the complete removal of the statute of limitations altogether, such as Colorado's Senate Bill 73 which
is currently under review. Furthermore, seven states have even increased the discovery age of a sexual abuse
claim, allowing victims to sue later in life if they’re able to show they only realized the impact of abuse in recent
years.

These changes and expanded reporting periods for sexual abuse and molestation claims will continue to
increase claim costs and settlement size, which will further lead to increased premiums and even some carriers
to change their coverage offering, whether by providing only a sublimit of coverage or changing the language in
which coverage is triggered.

3. Law Enforcement

Arguably the largest driving force behind the significant market shift over the last few years in the public sector
space, Law Enforcement Liability is a coverage offering that is keeping most insurance company executives up
at night.

Whether it's the impact of an officer discharging their firearm or the recent movement by groups to defund the
police, Law Enforcement Liability claims are increasing in frequency and severity and are making it increasingly
difficult for carriers to provide the necessary capacity at an affordable price point, which negatively impacts
insureds and their ability to afford and obtain proper coverage to insulate themselves from a large claim.

Another factor behind the increased scrutiny of Law Enforcement claims is the uptick in use of cameras and
video recording equipment. Law Enforcement officials have increased their use of body and dashboard cameras
to monitor and record incidents which, in theory, should yield more positive results and outcomes in a court
case should protocols and training have been deemed to be followed. The flip side of this, however, is that the
public is also using cell phone cameras and other devices to monitor their interactions with law enforcement,
which has resulted in a larger public eye on events through social media. This can result in outrage over events
involving law enforcement and triggers the potential of larger settlements due to increased public scrutiny.

4. Reduction in Market Participation
Through the middle of 2021, a very prominent MGA cut their renewal capacity back to a $2M limit, the

maximum amount of capacity they could offer without the reinsurance support they had from prior years. Given
the difficulty in the class, this facility was unable to secure and renew their reinsurance support in the spring,

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




A and H
which led to significant difficulty and market maneuvering prior to 7/1. The result is a serious impact to renewal
results for those clients that partnered with this facility over the years.

When capacity in the public sector marketplace disappears or is significantly reduced, the cost to replace it
through another carrier has become much more expensive. For example, we've been seeing the marketplace
price an alternative primary $5M layer roughly 15% - 25% higher (and sometimes much more depending on loss
history/development, jurisdiction, exposures and whether or not tort protection is available) than an incumbent
carrier's expiring $10M limit. On top of this, renewal disruption is further driven by the lack of carriers in the
current marketplace with the ability to offer $10M in limits, directly excess of the insured's retention. We are
now seeing the use of at least two carriers to fill out the expiring primary limits on the majority of these
placements. Given the carriers’ guidelines for pricing relativity to the layer below them, each additional market
added to a placement significantly drives up the premium.

A Light at the End of the Tunnel?

While the current liability marketplace may look bleak for municipalities, there have been a few new entrants
into the space. We are not seeing the abundance of capacity offered in years past, but it does promote more
solutions and potentially even more carrier competition on accounts. This should yield better results for the
smaller and less loss-heavy accounts.

It is of the utmost importance for retail agents and insureds alike to communicate openly and often about the
expectations of their insurance renewal and ensure these conversations are taking place at least four to five
months in advance, sometimes longer, of their renewal date. Brutal honesty and supporting, factual information
from the incumbent underwriters will help facilitate important and meaningful conversation and will continue to
help manage expectations so insureds understand what to expect when their renewal date comes.

The addition of an expert wholesale broker knowledgeable of the current market climate with deep carrier
relationships, both in the primary insurance and reinsurance markets, will ensure that the client is getting the
best result available in the marketplace. To drive the optimal result for the client, retail agents must be prepared
with complete submissions including at least 10 years of ground up and uncapped loss runs, along with fully
completed supplemental applications, vehicle schedules and budgets.

To go a step further, carriers are increasingly asking for information regarding law enforcement training as well
as policies and procedures, so retail agents and insureds must be able to produce supporting documentation. As
with all firm markets, the need for underwriting information and questions greatly increases, but with proper
preparation and adequate time, a successful renewal is absolutely attainable.

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




A..H

[Insurance

Appendix E — Coverage Comparison

The following is a spreadsheet which shows the coverages Pool/Pact provides compared other carriers that will
contemplate insurance for public entities. We update this spreadsheet annually as carrier appetite and coverage
forms change, and as carriers enter and exit the marketplace for public entities. It acts as quick reference guide
for our marketing efforts.

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




ON v/N ON ON oN oN OoN OoN ON SaA SUOISI23(] S32IM3G
pue a8esano) ‘sweioig
dIVdN U0 3j0A
oN V/N oN ON oN ON OoN OoN oN SOA S33WWOD
uo uonediped
ON /N ON oN OoN ON oN ON ON S3A $10322.iQ jo pieog
uo diysiaquidpy Buijop
S3IAIIS| epeAap ul uol| "asnoy ui swiep sjooyas| asedyjjeay pajiw) ‘Ajljigen|  s8uipying ( 0 s310N
B13X3 OU -Ajuo|a|qjieae jou|jesuadwor) pUE S32IAI3S 03 3|gjteAe Ajuo| pue sjooyds| siAjjigel) | |euolssajoud| |eauolsly  [sadiasas/swesdoud
uonesadwor)| -sn|g-unj|  SIa3JopA |043U0D 5507 ‘Ajuo Apadoud Op [|!M | euolssajoud| ou pue uopnjjod a1 Jou papnpul) 4ivdN
SINIOAMN Yaunz| elwoyied| aAeH ‘saljunod -pajely 'SaUNOD|  pue 1agAd ou ‘I7d3| ssoq "ad1j0d
-3dUBINSU| 3ld SIUDIYM pue sann OuUMG/| ou'sapnual seH ‘suonedo|| uo [eandsys
ypuaz| ‘sumoj Suinias Japun aseq J0sadA}|  awos uo pooyy| ‘sjuswpedap
Ay pue| -3auUULE OO | uonepdnd|  juaseyip| pue axenbypes a1
EpEAIN Uiim sapgiua 104 13jjo| ou ‘uc ey
ul wesSoud oiqnd pue|  sweaSoud| ued ‘a8es3A02| [IM A3y} sjsu
€ aAey Jou SaND JIeWS | JUSIBYIP| PIWI| ‘SIILISIP| 0] BAIJIIjaS
S30pP ydIym -13}3p3e(o)| ‘Buidexded |e1dads pue ‘1alued
snidiunuu ou‘jood 03f ‘saniedpunw| payiwpe
‘Yyounz a|qesedwos ‘sjooyas| -siappAel)
‘BpeA3N -Juel|iy| ‘UedI WY JB3ID)
pue
MELVES
jou Aew Jo
Aew ydiym
PlHOM
paliy
ydnoupy
98eJan0d
SIJUM
51y 2lgnd
— Dol
34 punz P3Ily  SULE[ OljoL PSRNV FIPED  JUelly UBHeWy el  SISPAEIL dIVdN S2135 /59881900




OoN V/N oN ON OoN ON OoN OoN oN SaA SIUBLISSISSY
S@ijoeld pue WajsAg
$30UN0S3Y UBWNKH
ON /N oN OoN OoN ON OoN ON ON SIA a0ue)SISSY
SunuUAA suoidudsag gor
ON Y/N ON ON ON ON ON oN ON SOA Suues)
SIS Juswadeuey
P3dSUBAPY pue [e11uass]
OoN Y/N ON ON ON ON oN ON ON s S3VIALDS JusWaBeuey
-uo pue 3ulues| [sadunosay uewny
-3 '‘auljuo ‘auoyd
ON V/N ON ON ON OoN ON ON ON we.Foid uoneanp3/Suuel |
dIVdN ul papnjuj $324N0s3Yy UeWnH
S3DIAY3S 1DVd/100d
ON Y/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON SIA Suidug
pue sadIAJas ‘swesdoly
10 Ajigeueisng
pue AJijigejs wus
3u07 0] JUBaWIIWWOT
oN V/N ON oN oN oN ON ON ON SIA sanualde ognd epeaaN
0} Aj2]05 pajedipag
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON SIA EpeAIN Ul
spuny 3uldsay sny} ‘1 Jvd
PUE 100d Aq paumQ
SI24NSUjay [eNINiy
aande yosduoy
OoN Y/N oN OoN OoN oN oN oN OoN SIA S210110d Bulwianon
Saysiiqejs3 pieog
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON S9A (L2Vd) 9661 Pue (100Od)
L86T 22Uls p3133lIp
PuUE paumo J13quiajy
3id Younz PallY “SULEN OBOL PV TipPRED JUelly Uesiisty 3esin SI9[PARI] dIVdN SPINIBG/Sa5EIIN0D)



ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON 215 uoneynsuc)
-uo pue ujules| [juawaSeueyy
-8 '9UIUO ‘Buoyd [4sty |BUOISS3JOId
sadAIRg/suesSold
JuawaBeuep) ysiy
OoN v/N ON ON oN oN oN oN OoN 235-uo Buiuiesn
pue Suiules|a 'saA |-3 Jaquiapy pleog
ON V/N oN ON ON ON ON OoN OoN 3}Is5-uo Suuiesy meq soya3
pue Suiuiea|a 'sap
ON V/N OoN ON ON ON ON ON ON 3}I15-Uo Buiues |
pue Suiuiea)a ‘sa) [me Bunaapy uadp
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON a)s-uQ doysyiop
IDIUBUIIAOS) BAI}ISO4
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON As-uQ sdoysyopm
Agen siepyo siang
ON V/N ON oN ON ON OoN ON ON| 3Ul|-uo ‘JeuIgapp |leulgaps
10T 1OVd/100d
V/N 3 ;
pue pieog & 3AO0
ON Y/N ON ON ON ON ON oN ON ays Suiuied |
U0 ‘3ulj-Uo ‘suoyd |pue aoue)sissy s, Jadeuepy
‘wesdold 2oUeIsISSY
22A0jdw3 aAIsuaIxg
OoN V/N ON ON OoN oN ON ON oN SBA Ja1I3SMaN
PUE SUB|Y ‘SIBUIGIAA
$22IN0SaY UBWNH
ON V/N oN ON ON ON ON ON ON SIA juawdojaasq saiijogd
$32UN0SIY UBLINH
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON OoN OoN 3lIs-uo uoneynsuoD
pue auljuo ‘suoyd |a3isuQ pue auoydaja |
ON V/N ON oN oN OoN OoN ON ON paiojiey |[enue ainpasoid
PUE papinoid |3 Adjjod [9pojN
5d  (pung PNV SULEN ObjoL PIEIUIY  BIPpES  JUely UBSUSUIy €305  SISPAEIL dIVdN S32A19G /538812007




OoN V/N ON ON ON ON oN ON ON| Buiutes; [euoi8ay |wesSoud Buiuien
J3ymedsiq Acuadiaw]
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON OoN oN SOA $321N0say uouaAalg
$507 Juawpedaq a4
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON SaA sHpny
Ajijde4 uonualaqy/per
ON /N ON ON ON OoN ON OoN ON| Buiuies|a ‘sul  |uoneynsuoy
uo ‘auoyd ‘ajis-uo 9 Sujuies) Juawadiogug
MET [BUOISSD)0.d
ON V/N OoN ON ON ON OoN oN ON SIA SJUIWSSISSY HIOoMIBN
3AISSed - AJUND3ag 1agAd)
oN V/N OoN OoN ON oN ON ON ON SAA SJUBWISSISSY
Ajiigessuinp
pJezeH 3ou3sig |00Y25
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON S9A saidljod
19POW Jier 3 suonesadg
JUSWI0JUT MET]
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON SaA (9%ST J2qWBIN - %S/ dd)
SjueID) JuBWIBeUR|A YSIY
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON S9A {%001)
SJUEIS) [euonIEdNp]
Juawadeueiy ysiy
ON V/N oN ON ON OoN ON ON ON SAA spiemy weidoid
32U3||22X3 |0JjU0)) S5O
ON V/N oN ON ON OoN ON ON ON SaA weidoud Bujulesy aiy
3ulj-uo suonnjosiadie |
ON V/N ON ON ON OoN ON ON ON SaA (JuawaBeuey
SA@s) AUluO SAs
ON V/N ON ON ON oN oN OoN ON SIA sISAjeuy spual] sso7
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON s saullsping Ajajeg
-U0 pue Buiuies| |3 Juawadeuel ysry
-3 ‘suljuo ‘suoyd
aid §a1nZ pPallly ~Sulgjy oDjo ] =mpnRen JUeljy UeSsuwy jealsy SI9[@ARIL dIVdN SDIAIBS /sa8eIanon)




ON

sweidoid |ejdads

Y/N OoN oN OoN ON OoN oN OoN SIA |[2suno)
3PISINQ pue sAsUIoNY
1aquaiA Joj doysyIOAn
A891e15 uoiedii
oN Y/N ON ON oN ON OoN ON OoN SaA SM3IA3Y pual] swiep)
ON V/N ON ON ON ON oN ON OoN SAA WBISAS
|043U0D) 150D uones
SAA V/N SOA SIA SBA SIA SIA SIA SIA SIA 321G JudwaBeuely
uonesy pajealpag
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON SIA 44E1S
UORERSIUIWPY SwieD
paseg epeAaN pajedpag
SIA V/N SaA SAA S3A SaA SIA SaA SIA SIA suny ssoq Apapend
L= =) NETS
suiie;/uoljednn
ON v/N ON ON OoN ON ON ON ON SIA [epod Sujusea
-3 JUaWa2JI04u] MET
ON V/N ON OoN ON ON ON ON ON SIA jerod Suiulean)
-3 S32.N0S3Y uewny
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON SIA |exod
8ulwies-3 1Jvd/100d
ON V/N OoN ON ON ON oN ON OoN SOA auluQ AJeiqi] aounosay
juawadeuepy sy
ON V/N OoN ON ON ON oN oN ON SOA SI3})3|SMBN pue S3DIAIBS
wel30id SSaU||RA
OoN Y/N ON OoN oN ON OoN ON oN SSA wetdold ssauj3pn
JeipieD Juawaliay
404 314, A33jeS dijgng
ON Y/N OoN oN ON OoN ON ON ON| 8uluies) [euoiday (swnisodwAg
Juawadeuei Y1y
5id  yspng Pallly  SumE objoL PITEILIY  RIPRED Uy UESUSWy1eal)  SIBPAEIL diVdN $3JIMI3G /538813000



V/N V/N| SIgejieay 3|gejieny 3|ge|leAy JON 2lqelieAy|  319E|IBABI000'000'00TS | 2gejieae 310N|00°000'000'00E pool4 ‘03
10N spwi ygiy ueyj 1ayio sjuad 48430
[V 92U3.1un22(Q J4ad sy
V/N V/N 5507 JO sasnen)
IOVHIAOD ALH3IdOYd
ON Y/N oN ON ON ON ON OoN OoN SAA syuesd
JJUEISISse Y| LTI'H pue
SJ1eyD JIejs ‘5302 dinespAy
si0jelado soue|ngury
ON V/N OoN OoN ON ON oN OoN ON S3A suondadsu| 1eay patesju)
ON Y/N ON oN OoN OoN ON ON ON SOA EEIINETS
8uisa] 34 Jojeuidsay
oN V/N ON ON oN ON ON oN oN SIA IIPIWWoD
|0JJU0D) 507 SJaquiajy
ON /N ON ON OoN oN oN ON ON SOA SapINg Juawadeue|n 5507
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON S9A SIsIppaByD uonoadsuj-yes
ON /N ON oN ON ON ON ON ON SOA suoizadsu| Apadoug
oN V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON OoN SIA Suiuea
3 AJ34ES pUE |0JJU0)) SSOT
ON /N ON oN OoN ON OoN ON ON SIA S82IAUSS [04JUOD) $507
AI}IBIDIU| pajEdIPRQ
SIIIAIDS jOLJU0D) S50
ON V/N ON ON ON ON ON ON ON S9A $ysl Ayjua orgnd
EpPeASN 0} juejiodul
53nss) uo uiAgqoT
passap §1 pansu Y/N paJisap paiisap| paJisap Ji paJnsul patisap paJisap paisap pansap Ji dIYdN {(Ajlenuue
Aq 10} pred ‘suopn §1 paunsui J1 paunsui Ag| Aq oy pied ‘auop J1 painsui| 41 painsul 41 padnsul Aq|paunsul Ag Joj| Aq oy pled ‘sa)  |papuas “siA £ AJaAa
Aquoj| soj pred ‘auop AqQ 10} Aqioy| oy pred ‘auop pled ‘suoN 3}iS-uQ) sukUOD) pue
pied ‘auon pled ‘auon| pied ‘suon s8uipjing jo s|esiesddy
3id ysunz Py SUMEN OBjoL PRIV  IS33ED JUElly UEsPwy 1Es1n BEEN] divdN S92IAIRS /Sa8eIBn0)



V/N /N J91ued 4313 J3lued ypm S| J3auaed yiim, Hwiigns Jwigns Juwigns Jwigns Auadold |euosiag
U3Im sy Gumsyunyl - 32219s ‘a|gejieay| spwi| 393jas| 03 papnjou) O} papnppujf e} papnpull  ou papnau|
129135 103)9s ‘a|qejieay ‘d|qejieAy
‘9)gejieAy
v/N Y/N 131442 43LUIED| IBLLED YYIM SHWY|  JaLIeD YIM Jwingns Jwigns juwigns Jlwgns 159431U1 pjoyasea)
YJIm s3Il UM siwgll - 329(9s 'a|qejieAy| S3iwi| 19913s| 03 papnjou| 0} papnjauj| 03 papnjau| ou papnjau) Suipnppur Ausadoud |eay
129135| 123|3s 'B|qe|IeAYy ‘d|qejeay
‘3]gejieAy
23e12A0) Jo adodg
v/N V/N| 2[qejieay Slqejieny| Jalued yum spwl)| solued yim|  jwigns Hwigns nwigns yungns uonowsaq
199125 'B|qe|leAy| s)wWI| 303|3s| 0} papn|ou| 0} papnpuj| 01 papnjau) ou papn|auj
‘3|qejieAy
V/N V/N| 2l1qe|ieny Jlqejieay d]qe|leAY JON| JBLUED yum Humgns jugns Jwiygns jugns (uonnjjod)
s}Wi| 392185 0} papn|ou| O3 papnjau|| 01 papnjau| ou papnju| dn-uea|) jo 3503
‘31qejleay
V/IN V/N| 2lgepeay 2IqejleAY| JILLED YIM SYIWI) JBLLED YyUm|  pwigns Jwigns jwingns jwingns [eAoway sugaq
199]9s '3|qejleAy| s}iwi| 109]9s| 03 papnjau| 03 papnjaul| o3 papnjau) ou papnpuj
‘a|gejieAy
Y/N V/N| 3l|qejieay IQEjieAY| JBLLED Ypm spun||  JaLued ypm|  wigns yungns nuigns Hnungns Jsues)
109195 '3|qejieAy| siwi| 123jas| 03 papn|ou| 03 papnpuj| 031 papnpu) ou papnjau|
‘3|qejieAy
/N V/N| 2|qejieAy S[QE|lBAY| J3LLIED YJim S|  JSLIED UM HWIGNs{000'000°00T % Ajdde sy Jlwgns MET 10
123138 ‘a|gejieAy| sWI| 10913s| 0} papnjou| ‘3qpeay ou papnpu| 2IUBUIPID UOIINIISUOD
‘a|qe|ieAy }0 350D as5ealdu|
V/N W/N| 9ige|ieAy JIGEIIBAY| JaLLIED L3IM s} | JSLIED YNm| uoliqos +$|000'000°00T S Aldde sy jungns (vav)
10919s '9|qe|leAy| syiwi| 3093 ‘3[q|ieay ou papnjauj S12€ |eJapay Buipnjoul
‘a|qejieay @dueulpJo Buipping
V/N V/N| 2|qejieay aqejeay 2|qe|leAy JON 2[qelleAy|  3|qejieAR(000'000'00T$ | 219e/ieae 10N|00°000'000'0S T (91e82188y) axenbype]
1ON| swi) y3iH
V/N V/N| 2iqejieny 3|qejreAy I|qe|ieay JoN 3|qelieAy|  3|GE|IRAB|000'000'00T$ | 2igeleAe JoN 00000000'ST Hwngns
JON| sy ydiy 2)e83.88y v auoz pooj4
V/N V/N| Slqejieay a|qe|leAy a|qejleAy JON SIGelleAY|  BiGE|IEARIO00°000'00T$ | 3Igepieae JoN 00°000'000'0ST (91e82188y) pooj4
10N| sywij y3iy
3id {ounz Psllly  Suugpy obo] PIBIIY HEBED) Ul UeSieWy Jesin SISEAeI] divdN SIDIAIBS /sa8eIBA0D)




v/N V/N Js1ned JaLuen 8|gejieAe JON| Ja1ued yum| a|gepieay 3|gejleAy| a|gejieae JoN ywigns juswdinba 3ajigow
yyim s Y3IM spuwi| sjwi| 12318s ou papnpu| 10 S3]21Y3A 104 poo|4
128]35| 123]3s ‘9|ge|leAy ‘a|qejeay
‘3|qejieAy
Y/N V/N 19Lued J314ed a|gejieAe JON| JaLuUed yum| anpayos 2Inpayos 3INpayss | anpayds sad ADVY a8ewe( |e2ISAY4 0INY
YHM s Um sy SHWI 1d33s lad Jad ADV 49d ADV Jo | Jo 3y papnpouj
123195| 13|35 ‘9|qe|leAy ‘AqeieAY | ADV 40 DY | 40 DY PAPNIIY| | DY PapNpUj
‘a|gejieAy papnjou)
v/N V/N JaLued J3uUed| JauIed YHm sjwi||  JaLued aim|  djqejieae a|qejieae jou yuwi| @npayas Jad ADY Juswdinb3 ajIqow
UM s3I UM SHWI| - 30913s '9|ge|ieAy| sjlwi| 199(as jou 03 Papniau|| 40 Dy p=pnjou)
199]9s| 103|3s ‘a|ge|ieAy ‘a|qeeny
‘3|aejieAy
Y/N V/N auued J9LUED| J3JED Y}m SHWI||  JBLLIBD YyIm Hwgns Jwigns Hwigns jugns siaded sjgenjep
Yam syl Yum sjiwnf - 333[3s '9|qefieAy| sHwI| 123|3s| 03 papn|ou| 03 papnjaujf 03 papnpu| Ou papnjau|
329195| 10912S 'a|qejleAy ‘d|qejeAy
[19ejieAy
v/N /N J3Lued JoLIED| JSLJED UM SHWI|  JSLUED YHM Juwigns yungns jwingns juwgns 3|(BAI9I3Y SIUNOIIY
WM sy YUM sl 303)3S "9jqE|IBAY/| SHWI| 1D3(8s| 0] papn|du) 031 papnaul| - 03 papn|au| ou pspnjou|
122]3s| 129135 ‘3|qge|leny ‘a|qe|ieay
‘a|qejieAy
v/N Y/N Jated J3UJed| JBLUED YPM SHWI [ JBLIED ypm Hugns Hwgns Hwygns Jjwigns juawdinbs
U3im sqiwy Yumspwiyl - 309(9s ‘9|gejieAy| S| 123|35| 03 papnjau| 03} papnjduj| 03 papnjau| ou papnjau] pajuad 10 paseaT
123|385 3103135 ‘I|ge|leAy ‘a|gejieAy
‘2|gejieay
V/N V/N i3LLed JaLIED| JBLIED UJIM S| JBLIED YHMm Hwigns Huwigns Huwigns Hwigns ElpalN A3
Yim spug| Yimsjwil - 39913 ‘a|ge|ieay| sjiwi| 309(3s| 03 papn|au| 01 papnjpujf  ©3) papnpauj| Ou papnjou)|
103|3s| 19|25 ‘B|qE|IeAY ‘a|qe|leay
‘a|qeneny
Y/N /N iauJed A31JED| IBIUED UJIM ST JDLUED Yim Jwigns Hugns jwygns Huwnqgns juawdinb3y 4a3
Uim s3iw| UM syl 10a(as ‘s|qejieay| syiwi| 12313s| 03 papnau) 0] papnjau)| 01 papnpu| Ou papnpu|
123]2s| 123|95 ‘B|qe|leAy ‘[]qejieay
‘ajqejieAy
3id ysunz Pallly  TOUMEN OB{O] PIYEIYY  JSTERED Wely Ued[isliyjeal5  Si[eAei] "diVdN SN /598RIIN0D




V/N /N Jated JaLued wniwaid| Jauued ypum Jwigns Jwigns Jnwigns Juwigns uoieEdO|
Yum sy Y3m syt |[euonIppe|  sjiwij 3033s| 03 papn|ou| O3 papnpulf - 03 papnau| Ou papnpauy| PaJ3A02 0 3934 000T
123(3s| 123|3s ‘3|gejieay| -3|qe|ieAe aq Aey ‘3|qe|leay UIY3IM S3UI| UOISSILLISUEBS |
‘3|qejieny
Vv/N v/N Jauied Jaiued wniwaJad| Jaiued yym Hwigns Jwigns ywigns|  000'000°0T$ uoI32NIISU0D)
YHM s UM S| |[euonjippe| sywi| 3193}3s| 03 papnjou| 03 papnpujf o3 papnpuj( o1 dnasieyd ou |Jo 9s1n0D) ayj ul Ajadoly
}2319s| 109195 'B|qe|ieAy| -D|Qe|IEAR 3 AB|A| ‘[|qe|leAy
‘3)gejIeAY
/N V/N Japsed BETHIL:S) wniwaid| Ja14ed ypm uwigns ywgns uwigns|  000'000'0T$ Apadoud pajonisuod
yim sy YuMm sy |[euCiyppe| s}iwi| 323]3s| 03 papnjau| 03 papnpuj| 03 pepnpu|| o3 dn a8ieyd ou 10 pasinboe ApmapN
10995 109195 ‘3|qejleay| -a|ge|ieAe ag Ae ‘3|qeieAy
‘S|gejieAy
V/N V/N SETIN el Jalued wniwaJd| J31ued yum nuwgns Jugns Juwgns Jwrigns asuadx3 enx3 4a3
Y3 s Ylm sy [BUORIPPE| S3ILUI| 33|95 O} papn|ou| 03 papnpujl 03 papnpu| ou papnpauj
123|9s| 109|2s ‘3|qe|ieAy| -3|qe|IEAE 3q ARl ‘a|qe|ieAy
‘31ge|IeAY
V/N V/N J3lued i3Lued wniwaid| Jased ypm JHwgns Jwigns Jwgns yungns asuadx3 esyx3
Yim s yum sy [euonlippe| s3iwij 323|3s| 03 papnjou| 03 papnppul| 01 papnpull  ou papnjau)
129195| 129|9s 'B|qejleAy| -3|qejieAe aq Aejn ‘3|qejIeAy
‘3|qEjIeAY
V/N /N Jaied 1a1ed wnwaid| J21Ied yum Bwigns Jwqns Jyungns Hwigns awodu| ssauisng
Yim sy YIm syl IEUCRIPPE| sjlwi| 323|3s| 0] papn|ou| 03 papnaujj 03 papn|ou| Ou papnpauy
12919s| 129js ‘9|qejleAy| -3|qejleAE aq Aej ‘3|qejieAy
‘3)gejieny
V/N V/N 1311ed Ia1ued wniwaid| JsIuEd ypm Jwgns Jwigns ywigns Jwgns SMY aul4
Uhim syl UM sy [EUORIpPE| S}l 133[9s| 03 papnu| O3 papnppujf o3 papnpujf  ou papnpu|
123[9s| 123|9s 'a|qe|leAy| -a|qejieae aq Aepy ‘a|qejieay
‘2|qe)ieAy
Y/N v/N JaLued JaLued wniwaid| Jswied yum|  a|qejieae a|qejieae JoN| 3|gejieae JON yuigns juawdinba
Yaim s Yim syl [euonippe| sjwij309)9s 1ON OuU papnjau| 2[IqowW 10 S9PIYaA 40 DI
123j3s| 123|935 ‘3|gejieAy| -a|gejieAe aq Aey ‘3|qe|leAy
‘3jgejieAy
34  punz P3IlV  SULE oBjoL PRIV MIPAE)S  JUENy Uiy sl  SiajaAei] dIvdN S2IMIG/538€1N0D)



V/N V/N| 2|qejieay J|qe|leAy J0N d|qejieAy 10N Qal| sseyund|  sjqejieAy JoN| 3|gejieae JoN 000'000's$ SUoISSIWQ
10N 104 jwigng 40 5J0.13 |euouajuIun
a|gejieay
v/N V/N| 2|qejieay 3|gejleAy JON 3|qejieAy 10N adl| eseyound| 3|gejieay JoN aseyasnd Jungns 5934 532932y
10N 10y 104 d|qejieAy|  ou papn|auj
slqejleny
V/N V/N| 3jgejieay 3|qejieAy JoN a|qe|leAy JON ggl| eseyound aseyound aseyound jwigns 28esan07) Jajlog
10N 10} 104 3|qejleay| 1oy a|qejieay|  ou papnju) Y3Im 3sne|d) ssoT Jujor
J|qejleAy
V/N Y/N| 2|qejeay 3|gejieAy JON 3|gejleay JoN Qgl SaLEA SOUBA salleA| ssofJad aquiaw | 2|qaNpaq adueujUIR
JON J3d S3LEA
SUODISIADI [epdads
V/N V/N| 3lqejieAe| 3|gejieae syiwi s|qejieae sy S|qejieAe|  3|qe|leAe| 3|qejieAe s}wi| 3|qejleAe| adueINSUIOD ON uoisiaoid aduesnsulo)
syl 2 S2UBINSUIOD| S2UBINSUIOD %001 SHw| sl 2 92UBINSUIOD ST
JueInNsuIod %0071 10 %06 ‘%08| @2UeINSUIOD| dUBINSUIOD %001| Sd2ueinsuiod
%00T 40 10 %06 ‘%08 %00T| %001 40 10 %06 ‘%08 %001
%04 %08 10 %04 %0 %04 ‘%08 40 %04 %08
V/N V/N| 2{qejieay I|qejieay 9[qejleay S|qejleay|  9jqejieAy 3jqejieny|  Ajdde syl pa[npayos juswidinb3
‘a|qeieAy Se saljddy 3[IgoN pUe SaPIYap
JBN[EA YSeD) [enjoy
V/N V/N| 3lgejieay 9|qe|leay 3|gejieny d|qelleAy|  s|qejieAy dlqejieAy|  Ajdde syl P=|npayos S32IUBA
‘21qeieay se sal|ddy Ajjeads ‘aouenquiy
‘3J14 p3Inpayds
404 1507 Juswadeday
V/N V/N| 3l|gejeAy s|ge|leay dqe|leay S|qejlery|  3|qejieny s|qejieay alqe|leAy| (e 0] saljddy juswdinby
dQ3 pue Ajadouy
[euosiad ‘Auadosd
B3y 350D Judwade|da
V/N OljEN|E
V/N V/N Jauues i8ued wniwaid| Ja1ued yum nungns Hwigns Hwigns| 1wi| 000'000'0TS a8eJan0) suonipuod)
YiIm sywi) UM s3Iy [euonIppe| sywi| 393[as| 03 papnu| 0} papnjauj| 03 papn|au| Ul 32U313441g WSO |
103[95| 323135 ‘2|qQe|leAYy| -3|qE|IRAR 3G ARjN ‘a|qeieay
‘d|ge[IEAY
3ld PRz Pally  SULEN OB{oL BIERES juEly UeSHswWy jearn SI9[9AEIL dIVdN $32IAIBS /53FeI2A0D)




Y/N V/N| 2iqejleAy a|ge|leny alqe|leAy 10N 2|gejleay|  aseyaind aseyound =sey2nd|{00'000'sZ asuadx3 Sunipadxy
|euonippe [euonippe [euoRIppe
10j ajejieAy 10 3jejleay|  10j 3jejieAY
V/N V/N| 2|gejieay a|qejleAy a|qe|leany JoON J|gepieay|  aseyaund aseyaund aseyaund|00'000'0SZ ase|lodg
|euonippe |euoiippe [euocnippe
104 JEjIEAY 10j ajejieny| 1oy a|e|leAy
V/N Y/N| 3lqejieay a|qe|ieAy 3|gejleay JoN a|qe|leay| aseydnd aseyd.nd asey2.nd|00°000'05Z $32UBISqNS SNopJezey
|eucnippe |euonippe |[euonippe
104 3jejIeAY J0j ajejieAy| oy 3jejieAY
V/N| 2l|gejieay s|qejleAy S|qejlEAY JON d|gejieay Sjungng
V/N V/N| 21q9e|leAy a|qejieAy 2|q€|leAy JON aqejieAy Clliq]000'000'001 $ 35e42.4nd|00°000'000°00T 92Ua.N330 Jad sywin
0Sv$ 01dn |euoilippe $507 2wodu) duipnput
10} 3|ejieAy a8eweq Apadoiy
a3e1aA0
op)ealg juawdinb
V/N V/N| 2lgejieay|  3|qejieay JoN 2|ge|leay 10N dlqejleAy|  3jgejleAy|  3jqejieAy JON sseyound a8.1eyd Jainseas] Ajunos)
JON JON JON |euolippe ou ‘uoisod Pa122(3 1da0xa sjeil0
11 SMqeUeAY) 124 0000018 | e puog uomsoq jonuelg
03 dn MmEs Jag SJueulIoyRd |Nyylle4
V/N V/N| 3lqejieay Jlgejieay JoN 9|qejieAy JoN 2lqeieAy|  3|qejieny|  s|qejieAy JON asey24nd|00'000'005 asuadx3 Jeaiy | Ajundag
10N 10N 10N |[euoiippe
10} s|gejleAy
V/N V/N| 2lIq9ejieay|  3jgejieAy JoN S|QEjiEAY JON dIqelleAY|  B|qejleAy|  3jqejieAy JON 3sey2und|00°000'005 Aduauind
JON JON 10N |euolippe Jaded papiajunod
10} 3jgejieay| ‘Adadlioy ‘Auejding
‘Yay ‘Aysauoysip
aahojdwa Suipnpu
| A
38e13A07) 3
aid ysunz Pally  “sulE oMo L PRIBILIY I3RS ey Uesislly jeaiy SIS[BABIL dIvdN S0INIBG /sadelano)




V/N IDVHINOD ALV
V/N V/N| 2igqejieay 3|qe|leAy ajgejieny JON 3|qejieAy| aseyaund aseyaund aseydind SOA adueuIpIO Bulpjing
|[euonippe |[euolippe |Eucnippe
10} ajejieAy 10} ajejleAy|  10j 3je|lBAY
/N Y/N| 3|qejeay a|qejieAy 3|qejieAy JON I|qe|leAy| aseydund aseyound aseyaund SOA asne|D $s07 Juior
[euonippe |eucnippe j[euonippe
10J s|e|leAYy JOj 3ejleAy| 10y) JjejieAy
Y/N Y/N| 2|qe|eAy 3|ge|leAy 3|qe|leAy JON a|qepeay| aseyound aseyaind aseyaund SAA uLo4
|euonippe |euonjippe |euonippe sn|d aasuayaidwo?
10j 9|e|IeAy 10} dejieAy| 104 3jE|IEAY
V/N V/N| 3|gepeay a|qejieay 2|qe|ieAy JON 3|qejleay| aseydund aseya.nd aseyaund SaA juawsde|day Jo Jedsy
|euonippe jeuocijippe |[euonippe
10} a|e|leAy 10j 3e|leAY|  JOj 3ejleAy
V/N V/N| 2lgejeay a|qe|leAy 3]qe|leAy JON 2|qejieay| aseyound aseyaund aseyaund SIA 33/571V 28ewe 12a211py|
|euonippe [euolippe |euonippe
104 aje|ieny 10§ BjE|lEAY|  1OJ 3|E|lEAY
Y/N V/N| 3|gejieay 3|gejieay 3|gejieAy JON 3|qejieay| aseyaund aseyaund aseyound SaA (Aiddng
[eucnippe |euonippe |[euonippe 3|05) uondnusiu Ajn
10] BE|IBAY 104 Bje|leAy| 104 J|e|leny|
Y/N Y/N| 2|gejieay ajqe|ieay J|qe|ieAy JoN 2|gejieay| aseyound aseydund aseyund|00'0000T sjuawanosdw|
|euonippe [euonippe |[euonippe Asiy [€214323|3
10J ajejleAy 10} 3jejleAy|  10j aje|leAy
Y/N V/N| 3|qejieay a|qejieay a|qejieay 10N 3|qejieay| aseydund aseyound aseyaund|00'000'00T UOIRI01SIY BIRQ
[euonippe [euonippe |euonippe
10) ajejieAy Joj 3jejieay|  10J 3|ejieAy

5id gounz 3V TSUDE opjoL PNy I1IPRE[D  JUEY UBHSWYIEald  SiajoAei] diVdN $20IAI9G/52884310))



V/N V/N| 3lqejleay 3|qejieay s|qe|leae JON a|qejleny 00| Z00'000'0Z$| 000'000'0TS| 00°000'0000T JUaA3 J3d pally/paumo
0'000'01$ o1dn o1dn -uou Suipnpul
o3 dn sywig Ayjigen) oany
V/N V/N| 2lqejleay alqejleay 2|qe[ieAe JON a|qejleay 00 100°'000°0Z$| 000'000°0T$| 0000000001 juaag sad
0'000'01$ o1dn o3dn Aujiger] uonensiuwpy
01dn syjauag aahojdwy
V/N V/N| 2iqejleay alqe|ieay 9|qejieAe JON 2lqejleay 00| 000'000°0Z$ 0000'0T$| 00000'000°0T JU3A3 J3d
0'000'01% 01 dn o1dn dd ‘I8 ‘pie jenjnw 'sjy3u
o1dn 12 Buipnpoul Ajjigen
JUBWI2I0JUTF MET]
Y/N V/N| 2lqejleay a|qe|leay 3|qejiene Jo0N djqejieay |  sseyound|  s|gelieny JON| d|ge|leAy 1ON papnjaul ad / 19 uonnjjod
104 JusWIeal ] JIIEAA
a|qejieae
afesanod
21esedas
Y/N V/N| 2Iqejleay dlqejleAy S|GE|IBAE JON d|qejieAy Z0| 9lqejieny JON| @iqejieAy ION|  00'000'000'T  |AQd uoinjjod
0'000'0T% 03 asuodsay Aduadiawy
o3 dn
V/N V/N| 2lqe|ieay ajqejieay 2|gejieAe JON 9|QEjIEAY 10 100'000°0Z$| 000'000°0T$| 00'000'0000T (21e32.88y
0'000'0T$ oydn ordn sHW Ayligen jessuan
0y dn
V/N V/N| 2lqejleay alqejieay S|qe|leAe JON s|qejleAy 00| 000'000°0Z$%| 000'000°0T$| 0000000001 juaag sod sywry
0'000'01% o1dn olrdn Ainfuj jeuosiad ‘sdQ
oy dn paja|dwo)) ‘seanpold
Buipnpaul Ayijigen [essus
V/N Y/N| 2iqejieay 3|gejieny a|ge|leAe JoN J|qejleay| wnwiuiw 2|qeuep SaA| $s0| J2d aquaw ssoj Jad
000'sZ$ Jad sauea 3|qhRanpag dueUdJURN
V/N V/N| 2lqe|leAy o|qejieny d|qejieae JO0N S|qejleAy | S[qe|leAy|  3|qejieAe JON| 3|qejieAy JON S3A pie [eninw
pUE SJ33JUN|0A ‘33A0|dwa
'S|BIDIJO ‘SUOISSIWLILIOD
‘spJeoq ‘Al13ua sapnjou|
5id  punz Pallly  SuLiejy ObjoL PRIV  TIPNED  JUENV UESHIWYIEd)S  SISPABIL divdN $301AI95/508R1A0D)




V/N V/N| 3lqejleay s|gejleay 9|qe|ieAe J0N 3|qejleay| aseyound 000'000°'0Z% eseydrud| 0O'000'000'0T | Adjod Aujiger] wsHoua)
Joy oydn| ioy 3|qpese
s|gejleay 000'000°01%
/N V/N| 2|qe|ieay 3|gejieAy a|qgejieae JoN J|qejieAY| a|ge|leAy|  9|qe|leAy JON| 3|GB|IEAY JON| S92IAISS [BDIpaW (adndeid|ely
10N Il P3INPayds || |N3 ‘3SINN DIpsweled
snid ‘pugns
Ou ‘papniouj
V/N V/N| 2|qejieay s[qejieAy S|ge|ieAR JON Slqejleny|  S|qejleAy|  3|qejieAy JON| 2|qe|leAy 10N wgns J0id
10N ou ‘papnpu]  [sisauldug/s1oRNydly
paiojduig
V/N V/N| 2lqejieay S|gejieay s|qejieAe JoN S|qejleAy|  3|qe|iBAY|  3|JE|IEAY JION| B|qejlEeny JON jwiygns ad1eid(e [eIuspidy|
10N ou ‘papnjay|
Vv/N V/N| 2|gejieay a|qejieay 3|ge|leae JoN s|qejleAy| 3|qgejieay| 3|ge|ieAy JoN| 3|geliBAY 10N Huwigns Ajijiger] |euoissajold
JON ou ‘papnjau| s19AmeT] paAojdw]
V/N V/N| 2iqejleay d|qejleay 9[qe|leAe JO0N SIQE|lEAY|  S|qQEjlEAY|  3|qe|leAy JON jiungns juwgns SJUesesjUoN
JON 1} papnpu)|  ou‘papnpu|  |'adueseayjen
‘9IUBSEYSIN
V/N V/N| 2lqejiery S[ge|ieay 2|gejieae Jo0N dqe|leAy|  S|qejleAy|  I[ge|ieAY JON Hwingns jlungns uoReuwLISIq/SIYnY
1oN B papnpul| ou'papnpul  (AID
Sadljoeld JuswAojdw3
Y/N V/N| °|qepeay a|qejieay ajgejieAe 10N a|qejieAy| 3|gejleay|  3|qejleAy 10N Hwigns Jwigns SIYSrY [1A1D 3135
10N 13 papn|au)|  ou ‘papnpau|
V/N V/N| Slqejieay alge|ieAay S|qejieae JoN S|qejleAy|  3|qejleay|  3|qejleAy JON Jwigns Huwigns SISy 11D [esapad
10N 13 papn|puj|  ou ‘papnjdu|
V/N V/N[ 2iqejieay s|qejieny 3|qejleae 1o0N 3|qejiery|  @seyound|  a|qejleAy JON| d|qeliEAY JION|  00'000'005'Z siseq
|euonippe 2peu SWIepd - JIW-qns
104 Aiqery ssngy jenxag
3|qepeny
V/N V/N| 2iqejleay alqejieay J|qejleAe JoN 2|qe|leAy 00| @I19e'eAY JION| 3|GE|IBAY ION|  00°000'000°0T SISeq spe swiepd
0'000°0T% (21283488y/3uaA7) SN
01dn Ajjiqen 3oy nyBuoip
34 punz POIE)Y  TIPHED  jUEly UeSlPWyjeas5  Sis[eAei] dIvVdN 531A136 /59819007




000'000'T$ V/N V/N V/N 3|qe|leAy JON 3|qe|ieAy oIS 100'000'Z$|000'000'1$ 00'000'000'Z i Ajigen sisAojdwy
10N o1dn
000'000'T$ V/N V/N V/N 3|qE[leAY JON 3|qejleny oIS 000'000°Z$|000'000'1$ Alomess nwy
10N o1 dan uoiesuaduwion) SIIOAA
ON V/N V/N Y/N 3|GEjIEAY JON a|qejieny 9IS ON ON SIA IHO 3NAIRS
10N ul Jes suite|3 pajeaipag
ON V/N V/N V/N 9|qE|lEAY JON S[qE[lEAY OIS ON ON SIA 53[2AD JBAA G
JON JaA0 payjoouws sadueys)
uoNed1yIpo A 3duauadx]
IDDN V/N V/N V/N J|qe[IEAY 10N 2|qelleAy oIS I2DN IDDON 8[242 Slaquidiy
JON JeaA G ‘Buijes || Dyd 03 padojie) 103oe4
J2QUIBN | DV  |uoneayipo aouauadx3
V/N V/N V/N V/N V/N V/N V/N V/N V/N SIA siaquidiy
1OVd 03 Ajddy os|y
S82IM3S 1 2Vd/100d Y
000'000'T$ V/N| Slqeleay|  I|qejleAy JON 9|qejlEAY 10N 9|qe|leAy oIS 000'05Z$ se sapn 4aquiaiy uopesuadwo)
JON JON MO| SE UopUIIRAI|  pue JIsues] SINIOAN 4O}
pasnsul ‘aljunod saualdy 2iiqnd painsut
4125 '000'000'2$ ‘sjooyas -3(9S JO uonenOossy
03} dn 3|qejieay| Joj 3|qe|jieae
Alup
uonesuadwo?) SIHOM
V/N V/N| 2|qejieae a|qejieAe J0N 3|qejleAe JON|3|qejieAe JON|  3|ge|ieae aseyund aseyound 2e8a.83e sjwn
10N 10N |euonippe |euonippe PUE JU3AD 28esaA07) asuadsay
io} ajq|leay| Joy ajqejieae AJINDas 1agqAd Adeaud pue Ajjiger
000'000°7¢] 18d DOO'00Q'ES jusA3 Ajunaag ezeq
v/N V/N| 2|qejieae 3|qejieAe JON a|gejieae JON |3|qejiere JON|  3|qejieae aqejieae a|qejieay| sso| Jad laquaw $50| Jad
JON JON sa|quanpap|  3|quanpap Jad sauea 3|gIONpaQ SJUBUIUIBN
SNOLEA SNOLEBA
adesano)
asuodsay Adeaud
pue jJuaAj AJundas eleq
3id  punz  payly  SULE OBjOL PAIEILIY  JSIPRED  JUENY UESPSWY IEsID  SIaPAR] dIVAN  sednag/saseiano)




S|qe|ieAy JON V/N| SlgejleAy|  3|qejieAy JoN S|qe|leAy JON aqejeny OIS|  3|qe|leAe JON| s|qe|ieAy JON 3|quyonpap i
10N JON 000°5Z$ ‘P2pPn|2ut|000°'000°7$ wesBoud
Aiiigen je8a7 uonnjjod
alqejieay 10N Y/N| 2lqe|leAy|  3|qejieAy JoN 2|qe|IeAY JON a|qejeny OIS|  2iqe|ieAe JON| 9|qejieny 10N | a|gejieae uondo |a|qejieae
10N 10N 000°000'0T ¢ 03 dn sywn
wei3o.ld Ajjiqen poduy
3|qe|ieAy JoN V/N| Slgejieay|  9|qejieay JoN a|qelleay JON|  3|qejieny OIS|  3lqejlene JON | 9|qe|ieay JON 6v0¢C duppuny
16N 10N 035308 pouad  [31ns0j) 3504 /21ns0|)
Adjod tswniwaud |Asoinyeys 1oy adueinssy
uipied Ajing  [jenueuly jjypue
ON V/N V/N V/N 3|gejleay JON Iqejieay 9IS V/N V/N Suipung juswAojdwz
10N 150d 3unT pesH
ON V/N Y/N V/N 3|qelieAy JON|  3|qejieAy oIS V/N V/N paijdde Bunes acuauadxa
10N 191J€ SJUBWISSISSY
ON V/N V/N V/N 9|qejleny JON dlqejeny oIS ON ON saA welgold ssau|lap
10N LJuaWaIay 104 314,
oN /N Vv/N V/N 9|qE[IEAY 10N a|ge|leAy LIS ON ON S103€|N3al s1epuBW S3Yauaq Sun)
10N UMM BUDLOM | ieay JuswiAoidwa jsod
pue BUIAS3I | 41011835 Ul JUBWAA|OAUI
Ul PaMOAUL AN [pue ssauatemy
3id jpounz pailly  SUIEjy o0 pajeliy FENENE L) WENY UesusWy jeain SI9[PAEI] divdN S32IAI3G/S98eIaA0D)




and

SRR |

Appendix F- Municipality Accounts Managed

Amargosa Valley Library District

Beatty Water & Sanitation District

Beatty Library District

Central Nevada Historical Society

Central Nevada Water Authority

Central Lyon Fire Protection District

Esmeralda County School District

Fernley Swimming Pool District

Humboldt County

Humboldt County- Airport

Humboldt County School District

Humboldt General Hospital

Humboldt River Basin Water Authority

City of Lovelock

| Lovelock Meadows Water District

Lyon County

Mason Valley Fire Protection District

Mason Valley Swimming District

Newvada Association of Counties

Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway

Nevada League of Cities

Nevada Risk Pooling, Inc.

Nevada Rural Housing Authority

Northern Nye County Hospital District and Nye County

Pahrump Library District

Palomino Valley GID

Pershing County

Pershing County Airport

Pershing County School District

Pershing County Water Conservation District

Pooling Resources, Inc,

Town of Round Mountain

Silver Springs Stagecoach Hospital District

Silver Springs GID

Smoky Valley Library District

Skyland General Improvement District

Stagecoach General Improvement District

Storey County

Town of Tonopah

Tonopah Library District

TRI General Improvement District Tahoe Reno Industrial General Improvement District

Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency

Virginia City Tourism Commission

City of Winnemucca

Western Nevada Reginal Youth Center

City of Winnemucca Airport

City of Winnemucca AD&D

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502

| AandHins.com




and
Insurance

Appendix G- Zywave

THE MYWAVE
PortAL TooLBOX

e e —

When it comes to meeting all of your compliance and HR needs. we understand the administrative burden businesses like yours
face. To stay ahead of legislative deadlines and access timely information on the latest industry trends, organizations of all sizes
face an uphill battie without the proper tools. That's where the MyWave® Portal Toolbox can help. This resource helps you fulfil
your unique HR and compliance duties. With the applications found in the Toolbox, you can generate total compensation
statements in minutes, leverage sample job descriptions and much more, Better still, these low-maintenance solutions are
available 24/7, connecting you to services that can streamline your business and make your life that much easier —all with just a
click of a button.

ACA Reporting Custom Job Description Builder

Using the Toolbox, you can generate Forms Job descriptions are such an important tool fr
1094/1095 simply by importing your Z : your employees, but developing them can be
completed workbooks, You can even print stressful. The Custom Job Description Builder
your forms and file with the IRS or distribute to ! helps you make the most complete job

your employees—streamlining ACA ' descriptions so your employees can achieve their
compliance in three simple steps. true potential, which ultimately contributes to

the success of your business.

COBRA Notices Generator Employee Cost Calculator
Satisfying your COBRA notice obligations ; - Get a complete picture of the true cost when
does not have to be challenging. In three Q 5 hiring new employees. From compensation and
easy steps, create all six required COBRA f benefits to recruiting, training. office equipment
notices and other costs, this easy-to-use calculator
accounts for those typical expenses you may not
necessarily think about when hiring a new
employee,
Compliance Notice Builder Federal Poster Advisor
Produce customn benefits notices your Whether your company is small or large, the
company, saving hours of time and effort. ~ U.5. Department of Laber (DOL) requires you to
When laws or corporate circumstances 3 display a number of different posters in the
change, simply update the information and / workplace. Identify the required posters by
generate a new notice instantly. With using the Poster Advisor to generate a list of
Compliance Notice Builder, you'lt have the federal laws administered by the DOL, along
notices you need in minutes, plus distribution with links to download printable posters.
guidelines.
-_— Céare

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




A..H

Insurance

) X @
..
. I
o e
tHH B [ %
& -
®
i - (i) =D [t ]
A
[V Y
:" / ki -
o
4 s a
D [ s

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




'LIvE Well
Work Well

Octoher 2021

Many households were stressed about their finances
before the pandemic, but the past year has remained just
as challenging. As a result, many Americans are still
financially stressed out, which can negatively impact their
mental health. If you are experiencing financial stress,
know that you're not alone.

of American adults feel
anxious when thinking about their
personal finances

Source: Fnancial indusiry Regulatory Authority

According to a recent study, 50% of respondents said they
feel stressed when discussing their finances. This type of
stress occurs due to numerous reasons, and it 1sn't always
because of a lack of money cr resources, Financial anxiety
occurs across all income levels. Research shows that
financial stress and anxiety are often linked to low levels of
financial literacy, problematic financial behaviors and
decreased financial security.

Financial anxiety and stress can be debilitating. Consider
these coping tips from the U.S. Department of Labor:

* Increase your financial literacy. Some individuals
are anxious because they aren’t comfortable
deciphering financial information. If you feel this
way, it may be helpful to seek out financial

3301 S Virginia St Reno,

wellness programs that address money
management topics and ways you can save.

e Create a budget—and stick to it. A budget can
make you feel more in control of your money, thus
improving your mental health, stress, anxiety or
frustration. This resource may also help you build
up your savings over time and feel less stressed
about your finances in the future.

+ Switch from credit to cash. It may help to remove
credit cards from your wallet and delete these
cards from electronic payment systems and apps.
If you're not comfortable using cash during the
pandemic, stick to using your debit card and live
within your means.

* Address the topic head-on. Financial stress will not
just go away—and doing nothing may only create
more problems. It's essential to fight the urge to
avoid dealing with financial stress. In the long run,
you'll do more harm by not taking control.

If you're concerned about your financial situation, reach
out to a finandal advisor. Further, if you're feeling
significant stress, talk to a mental health professional for
additional guidance and support.

A..H

Insurance

NV 89502 | AandHins.com




and H

Insurance

According to the World Health Organization, breast cancer became the most
common cancer this year, accounting for 12% of all new cancer cases worldwide.
In addition, breast cancer is the most frequently diagnosed cancer among
American women. However, some men are also at risk for breast cancer.

The main factors that influence your risk of breast cancer include being a woman
and getting older. Additional risk factors that are out of your control include
genetic mutations, exposure to radiation therapy, your reproductive history and
your family history.

October is Breast Cancer Awareness Month. As such, this is the perfect time to
refamiliarize yourself with the following warning signs of breast cancer:

® Any change in the size or the shape of the breast

* New lumps in the breast or underarm

* Pain, thickening or swelling in any area of the breast
* [rritation or dimpling of breast skin

* Nipple discharge other than breast milk

Screenings can’t prevent cancer, but early detection can make treatment more
effective. Women ages 45 to 54 should get a mammogram each year, while
women age 55 and older can switch to biennial screening. For more information
about breast cancer risk factors, talk to your doctor or visit breastcancer org,

Breast Cancer Prevention Tips

Research shows that making these lifestyle changes can help decrease your
risk of breast cancer:

Maintaining a healthy
weight

Limiting your alcohol Exercising regularly

Intake

Influenza season typically runs from October through April, but you can get the
flu at any time of the year. The United States experienced a light flu season last
year due to the preventive health and safety measures being taken for COVID-19.
Health experts warn that since fewer people developed immunity to the previous
year's flu strains, more people could be susceptible to influenza this year.

With emerging variants of coronavirus spreading across the United States and
traditional flu season ramping up, it's crucial to get a flu vaccination. Experts
assure that there is no harm in getting a flu shot in addition to a COVID-19
vaccine. On top of getting a flu vaccine, it's still important to practice good
hygiene—such as washing your hands with soap and water, covering coughs or
sneezes and not going to work when you're sick.

Makes: 12 servings

Ingredients

12 jumbo pasta shells

14 cups part-skim ricotta cheese
% cup pumpkin

% tsp. garlic powder

2 Thsp. basil

% tsp. dried sage

¥ tsp. salt

% tsp. black pepper

% cup grated parmesan cheese (divided)
1 cup low-sodium spaghetti sauce

Preparations

1) Preheat ovento 350 F,

2) Cook pasta shells according to
package directions. Drain and place
each shell on a baking sheet to cool.

3) In amedium bowl, stir together
ricotta, pumpkin, spices and all but 1
Tbsp. of the cheese.

4) Spread pasta sauce in the bottom of a
baking dish. Fill each shell with 3 Thsp.
of the pumpkin mixture and place
shells close together on top of the
sauce in a single layer.

5) Cover pan with foil and bake for 30
minutes.

6) Remove foil, sprinkle with remaining
cheese and bake for 15 minutes.

Nutritional Information

(per serving)
Total calories 103
Total fat 4g
Protein 6g
Sodium 211 mg
Carbohydrate 12g
Dietary fiber 1g
Saturated fat 2g
Total sugars 2g
Source: MyPlote

3301 S Virginia St Reno, NV 89502 | AandHins.com




Insurance. Solutions. Results.

Proposal for
Insurance Brokerage and Consulting Services

Presented by:

LP Insurance Services, LLC

\\ INSURANCE

www.|pins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

THE LP DIFFERENCE

We pledge to provide unparalleled service, striving to earn respect and trust with all our
interactions. In fact, the LP Mission is to be recognized and respected as the foremost insurance
and risk services brokerage. But how? We believe it begins and ends with relationships.

Our relationships set us apart and our reputation is built on reliability and honesty. Investing in
our relationships makes us who we are. Client relationships, employee relationships and
community relationships are what we do.

We know insurance so you don’t have to. LP team members are industry experts. Our team
collaborates - so we share knowledge freely — always learning from one another in an effort to
benefit you.

We believe that by helping to protect businesses, people and their dreams, we are helping to
build a better future. We wish everyone a lasting legacy, so we work hard to have clients rave
about us — employees beam over us - and the community applaud our efforts.

In fact, we are so committed to supporting the communities we serve that our annual giving
benefits more than 100 entities throughout our footprint and our team member involvement
includes hundreds of hours of support.



\

1. Is the firm "Appointed” by or accepted to broker with the Nevada Public Agency
Insurance Pool (POOL) and the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT)
with which the County is currently insured?

Insurance. Solutions. Results.

Yes, LP is an appointed agent of both Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool (NPATIP/POOL) and
Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT)

2. List the name, history, and location of the firm where the County's account will
be handled.

LP’s history began in 1927 when Archie Granata launched Granata/Lucini Insurance and Real
Estate in Reno, Nevada. Soon, Archie’s nephew, Guido F. “Red” Lucini, joined him and the name
changed to Lucini & Associates. Eventually Remo Fratini and Bob Bowers became part of the
team. Several decades later, in 1967, Red and Remo were joined by James (Jim) E. Talbott.

Lucini & Associates was originally located on California Avenue in Reno but moved to Moana
Lane where we shared a building with Parish Company. Lucini eventually purchased Parish in
1985, becoming Lucini/Parish Insurance where Bill Parish became a partner. Lucini/Parish
ultimately emerged as a leading regional brokerage, with seven offices and more than 160
employees; it grew to become one of the top 100 brokerages in the U.S. During the 1980s,
current LP principals and founders; Joe Wyatt and Rich Bullard joined IMS (Insurance
Management Services) and Mike Talbott and Nick Rossi joined Lucini/Parish Insurance.

In 1998, Jim Talbott sold his share back to Lucini/Parish and Nick Rossi became the majority
stock holder. LP founder, John DeRicco joined Lucini/Parish in 1999. Later, in 2003, the
company purchased IMS bringing Nick, Mike, John, Joe and Rich together. They were bought
by Greater Bay Bank Corporation, owner of ABD Insurance, in 2005 and in 2007; Greater Bay
was purchased by Wells Fargo, creating Wells Fargo Insurance Services of Nevada.

In 2010 LP members, Nick, Joe, John, Mike and Rich along with Lloyd Barnes and Joe
Kulikowski, bought out of Wells Fargo and founded LP Insurance Services. In 2012, LP
welcomed members Joey Kreutzian (personal insurance) and John Bolce in Sacramento. Later,
in 2013, LP opened the Elko, NV office and purchased a Hub International-affiliated office in
Las Vegas, welcoming member, Greg Pike.

In 2014, LP Insurance purchased a Hub International-affiliated office in Truckee, CA.
welcoming our member, Randy House. We opened a Phoenix office in late 2015. In 2016 we
welcomed new members, Lindsay Minor, Kevin Monaghan and Tina Perchetti. LP Insurance
also purchased McMullen Insurance in Elko and named Trinity Steelman a member. In 2017, we
welcomed John Malamphy, Jared Banes, and Tim Holland as members. We later added Vince
Barrett and Jean Ann Morris in 2018. In 2020, we opened an office in Fernley, NV and acquired
Meridian Insurance Services adding locations in Carson City, NV and Roswell, NM. Most
recently, in 2021, LP Insurance welcomed new members, Andrea Cantlon, Jared Rossi, Dustin
Garcia and Matt Ennis.

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

3. What is the size of your firm, number of employees and additional locations?
LP employs more than 190 people in g locations.

Reno, NV — Headquarters
Carson City, NV

Fernley, NV

Elko, NV

Las Vegas, NV

Truckee, CA

Sacramento, CA

Phoenix, AZ

Roswell, NM

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

4. Who will be the principal contacts for the County including names, titles and
staffing plan? Include resume information and professional experience for all
individuals that will be assigned to the account.

LP INSURANCE SERVICES ACCOUNT TEAM

COMMERCIAL TEAM:

Commerical Production Jared Rossi

[ ]

Dianne Fernandes

Account Management

Michelle Martelle

Account Management

Account Assistant e Staci Smith
RISK SERVICES TEAM:
Risk Services Manager ¢ John Bolce

Christi Johnson
Claudia Aguilar

WC Claims

P&C Claims Danielle Hill
Loss Control e Lee Wilson
Contractual Risk e Matt Ennis

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

Jared Rossi
Vice President/Sales Executive
LP Insurance Services, LLC.

Jared is a northern Nevada native. He graduated from Bishop Manogue Catholic High School
and the University of Nevada, Reno. After spending four years working at the City of Reno in the
Parks, Recreation and Community Services department he started his insurance career as an
account executive in Commercial Lines at Wells Fargo Insurance in 2008.

Jared later joined LP Insurance Services at its inception in 2010. He now uses his skills to
benefit businesses seeking timely and in-depth information relating to risk management. Jared
is a Certified Insurance Counselor (CIC) through the National Alliance of Insurance. An active
member of the northern Nevada community, he enjoys working with Bishop Manogue Catholic
High School Alumni Association, Associated General Contractors Legislative Committee and the
Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation.

Jared, his wife and two children enjoy traveling, camping, backpacking, and spending time with
family.

Dianne Fernandes
Senior Account Manager / Supervisor
LP Insurance Services, LLC

Dianne began her insurance career in 1989. She has earned the CISR (Certified Insurance
Representative), AINS (Associate in General Insurance) and CIC (Certified Insurance
Counselor) professional insurance designations through the National Alliance of Insurance. She
grew up in California attending Antelope Valley College and College of Sequoias. Dianne
relocated to Nevada in 2018 and was excited to join the LP Insurance Team in March 2021. She
earned her Associate of Leadership Degree in July of 2021 from the USLI University and is
currently working on her Bachelor of Leadership Degree.

Dianne has served on several non-profit boards including at the Visalia Emergency Aid Council
as a board member for 3 years and as President at the Visalia Parks & Recreation Foundation for
6 years. Dianne currently works with the City of Las Vegas as a Park Garden Monitor/Instructor.

Dianne enjoys camping, hiking and traveling with her husband and Australian Shepherd. They

have 4 grown daughters and a new grandson. Dianne also enjoys music, reading, growing
organic produce and healthy cooking for her family.

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

Michelle Martelle
Account Manager
LP Insurance Services, LLC

Michelle was raised in Reno, Nevada and graduated from Reno High School. She started her
career operating a family boating business. When that business was sold, she worked in the
finance department at Lithia Motors, Inc.

Michelle began her insurance career in 2003 when she was hired to work in the accounting
department at Lucini Parish Insurance. Shortly after being hired, she decided to obtain her
insurance license. She has worked in numerous areas of the agency including employee benefits
and commercial insurance where she currently works with the Jared Rossi team. She continues
to enjoy her passion, working diligently to provide the best possible customer service to her
clients.

Michelle was recently married and shares a beautiful, blended family with her husband. She

enjoys spending time at the gym, with her family, and traveling.

Staci Smith
Account Assistant
LP Insurance Services, LL.C

Staci was born and raised In Reno, NV and graduated from Hug High School.

At 16 she began working at Harrah’s Reno with her grandmother. Her 20 year career in the Food
and Beverage industry gradually evolved with the company until the property was sold in 2020.
Staci then made the decision to make a drastic career change and has grown to enjoy the
challenges and opportunities the insurance industry has to offer.

She has been with LP for just over a year now, working on Jared Rossi's team as an account
assistant and is currently taking courses to earn her CISR designation.

Staci enjoys spending time with her husband and their 6-month-old son.

www.lpins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

John Bolce
Vice President/Board Member
LP Insurance Services, LLC.

John is a member of the Board of Directors and Vice President of LP Insurance Services. He is a
fully licensed agent with more than 33 years of insurance industry experience specializing in
Construction Risk. John is a native of Sacramento and a graduate of Sacramento State
University.

In 2001, he joined the Sacramento location of Lucini/Parish Insurance (a surety-only office at
the time) to develop their commercial insurance operations. John grew the commercial
department of Lucini/Parish to nearly ten million dollars by the time they were acquired by
Wells Fargo in 2007. While at Wells Fargo Insurance Services, he served as the Construction
Practice Leader, handling commercial construction insurance and surety production.

In 2012, John became a principal and shareholder at LP Insurance Services. As Vice President
and Risk Services Division Leader, John directs risk services efforts throughout the footprint.
He is active within the community including with the Construction Financial Management
Association (CFMA) where he was named Executive of the Year as well as with the Rotary Club.

John enjoys numerous outdoor activities with his wife and three daughters. He is especially fond
of stand-up paddle boarding (SUP) in area lakes as well as near Ka'anapali Beach in Maui.

Christi Johnson
Workers’ Compensation Claims Consultant
LP Insurance Services, LLC.

Christi Johnson is a valued member of our Workers' Compensation Claims team which offers
hearing support, oversight management, claims analysis, training/seminars and more for our
LP clients.

A results-driven professional with more than 10 years of experience in the area of workers’
compensation claims and consulting, Christi has proven success in workers’ compensation
claims adjusting, oversight management, administrative law representation and program
development. She has extensive knowledge in all areas of claims adjudication and specializes in
Nevada workers’ compensation claims.

Prior to joining LP Insurance, Christi was a Claims Consultant with Wells Fargo Insurance
Services as well as a lead lost time adjuster with one of Nevada's largest administrators for self-
insured groups. She also worked as an examiner for one of the nation’s largest A+ rated
insurance carriers for workers’ compensation. Christi is a Registered Workers’ Compensation
Specialist (RWCS) and is licensed to represent employers at Administrative Law Hearings in
Nevada. She specializes in public entities, fleet, construction, gaming, hospitality and residential
care facilities.

As a fourth generation Nevadan, she loves camping, fishing, riding horses and spending time at
area lakes with two children.

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

Claudia Aguilar
Workers’ Compensation Claims Consultant
LP Insurance Services, LLC.

Claudia Aguilar is part of our Workers’ Compensation Claims team which offers hearing
support, oversight management, claims analysis and training/seminars for our clients. A 25-
year industry veteran and long-time Nevada resident, Claudia holds a Master’s of Workers’
Compensation Law from the University of Arkansas; a Workers’ Compensation License with the
State of Nevada; is a licensed notary public as well as a member of the National Registry of
Workers’ Compensation Specialists.

She has experience in numerous areas including retail, hospitality, food, safety and Human
Resources. As a former claims manager in the gaming industry, Claudia also provides valuable
insight for many of LP’s gaming clientele. She specializes in legal issues, claims adjustment and
employer representation. In addition, Claudia is bilingual providing Spanish language
translation for employee relations as well as hearing or witness statements and training.

She likes to travel with her family including her husband and three children.

Danielle Hill
Claims Consultant
LP Insurance Services, LLC.

Our Property & Casualty claims advocacy team is led by Danielle Hill. With more than a decade
of insurance industry experience, she is currently working toward an Associate in Claims (AIC)
designation (usually held by adjusters).

In her role, Danielle offers support and services regarding property losses, legal liability, medical
malpractice, restoration, construction defect, right to repair, auto claims, third party claims and
more. She’s also knowledgeable in Workers’ Comp and Personal Lines claims as well. Danielle
builds great relationships with LP clients and then works tirelessly to keep them.

A native of northern Nevada, she enjoys spending time with her friends and family including her
husband and two children.

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

Lee Wilson
Risk Management Consultant — Loss Control
L.P Insurance Services, LLC.

Lee Wilson, a 30-year veteran of the risk reduction/site safety industry, helps lead our Employee
Safety/Risk Management program. Lee is nationally certified and has hands-on safety training
and management experience in numerous fields including nuclear power, coal power, light
manufacturing, transportation, mining and public utilities. He is an expert in providing on-site
compliance, safety and accident prevention training.

Lee is a member of the National Association of Safety Professionals, the Association of General
Contractors, the Association of Building Contractors and the Northern Nevada Mining
Association Mine Safety Committee.

As a Risk Management Consultant, Lee works to help LP clients prevent incidents that disables
their workers, damages their business and ultimately, costs their company in many ways. His
risk consultation may include insurance carrier recommendation review, OSHA inspections,
mine site inspections, safety program development, and management training and employee
education.

Lee enjoys fishing, camping and hunting throughout northern Nevada.
Qualifications Include:

3M Management School

OSHA Construction Trainer 10 and 30 hour
OSHA General Industry Trainer 10 & 30 hour
Confined Space (permit required) Trainer
Forklift Trainer

CPR/First Aid AED Trainer

MSHA Safety Trainer — Part 46 and 48
USDOT Inspections, Audits and Regulations Trained
Hydraulic Safety and Controls

MSA Trained to Fit Test Respirators
Competent Person Trenching

Flagger Certification State of Nevada

Gas Construction Certification “NV Power”
Train-the-Trainer for Scaffolding

CNG Safety Awareness

Fall Protection Trainer-(Capital Safety DBI SALA)
Hazmat Trainer

Hazwoper Trainer

Safety Trainer Specialist (NASP)

Safety Training Manager (NASP)

Performs Construction Site Surveys

Manlift Trainer

Powder Actuated Tool Trainer

Ship Board Firefighter/Trainer

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

4956 Nuclear Power Plant Welder

Radiation Training and Safety Controls

Sub Safety Control Person

Level One Safety Control Person

Heat Treatment of Metal

Certified Lead Renovation, Repair and Painting

Matt Ennis
Vice President/Risk Services
LP Insurance Services LLC

Our Risk Transfer/Legal Support Services team is led by Matt Ennis, a licensed attorney and
insurance broker. He is a 30-year veteran in both insurance and law, graduating from both
Pepperdine University and the University San Diego School of Law. After being in private law
practice (specializing in business/real estate and insurance), Matt joined a large California-based
specialty contractor as general counsel and general manager. He was later the Assistant Vice
President of an international risk management firm and a Vice President at a national
construction brokerage.

In his current role, Matt oversees the Risk Transfer/Legal Support Services team, providing
contractual risk management and pre/post-loss services. The pre-loss services include contract
support, analyzing operations for contractual exposures, and even drafting job-site indemnity
agreements for “incidental” partners. Post-loss support includes working with our claims teams
on complex claims, drafting specific client protocols and monitoring the progression and ultimate
closure of all complex claims.

Matt holds both a Charter Property Casualty Underwriter (CPCU) and Associate in Risk
Management (ARM) designation with a Public Entity specialization. He is a central California
native and an avid hiker, often enjoying the outdoors with his family including his wife and
children.

www.Ipins.net



N\

Insurance. Solutions. Results.

5. How long has your local office and your overall firm been in business in Nevada?

LP Insurance has been in business through a number of entity changes since 1927 and has been in
business as the LP Insurance Services since 2010.

6. How many governmental entity accounts does your firm represent and what types
of insurance are provided for them? Please include the below information for at
least three (3) of your accounts:

. Name of Firm

Point of Contact (name and number)

Lines of coverage written

Years of Service for the account

Summarize your approach to insurance placements

Identify all markets used to provide specific details regarding services you
provide.

LP currently represents 31 public entities through our Property & Casualty department and 22
public entities through our Employee Benefits department.

Account References:

1.
Nye County
Tim Sutton (775) 751-7075 & Lorina Dellinger (775) 482-7319
Property, Liability, & Workers Compensation
LP has worked with Nye County since 2015 (6 years) for Property & Casualty
Nye County is a current member of POOL (NPAIP) for their property and liabilty and
reviewed 4 options within this program for 2021 and achieved self-insured status with the
State of Nevada for workers compensation, utilizing Safety National and Lyndon Southern
as the excess placements.
e For marketing this year, we utilized the following markets for Nye County’s renewal:
o Excess Workers Compensation: APEX
» Safety National
* Lyndon Southern
o Property and Liability: POOL
= POOL (NPAIP)
o Workers Compensation: PACT
= PACT

www.|pins.net



-

Insurance. Solutions. Results. \'

Douglas County
Megan Everett (775) 782-9891
Property, Liability, & Workers Compensation
LP has worked with Douglas County since 2016 (5 years) for Property & Casualty
Douglas County’s Property and Liability was marketed this most recent term and received
a favorable result from APIP (Property) and Travelers (Liability) in comparison to the
renewal offered by POOL (NPAIP) and selected to move coverage in July. Excess workers
compensation currently utilizes Safety National.
e For marketing this year, we utilized the following markets for Douglas County’s renewal:
o Property and Liability: APEX
* Travelers
One Beacon
Euclid/Hudson
HCC
Liberty
MunichRe
Wright Specialty
Trident
Safety National
Old Republic
Chubb
Berkley
= APIP
o Excess Workers Compensation: APEX
» Safety National

www.Ipins.net



\

Insurance. Solutions. Results.

Storey County School District
Kristen Chandler & Estelle Jorgensen (775) 847-0983
Property, Liability, & Workers Compensation
LP has worked with Storey County School District since 2014 (7 years) for Property &
Casualty
e Storey County School District’s Property and Liability and Student Accident are currently

with the POOL (NPAIP) program and elected to move coverage for the workers

compensation guaranteed cost program as of 7/1/2021 from AmTrust to Copperpoint.
e For marketing this year, we utilized the following markets for Storey County School

District’s renewal:

o Property and Liability: POOL
= POOL (NPAIP)
o Workers Compensation:
*  AmTrust

Copperpoint
Employers
First Comp
Hartford
TREAN (Benchmark)
UBIC

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

7. Explain your approach to marketing and timelines of events relating to insurance
placement, general accounts service (policy review, inquiry response time, issuance
of certificates, etc.), loss control and any other services you would provide.

Item Timeline Goal

Pre-Marketing (Public Entity — 120 Day Review Q4 for Marketing Options and obtain

Letter Required) indications by January 31

120 Day Letter (if applicable) Sent by February 28

Application (NPAIP) Delivered to insured within 3 days of receipt

Application (Non-NPAIP) Obtained 120 days advance of renewal

Application Follow-Up 15 day intervals

Renewal Indications - Premium Immediately upon receipt

Renewal Indications — Options (NPAIP) Immediately upon review

Renewal Meeting Scheduled date -
(public/committee/management meeting)

Certificates (NPAIP) Requested from market on day of receipt

Certificates (Non-NPAIP) Returned to insured within 24 hours

Correspondence Responded within 24 hours

Endorsements (Non-NPAIP) Sent to insured within 21 working days

Invoice By renewal date

Policies Sent to insured within 30 working days of receipt

Phone Calls Returned Responded same day/following morning if after
hours

Loss Control/Contract Risk Management | Scheduled day of request/following morning if

(Non-NPAIP) after hours

Loss Control (NPAIP) Requested day of receipt

Open Claim Reports Monthly frequency - sent within 3 days of
receipt

Workers Compensation Claim Review — Predetermined frequency — Monthly or

Open Claim Review Meeting with Quarterly

Adjusters & L/P Risk Personnel

8. List the top five (5) commercial insurers with whom you place business (or may
approach for business?)

o POOL(NPAIP)/PACT
e Travelers

¢ One Beacon

e Safety National

e APIP

www.Ipins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

9. Describe the level of experience your firm has with insurance and risk
management associated with owning and repairing historic buildings and
structures.

LP has insured historic building since its inception for both public and private entities. In the
standard market we have two differing valuations we use for historic buildings:

1. Standard Replacement Cost.

2. Functional Replacement Cost. In the event a historic building would sustain damage, it
may need to be rebuilt differently. If so, would that rebuilding effort be less or more
expensive? This will determine the functional replacement cost limit.

With specific regard to POOL (NPAIP) valuation (insured amount) is a combination of assessed
value and the declared value set within the statement of values.

10. Describe fees for proposed services and are they fixed or variable per project.
Describe commission fees and structure for all services. Include a fee schedule for
services to be provided and indicate with explanation if they are fixed or variable,
what commissions are involved, what services are included in fees, what fees are
charged for services not included in base fees.

LP’s proposal to Storey County, with specific regard to fees, will be commissions generated by the
placement of the policies within the POOLPACT membership with no additional fees for services.
LP discloses commission on each placement either within the summary, comparison, carrier
quote, separate commision schedule for placements or combination of these methods.

In the event a placement of a line of coverage or insurance contract is delivered net of commission
(0%) LP would propose a separate fee to equal an amount no greater than a standard commission
for this placement. This would be for the term length of the insurance contract or annual basis.

11. Are fees all inclusive, or do certain services require additional fees? What costs
of your firm are covered?

In the event LP were to propose a fee as previously described (In the event a placement of a line of
coverage or insurance contract is delivered net of commission (0%) LP would propose a
separate fee to equal an amount no greater than a standard commission for this placement. This
would be for the term length of the insurance contract or annual basis) this would be an all-
inclusive fee for both the comission and services we offer.

12, If this agreement is renewed for one or more consecutive years, will the annual
fee be guaranteed?

In the event a fee agreement is used, the term will be setup to match the term of the insurance

contract it applies to (inception through expiration of placement). This fee would be fixed and
guaranteed for this applicable term.

www. |pins.net



Insurance. Solutions. Results. \

13. If selected as Storey County's Broker, what services will you provide the County
as part of your Broker fee? What "value added" services do you offer, and what is
the additional fee for those services?

LP provides the following services as part of its Risk Management Department:

RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES - LLOSS CONTROL.:
¢ Design, develop, and implement site specific safety programs
e Conduct OSHA and MSHA approved training
* Design and implement incentive and accountability programs
* Conduct site surveys and generate informative and usable reports
* Audit existing safety programs for relevance and compliance
* State-specific in-house training with up-to-date tailgate topics
» Develop detailed reports outlining relevant claims history: frequency, severity, and
progress of claims from inception to claim closure
* Fire suppression specialist
e Design, develop, and implement an effective return-to-work program
* Ergonomics specialist
¢ Benchmark surveys
* Industrial hygienist
e Approved Trainings:
o 10 & 30 Hour Construction
10 & 30 Hour General Industry
Accident Investigation
American Red Cross; First Aid, CPR, AED
Blood-borne Pathogens
CNG Safety Awareness Training
CSA/FMCSA Training
Confined Space Training
Driver Safety Training
Emergency Evacuation Planning
Fall Protection Training
Fire Extinguishers
Forklift Operator Training
General Workplace Safety
HAZCOM/GHS/SDS
HAZMAT 172 Training
HAZWOPER Training; 40 Hour Initial & 8 Hour Refresher
Kitchen Hazards & Awareness (Food Safety)
Communications
Lock Out/Tag Out
Mine Safety Training (MSHA); 8 Hour & 24 Hour New Miner (Aggregate Pits)
Respiratory Protection

O O 00 0O 00000 O0OCO0OO0O0OO0QOO0OCO0OO0O0O O0

o]

www Ipins. net



Insurance. Solutions. Results.

0 0 ©C O

\

Scaffolding Erection/Safety Training
Security Procedures

Trenching & Excavating

U.S. DOT Vehicle Inspections & File Reviews

RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES — WORKERS COMPENSATION

SERVICES:
* Hearing Support:

o Licensed representation at the State of Nevada Department of Administration
Hearings

o Prepare hearing/evidence statements and represent employer at Administrative
Hearing

o Attend all appeals & hearings on behalf of employer to manage legal process

o Attend hearings at the Appeals level

e (Claims Oversight & Management:

@]

o]
o

e}

o]

o]
O
0
o]

www.|pins.net

Correspond directly with insurer to ensure proper claims handling to expedite
resolution and claim closure
Review insurer claim files for accuracy and proper handling.

= Will appeal insurer decision on behalf of employer whenever necessary.
Facilitate an effective return-to-work strategy for complex claims
Thoroughly review each claim for possible subsequent injury fund and subrogation
reimbursement

Claims Analysis:

Analyze loss history to identify trends, frequency, and severity

Develop detailed reports for management outlining relevant claims history and
progress of claims from inception to claim closure

Analyze insurer reserving procedures, interact directly with insurer examiners to
ensure appropriate reserving practices

Review and verify annual experience modification factors for accuracy and project
an analyze future experience modifications

Training & Seminars:

Introduction to Workers Compensation (WC 101)

Medical management strategies for Workers Compensation

Developing an effective return-to-work program

All training can be performed with a Spanish-speaking translator

Propose and negotiate alternative risk transfer techniques, including limitations of
liability, waivers, and exculpatory clauses

Analyze client operations for critical contractual exposures



\

Insurance. Solutions. Results.

RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES - RISK TRANSFER/LEGAL
SUPPORT SERVICES:

e Pre-Loss:
o Contract support, review
o Drafting job-site indemnity agreements for “incidental” partners
o Negotiate strong indemnity and additional insured positions

» Post-Loss:
o Support with complex claims
o Drafting individualized specific protocols
o Monitor progression and closure of all complex claims
o Pursue Division of Insurance complaints

14. If selected as an exclusive Broker, how can you assure Storey County that you
have provided the most comprehensive and competitive product for their
consideration.

As part of our pre-marketing, we review risks (entities) with a variety of markets. As exposures
change both within the entity as well as externally, such as the newly changing cyber liabilty
market, we review the current placement as well as any opportunities to enhance the current
placement or investigate the opportunity for alternate placement terms that may bring a benefit to
the overall risk transfer program. As an entity evolves so to do the exposures presented, these
exposures may require a modification to the current program, an additonal coverage to the
current program in the event the exposure may not be within the scope of current coverage
program, or the replacement of the program should the exposures warrant the neccessity to
change.

www.Ipins.net



WARREN REED INSURANCE

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR
GENERAL LIABILITY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE
BROKERAGE SERVICES FOR
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

Presented By:
Alan Reed

1521 HIGHWAY 395, NORTH
GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410

PHONE (775) 782-2277 ~ FAX (775) 782-8923




1321 Hwy 395 North

Guardnerville, NV Sudjo

(773) 782-2277 WARREN REED

Fan: (773) T82=7387 or (775) 782-892)

NSURANCE « SINCE 1947

September 24, 2021

Storey County Managers Office
Attn: Austin Osborne, County Manager

Brandie Lopez, Administrative Assistant

P.O. Box 176/26 South “B” Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: Request for Qualifications

Dear Mr. Osborne and Ms. Lopez,

Thank you for allowing my firm an opportunity to submit our qualifications. In response to the

Broker Qualification Questionnaire, the following answers are provided:

1.

Yes, Warren Reed Insurance is a broker with the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool
(POOL) and the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT). In fact, Warren Reed
(1917-1998) played a pivotal role along with Wayne Carlson and three others in providing
this first coverage series to four POOL customers in 1987. As well, we've been a broker
for PACT since their inception in 1996.

Name — Warren Reed Insurance, Inc.

History — The Warren Reed agency is Douglas County’s oldest family-owned commercial
enterprise, established in 1947. Led by current president Alan Reed, C.I.C., Mr. Reed has
been actively engaged in the insurance industry for forty-seven years. The agency has
been family owned since inception. He and his wife, Dana have been married for thirty-
nine years and they have six children and seven grandchildren. Christine is a graduate of
Washington State University and is a schoolteacher in western Oregon. A.G. received a
luris Doctorate and a master’s in public policy from Indiana University. His undergraduate
studies included the United States Air Force Academy, Hillsdale College (Michigan) and
Oxford University. He is the director of finance for the agency. Taylor is a 2011 graduate
of Gonzaga University and is a vice president/account executive for Warren Reed
Insurance. Benjamin graduated from Montana State in Bozeman in 2014. He has a
bachelors in agri-business and he is an account executive in Warren Reed’s Montana
office. Nicole graduated from Boise State in 2019 with a bachelor’s in psychology. She is



1321 Hwy 395 Narth

Cardnerville, NV 89410 /
(7731 IR2-21277 ARR R
INSURANCE » SINCE 1947

Fax: 0 773) TR2=73%7T air (7T75) 7280223

employed by an Autism institute in Boise. Thomas works in the construction industry in
the Carson Valley.

Warren Reed Insurance, Inc. was founded in April 1947.

Warren Reed Insurance moved from a sole proprietorship to a corporation in 1971, with
Warren Reed being the only stockholder. In April, 1974, Bruce Hollander purchased 24%
of Warren Reed Insurance and in 1975, Alan G. Reed also purchased 24%. Warren semi-
retired in 1979 and Bruce and Alan assumed control of the day-to-day operations.

The company grew steadily over the years by developing a proven record of sales
excellence and quality service. In 1986, the agency moved to their present location at
1521 Highway 395 North in Gardnerville, Nevada.

Warren Reed passed away in 1998 at the age of 80. In 2001, Alan became the sole
stockholder and President. Bruce Hollander retired in 2016. Taylor Reed became a
stockholder in 2020.

The agency became an equity owner in Westbridge Insurance Network in 2015.
Westbridge is comprised of five agencies strategically situated throughout the states of
Nevada and California. Their primary thrust is to generate stronger market access.

We are independent agents and we represent stable and reliable insurance companies.
Our companies agree to provide our clients with sound protection backed by excellent
service. As representatives of our clients, we must make certain that they do just that.
We enjoy the good will of the community. Our customers help us retain that good will.
In return, we all benefit.

Our success depends on the efforts of every member of our firm. It takes years to build
a sound business reputation. Our customers help us preserve and improve that.

Location - 1521 U.S. Highway 395 North, Gardnerville, NV 89410

3. Annual premium sales for the year ended December 31, 2020 were $15,920,000. We
have fourteen employees. We have a branch office in Twin Bridges, Montana.

4. The principal contacts on this account will be:



1321 Hwy 305 North

Gardnenville,
(775) 782-2

Fax: (773) T8

mooo»

WARREN REE)

2-TI8T or (T7S) TR2-8u23

NSURANCE * SINCE 1947

Alan Reed, President C.I1.C., Account Executive

Taylor Reed, Vice President C.I.C., Account Executive

Denise Rudnick, C.I.5.R., Commercial Lines Manager

Rachel Rodriquez, Personal Lines CSR, and Technology Assistant
Robin Frediani, Claims Administrator

. Alan Reed joined the agency in 1974 upon receiving a Bachelor of Science (B.S.) from

California State University Stanislaus in Political Science. He was licensed later that year
and he has been engaged in sales and management since then. He was among the first
twelve property and casualty agents in Nevada to receive the designation of Certified
Insurance Counselor. He has piloted the agency’s growth to the position we are at today
which, is approximately 10 times larger than 1974.

Denise Rudnick, C.I.S.R., Commercial Lines Manager, has played a valuable role in the
development of the agency’s public entity business. She has been with Warren Reed
for 37 years and she received her C.1.5.R designation in 1992. She is responsible for
underwriting new public entity business as well and overseeing the entire renewal
process. She holds a property and casualty license.

Taylor Reed joined the agency in 2015. Prior to that, he gained valuable industry
experience while working for Nationwide Insurance from 2011-15. He was a personal lines
underwriter, a commercial lines underwriter and an agency analyst for the company.
He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration (B.B.A.) from Gonzaga University (2011).
His duties as Vice President at Warren Reed include sales and technology management.

Rachel Rodriguez has been with Warren Reed since 2017. She is involved in
underwriting, and she assists Taylor Reed in technology applications and updates. She
is also a licensed property and casualty agent.

Robin Frediani has led Claims Administration at Warren Reed Insurance since 2006. She
is responsible for initial reporting, processing, management and concluding claims for

our customers.

5. We are in our 75" year in business. We are the oldest family owned commercial

enterprise in all of Douglas County.



1321 Hwy 395 Narth

WARREN REET)

(775 782=2277

Fux: (773) 782-

F387 ur (773) 782-8423

INSURAMNCE « SINCE 1947

6. The Warren Reed agency currently serves as the broker for twenty-six (26) POOL
members and fourteen (14) PACT members. In addition, we use six additional carriers for
public entities we have insured outside of POOL/PACT.

The following information is supplied on three (3) of our accounts:

Name of Firm White Pine County School District
Point of Contact Paul Johnson (775-298-4857)
Lines of Coverage Written Property, Liability, Auto, Workers Compensation
Years of Service of Account 21
Placement Approach See narrative below

Our approach to marketing and placement involves several concepts. We want to
undertake a process that (1) will best serve the client for the long term. Public entities
are unique due to the fact that the taxpayer is ultimately exposed, and they require a
very high degree of due care and diligence. (2) Legislative changes seem to always be
a concern and same must be kept in mind during the marketing process. (3) Carrier
knowledge is essential. Insurance companies have to be evaluated for their financial
strength and their ability to interpret claims favorably. (4) They must offer a broad
array of coverages that are actuarily sound and competitively realistic. (S) Finally, we
(both broker and client) have to be assured that there will be an efficient delivery of
not only the insurance product but, any related services.

Identify Markets Used See Below

The current POOL coverage plan for property and liability is underwritten by a number
of insurance carriers. They are as follows:

Market/Carrier Coverage Line(s)

A. Public Risk Mutual Property —PRM provides a $300,000 layer of
coverage over and above POOL's Self-Insured
Retention of $200,000 excess of the member
insureds deductible




1321 Hwy 3U5 Nurth

e WARREN REE []

Fux: (773) 782-7387 or (775) 782-892) INSURANCE » SINCE 1947

[ Property - Individual Lloyds Syndicates
provide coverage for losses in excess of
$500,000 up to $3,000,000.

B. 7Lt76;i;b'f Londbn

C. Public Risk Mutual Ligbility —PRM Particiipéteéigh 30% of liabi?tivv
losses (that are over $500,000) up to
$3,000,000 and PRM participates in 25% of
liability losses that are over $300,000,000 up
to $10,000,000.

D. tounty Rein;t'.u_rancé, L_td

'EMW’ CRL covers 70% of losses between
$500,000 up to $3,000,000.

E, Governrﬁént Er;titl'es Mutual

Liability — GEM Covers 35% of losses between
$3,000,000 up to 510,000,000.

F. Brit Insurance Cohpany Liability — BIC covers 40% of losses between
$3,000,000 up to $10,000,000.

G. Travelers Boiler Re Equipment — TBE provides equipment_
breakdown up to a maximum limit of
$100,000,000.

. H. CountyReinsurance, Ltd Cyber Liability - CRL provides $1,750,000 of

coverage in excess of POOL’s Self-insured
Retention of $250,000.

I.  Public Risk Mutual Cyber Liability PRM provides up to
$1,000,000 in coverage for losses exceeding
$2,000,000.

| l.lronshore Specialty Insurance | Environmental Liability — Ironshore provides

a per incident limit of $2,000,000 and an
aggregate limit of  $10,000,000 for
environmental claims. All members are
subject to a $25,000 deductible. A sub-limit
for business interruption is included.




1321 Hwy 395 Narth
Gardnerville, NV Rudin
(773) TRY-2277

1 773) TR2-T3RT ar (773) TR2-KU23

Name of Firm
Point of Contact
Lines of Coverage Written

Years of Service
Placement of Approach
Identify Markets Used

Name of Firm
Point of Contact
Lines of Coverage Written

Years of Service
Placement Approach
Identify Markets Used

WARREN REET)

INSURANCE * SINCE 1947

White Pine County

Elizabeth Frances 775-293-6530

Property, Liability, Auto, Airport, and

Workers Compensation

6

Refer to narrative for White Pine County School District
Refer to narrative for White Pine County School District

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District

Kate Warner 775-588-3591

Property, Liability, Auto, and Workers

Compensation

43

Refer to narrative for White Pine County School District
Refer to narrative for White Pine County School District

7. The Warren Reed Agency endeavors to provide a level of service to our public entity
clients that is nothing short of what is necessary to obtain the highest rating given with
respect to service.

Please examine the areas of emphasis as outlined in the attached list of service focus
points.

Service Schedule for Storey County

RISK MANAGEMENT / UNDERWRITING

A. Gathering underwriting information for the (POOL) application
B. Pre check and post review application for POOL prior to submission
C. ldentify needed coverages (and enhancements)



15321 Hwy 33 North

(775) I82-2277

WARREN REET)

Fiux: (775) 782-73K7 or (775) T82-84923

o mmo

INSURANCE = SINCE 1947

Review financial and other records to recommend coverage

Assist with risk identification and evaluation

Physically survey facilities for appraisal and underwriting information
Review contract agreements as they may affect exposures

Assist with coverage needs

MARKETING / SALES

0

Place coverage not provided by POOL and coordinate with POOL Programs as
necessary

Suggest alternative limits, additional coverages, deductibles

Explain POOL coverages, programs, and services to member’s staff and officials
Promote POOL program / service to the members

CUSTOMER SERVICE

~TIoeTmMmMoo®p

= =

SEEF

Communicate member’s needs, questions, or concerns with POOL

Forward Certificates of Insurance. Track Certificates and applicable documents
Maintain lists of property, equipment, and vehicles

Prepare annual summary of all insurance policies and services for members
Maintain accurate current client file records

Maintain historical policies and claims records

Periodically review PPOL program with member

Provide information regarding insurance coverage questions

Provide policy interpretation, and research analysis as requested

Deliver vehicle accident packets

Attend Board/Council or staff meetings as needed to advise regarding risk
insurance issues

Provide/coordinate advice regarding loss prevention on facilities or activities

. Assist with Safety Committee requests

Serve as point of contact for coordination of service needs
Offer year over year comparative analysis

CLAIMS



1321 Hwy 395 North

AP A WARREN REE D

Fax: ¢773) I82=7387 ur (775) T82-8923 NSURANCE + SINCE 1947

Analyze deductible options

Provide claims reports to Member and POOL
Assist with claims processing/problems

Analyze claims reports and review with member

mo o ® P

Identify loss control program concerns

OTHER DUTIES

A. Collect and remit premiums/loss fund contributions
B. Assist with cost allocations and departmental breakdowns
C. Any special request from member to suit their needs

8. Our top five (5) list of commercial insurers would include the following:
Public Entities (in addition to POOL/PACT)

National Union Insurance

Star Insurance

Hartford Insurance
Employers Insurance

moonwm >

Travelers Insurance

Non-Public Entities

Nationwide Insurance

Liberty Mutual Insurance
Chubb Insurance

Badger Mutual Insurance
Contractors Bonding Insurance

mo o ® P



1321 Hwy 393 North

Gardnerville, NV 89410
(7731 TR2=2277 WARREN REED

Fax: (773) IN2=T7387 vor (775) 782-80213

g,

10.

INSURANCE » SINCE 1947

The Warren Reed firm has significant experience when it comes to providing the
insurance coverages necessary to properly insure older buildings, including those with
historic implications.

We are well versed in overseeing risk management techniques that are associated with
these types of property. Specifically tailored underwriting could apply to any number of
historic buildings including, but not limited to municipal, museums, schools and cultural
institutions. We understand there may be a need for certain endorsements which may

include any of the following:

A. Increased Costs of Reconstruction due to the enforcement of applicable building
codes

Value of Undamaged Buildings

Demolition

Functional Replacement Insurance

Agreed Value/No Coinsurance

Actual Cash Value

nmgooam

Warren Reed Insurance does not charge fees for insurance and/or related services. We
work under a commission structure. The POOL coverage includes commission to the
agent of seven per cent (7%) of the annual premium. The PACT coverage includes a
commission to the agent of five per cent (5%) of the annual premium, not to exceed
$5,000 annually. The POOL commission is fixed while, the PACT commission percentage
is subject to adjustment based upon the premium size.

Product Commission
POOL Coverage 7% Fixed
PACT Coverage 5% *

*PACT commissions paid to the agent cannot exceed $5,000 annually.



1321 Hwy 395 Narth

Gardnerville, NV 80410

(775) 7§42~

11.

12.

13.

14.

WARREN REED

Fax: (775) T82-7387 o1 (775) T82-8421

INSURANCE = SINCE 1947

Fee Schedule for Storey County

Product Fee Charged
POOL Coverage None
PACT Coverage None

Please refer to service schedule included earlier for a list of services that will be provided.
All services are provided at no additional fee.

The commissions shown in the Cost Schedule above includes all services referenced
throughout this RFQ. The commission includes any costs incurred by Warren Reed
Insurance.

Yes, we will adhere to the Cost Schedule referenced above for POOL/PACT.

We will provide all of service described in this RFQ. There is not a separate broker fee.
As indicated earlier, Warren Reed Insurance is compensated solely by the prevailing
POOL/PACT commission rate. There are no additional charges or fees for all services,
including those that might be considered value added.

Storey County can rest assured that we will provide the highest degree of knowledge, as
well as competitive pricing for their public entity insurance.

We have provided products and services to governmental entities for almost sixty (60)
years. We understand what’s necessary for a public entity insurance program to be
deemed comprehensive.



1321 Hwy 393 North

| WARRE N REE D

INSURANCE « SINCE 1947

Fan: (7753) TS2-TART wp ( 778) Th2-x023

Our office would be most happy to provide you with any additional information
necessary, including a more detailed list of public entity references.

Please feel free to bring any additional questions to my attention. Thank you, Mr.
Osborne and Ms. Lopez.

Sincerely,

(i R4

Alan G. Reed, C.I.C.
Warren Reed Insurance
1521 U.S. Hwy 395 N.
Gardnerville, NV 839410
775-782-2277



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager's Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

Refer to RFQ for answers to Broker Qualification
Questions 1-14

V. Broker Qualification Questionnaire

1

[s the firm “Appointed” by or accepted to broker with the Nevada Public Agency
Insurance Pool (POOL) and the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT)
with which the County is currently insured?

List the name, history, and location of the firm where the County’s account will be
handled.

What is the size of your firm, number of employees and additional locations?

Who will be the principal contacts for the County including names, titles and staffing
plan? Include resume information and professional experience for all individuals that
will be assigned to the account.

How long has your local office and your overall firm been in business in Nevada?

How many governmental entity accounts does your firm represent and what types
of insurance are provided for them? Please include the below information for at least

three (3) of your accounts:

* Name of Firm

» Point of Contact (name and number)

e Lines of coverage written

* Years of Service for the account

* summarize your approach to insurance placements

* identify all markets used to provide specific details regarding services you
provide.

Explain your approach to marketing and timelines of events relating to insurance
placement, general accounts service (policy review, inquiry response time, issuance
of certificates, etc.), loss control and any other services you would provide.

List the top five (5) commercial insurers with whom you place business (or may
approach for business?)

Page 6 0f 7



Request for Qualifications Storey County Manager’s Office
Insurance Brokerage Services 775.847.0968

9.

10.

1k

12.

13.

14,

Describe the level of experience your firm has with insurance and risk management
associated with owning and repairing historic buildings and structures.

Describe fees for proposed services and are they fixed or variable per project.
Describe commission fees and structure for all services. Include a fee schedule for
services to be provided and indicate with explanation if they are fixed or variable,
what commissions are involved, what services are included in fees, what fees are
charged for services not included in base fees.

Are fees all inclusive, or do certain services require additional fees? What costs of
your firm are covered?

If this agreement is renewed for one or more consecutive years, will the annual fee
be guaranteed?

If selected as Storey County’s Broker, what services will you provide the County as
part of your Broker fee? What “value added” services do you offer, and what is the
additional fee for those services?

[f selected as an exclusive Broker, how can you assure Storey County that you have
provided the most comprehensive and competitive product for their consideration,

Page 7 of 7



— Stnce 1947 —

Warren Reed

Insurance

A Public Entity’s Successful Claim Resolution

The insured public entity provided sanitation services to a local community. They suffered
damage to a moveable roof of a large structure which, was a solid/liquid waste digester. The
structure was deemed inoperable and had to be shut down.

The building contained a mechanical apparatus that was responsible for the automatic expansion
and contraction of a moveable roof due to fluctuating levels of waste materials within same.

The insurance company that provided equipment breakdown coverage denied the claim on the
grounds that the loss was due to wear and tear, as well as gradual deterioration.

After extensive research and fact finding by our firm, Warren Reed Insurance was able to pinpoint
the exact cause of the loss. The damage originated in a small and previously unnoticed one foot
section of plastic pipe that exited the building at ground level. The described piping froze in cold
weather. Because there was no way for excess water and/or backed up materials to escape the
building; accumulated materials/gasses backed up until the digester lid (roof) burst and was lifted
some 20" from its original position, thereby incurring significant damage.

We were able to get the property insurer to cover the loss as one caused by initial freezing.

The insured’s loss was $1,176,754 which, was paid by the insurance company.

4 IE’éI {iupk ot

—




] X
Warren Reed — Since 1947 —

Insurance

A Case Study For One Public Entity
The Warren Reed agency recently performed a deductible study for one of our public entities.

This particular project looked at the feasibility of a higher deductible in their property and
casualty program.

We analyzed what their claims picture would have looked like under their best years, as well as
Warren Reed Insurance took a look at the claims history which, went back about thirty-two years
their worst. Further, we created a picture of what could happen if their worst years occurred in
succession.

Following you will see the particulars of that case study.

In working in unison with this insured, we concluded that it was to their economic advantage to
move to a higher deductible.




1321 Hwy 395 North

BN WA RREN REE D

Fax: (775) 782=7387 ar {7751 782-8923 NSURANCE » SINCE 1947

June 4, 2021

As promised, | think we need to review possibly going to higher deductibles.

Take a look at the following:

Deductible 2021-22 Program Cost
$1,000 (Current) $394,341.09
$5,000 (Option #1) $371,238.99
$10,000 (Option #2) $350,906.78
$25,000 (Option #3) $311,158.21

When we look at higher deductibles, we want to calculate the feasibility of same. That establishes the
overall cost to the County with the chosen deductible under each scenario. From there, we would view
the program costs against your total costs (including the deductibles) which, gives us the final outcome,
positive or negative.

When undertaking this analysis, I'd go back five years, 2015-16 through 2019-20. I'm not using 2020-2021
as the year hasn’t concluded.

Based on the years mentioned above, here are some assumptions:

Program Year Claims $5,000 deductible option

Costs Est. Savings Outcome
2015-16 16 19,415 17,072 -2,343
2016-17 17 26,849 17,917 -8,932
2017-18 3 5,000 8,783 +13,783
2018-19 8 11,449 18,781 +7,332
2019-20 8 3,735 18,358 +14,263

Total 52 566,448 90,911 +24,463



15321 Hwy 393 North

EATE A WARREN REED

Fax: (773) IR2-TINT or (7731 782-84213 INSURANCE « SINCE 1947

Program Year Claims $10,000 deductible option

Costs Est. Savings Outcome
2015-16 16 36,940 31,829 -5,111
2016-17 17 41,453 33,405 -8,048
2017-18 3 5,514 35,019 +29,505
2018-19 8 17,501 35,015 +17,514
2019-20 8 3,735 38,694 +34,959
Total 52 $105,143 173,962 +68,819
Program Year Claims $25,000 deductible option

Costs Est. Savings Qutcome
2015-16 16 65,036 61,053 -3,983
2016-17 17 60,322 64,077 +3,755
2017-18 3 5,514 67,172 +61,658
2018-19 8 18,723 67,164 +48,441
2019-20 8 3,735 74,126 +70,391
Total 52 $153,330 333,592 +180,262

Some more assumptions to consider include the fact that the past five years have been pretty good
overall, so the numbers herein are positive. Since 1987, the County’s loss experience has been good in
general. However, as insurance goes, there are usually some rough years sprinkled in. In your case, years
that stick out are 1988, 2006, 2008 and 2010. That means you had four rough years over a thirty plus year
period or, comparatively speaking, about once every eight years.

What we want to do next is push these four years into the current timeframe and as Wayne likes to say,
present sort of a “Black Swan” scenario.

In this picture, we will eliminate the $5,000 deductible option because, if we look at the analysis so far,
that deductible doesn’t really accomplish much in the way of savings.

Example #1 $10,000 deductible option
Claims Costs Est. Savings Outcome
Year #1 {(1988) 12 31,596 49,434 +11,838

Year #2 (2006) 10 42,714 43,434 +720



1321 Hwy 395 North

Gardoervitle. NV 8941 E
UTTSTR2L2277 WARR N REE D

Fax: (773) IN2=7387 ar (7753) 782-8923 INSURANCE = SINCE 1947
Year #3 (2008) 17 69,577 43,434 -26,143
Year #4 (2010) 12 58,040 43,434 -14,606
Total 51 201,927 173,736 -28,191
Example #2 $25,000 deductible option

Claims Costs  Est. Savings Outcome
Year #1 (1988) 12 48,407 83,183 +34,776
Year #2 (2006) 10 74,962 83,183 +8,221
Year #3 (2008) 17 135,289 83,183 -52,016
Year #4 (2010) 12 129,437 83,183 -46,254
Total 51 388,927 332,732 -55,363

Some conclusions regarding our “Black Swan” scenario:
$10,000 Deductible Conclusion

Year 1 is positive because 88% of the total losses was paid on one claim. That will happen occasionally
over the years.

The same goes for year 2. In this year, 82 % of the total incurred came from two claims.
Year 3 is the worst. In this year, we would have five claims hit the $10,000 deductible.
Year 4 is similar in scope to year 3. We would hit the deductible on 4 claims.
$25,000 Deductible Conclusions
Year | is positive again; simply because we had one large loss.
Year 2 resembles year one with a positive outcome even though we had two claims reach the deductible.
Year 3 is the worst performer as four claims hit the deductible.

Year 4 is nearly as bad as year 3 with three claims reaching the deductible.



1521 Hay 395 North

e ARREN REET)

Fax: (773) TH2=T387 or (773) T82-8u23 INSURANCE » SINCE 1947

So, you can see that when we lock at these “dark examples” that, if they were to occur all at once, you
would lose about $28,191 over the four years if you selected a $10,000 deductible.

With the $25,000 deductible, you would lose around $55,363 over the same period.

What is the likelihood of having four bad years in a row? Although that possibility exists; it’s probably not
likely to happen. (Remember, you’ve had four bad years in the past 30).

So, how do you want me to do this? I can (1) present this as a separate item, (2) you and | could come up
with the best recommendation and | can include same in my packet (or keep it separate), (3) or we can

make a decision and move forward, as well as include that in the renewal packet.

Let’s chat next week and | will finalize the board reports.

Thanks, _

Sincerely,

Alan G. Reed, C.I.C.
Warren Reed Insurance



Warren Reed — Since 1947 —

Insurance

Warren Reed Principle

To provide our customers with quality insurance products and services while
maintaining the highest standard of integrity, trust and respect with our client
base, this commmunity and our agency staff. We will do this by continuing
to build our organizational capabilities and taking seriously the responsibility
placed upon us.

Warren Reed 1947 Founder/deceased 1917 - 1998

Bruce Hollander CPCU 1966 Retired

Jim Norton 1967 Property & Casuailty Agent

William Coverly 1987 Life & Health Agent/deceased 1942 - 2015

Alan Reed CIC 1974 Property & Casualty Agent

Denise Rudnick CISR 1984 Office Manager/Customer Service Representative
Todd Wilcks, CIC 1987 Property & Casualty Agent

Kristi Glover, CISR 2003 Account Executive

Jeff Long 2005 Life & Health Agent

Carolyn Mitchell, CISR 2008 Commerical Lines Customer Service Representative
Mike Downs 2008 Property & Casuaity Agent

Robin Frediani 2006 Claims Administrator

TaylorRe d 2015 Property & Casualty Agent

Rachel Rodroguez 2017 Customer Service Representative

Benjamin Reed 2020 Property and Casualty Agent

AG Reed 2021 Finance Director

Celeste Covey 2021 FProperty and Casualty Agent




Warren Reed insurance has spent more than
a half century earning the respect and admiration of
Carson Valley families and businesses. Our
company’s success rests not with the products and
services we provide, but with the ever-loyal and
expanding clientele we serve. They are the foundation
of our accomplishments.

The original founder of the agency, Warren
Reed, "sel up shup™in lhe living room of his Minden
home in 1947. Over five decades have passed since
then, as a result, Warren Reed Insurance is the
second oldest business (excluding ranches)
operating in the Carson Valley. We are still family
owned.

Our property and casualty insurance division
is the largest and most experienced in Douglas
County, and it is complimented by a strong life and
health department. As an independent insurance
agency, we have spent many years seeking the best
companies with whom to do business. We look for
A-rated carriers that have proven themselves over
the long haul. Superior products, excellent claims-
paying ability, and the way these companies treat
customers are the keys to our business relationships.
All of our carriers know that we work very hard for
our clients, and they respect that.

From first time homebuyers to successful
corporations, our clients represent the diversity of
this wonderful community. They can choose from
dozens of carriers when selecting a plan that fits their
needs. In addition, Warren Reed Insurance is the
leading agency writer of school districts in the State
of Nevada. Other areas of commercial emphasis
include governmental entities, construction, surety
bonding, and gaming industry programs.

We have the ability to tailor complete
insurance portfolios for our customers. It is not
uncommon for clients to have all of their parsonal
property and casualty coverages (homeowner, auto,
recreational vehicle and umbrella), individual life,
health and disability packaged into one file. On the
commercial side, we use a similar approach.
Commercial general liability, property, and umbrella
are generally structured using a series of companies.
Along with that, Warren Reed also attaches corporate
or small group benefit programs. Add competitive
prices, and you'll see why Warren Reed Insurance
is the leader in Carson Valley

Most important to the people at Warren Reed
Insurance are the relationships that are created once
you, the customer, realize that we are here to serve
you; not just today but . . . always.

(G Bacll

(UR) Warren Reed
INSURANCE

1521 Highway 395 » Gardnerville, NV 89410
(775) 782-2277 » Fax (775) 782-7387




SeL
RN
B e




ALPINE

INSURANCE

I. Broker Qualification Questionnaire

1.

Is the firm "Appointed” by or accepted to broker with the Nevada Public Agency
Insurance Pool (POOL) and the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT)
with which the County is currently insured?

Yes, Alpine Insurance is appointed with POOL PACT and has been for several
years. Alpine currently has several accounts with them.

List the name, history, and location of the firm where the County's account will be
handled.

Alpine Insurance Associates. Our corporate office is located at 6160 Plumas
Street Reno, NV 89519 and our Carson office is located at 3352 Goni Rd. Ste
164 Carson City, NV 89706. Alpine has been in business for 76 years.

What is the size of your firm, number of employees and additional locations?

Alpine is the largest family-owned insurance agency in Nevada. We currently
have a staff of 28 employees and 4 locations. 3 locations in Nevada and a
satellite location in Northern California.

Who will be the principal contacts for the County including names, titles and staffing
plan? Include resume information and professional experience for all individuals that
will be assigned to the account.

Ryan Garaventa, CIC, Owner/Vice President; 25 years’ experience

Yvonne Rickman, CIC, CRM, Sales Executive; 25 years’ experience

Angie Brown, CISR, Account Manager; 15 years’ experience

Formal resumes for all of the above available upon request.



ALPINE

INSURANCE

5. How long has your local office and your overall firm been in business in Nevada?

Alpine has been in business for 76 years, with both the Reno and Carson
locations having physical offices for over 40 years.

6. How many governmental entity accounts does your firm represent and what types of
insurance are provided for them? Pleasc include the below information for at least
three (3) of your accounts:

» Name of Firm: Nye County School District

» Point of Contact (name and number): Ray Ritchie (775) 727-7743

+ Lines of coverage written: Commercial Package (General Liability, Auto,
Property, Crime), Workers Compensation, Accidental Death, Bond

*  Years of Service for the account: Since 2011

= summarize your approach to insurance placements: Continuous marketing
research and marketing strategies.

« Name of Firm: Carson City School District

» Point of Contact (name and number): Ann Cyr (775) 283-2023

» Lines of coverage written: Commercial Package (General Liability, Auto,
Property, Crime), Workers Compensation, Accidental Death, Bond

*  Years of Service for the account: Since 2012

* summarize your approach to insurance placements Continuous marketing
research and marketing strategies.

»  Name of Firm: Humboldt County School District

* Point of Contact (name and number): Dave Jensen (775) 623-8100

« Lines of coverage written: Workers Compensation, Bond

»  Yecars of Service for the account: Since 2012

* summarize your approach to insurance placements: Continuous marketing
research and marketing strategies.

+ Name of Firm: Gerlach General Improvement District

» Point of Contact (name and number): Susie Jackson (775) 557-2601

= Lines of coverage written: Commercial Package (General Liability, Auto,
Property, Crime), Workers Compensation

*  Years of Service for the account: Since 2012

* summarize your approach to insurance placements: Continuous marketing
research and marketing strategies.



£

9.

10.

ALPINE

INSURANCE

Explain your approach to marketing and timelines of events relating to insurance
placement, general accounts service (policy review, inquiry response time, issuance
of certificates, etc.), loss control and any other services you would provide.

Alpine Insurance follows POOL/PACT directive of marketing deadlines and individual
account presentation deadlines. Certificates, loss control, and change requests are done by
POOL/PACT.

List the top five (5) commercial insurers with whom you place business (or may
approach for business?)

+ WCF

*  Travelers

= Hartford

*  Amtrust

* Liberty Mutual
*+  Alliant

Describe the level of experience your firm has with insurance and risk management
associated with owning and repairing historic buildings and structures.

We insure, work with, and have bonded both contractors who specialize historic
buildings as well as providing insurance solutions for said jobs. Additionally, our
president is restoring a historic property in Reno as we speak.

Describe fees for proposed services and are they fixed or variable per project.
Describe commission fees and structure for all services. Include a fee schedule for
services to be provided and indicate with explanation if they are fixed or variable,
what commissions are involved, what services are included in fees, what fees are
charged for services not included in base fees.

Alpine does not charge fees. POOL/PACT directs members to pay premium and
the POOL distributes the commission separately to the agency and POOL.



11.

12.

13;

ALPINE

INSURANCE

Are fees all inclusive, or do certain services require additional fees? What costs of
your firm are covered?

Alpine does not charge any additional fees.

If this agreement is renewed for one or more consecutive years, will the annual fee
be guaranteed?

The fee is a percentage of premium due to the POOL/PACT so it fluctuates based
on the programs cost, as outlined above. We are open to negotiation of annual
commission based on service, relationship, time, etc.

If selected as Storecy County's Broker, what services will you provide the County as
part of your Broker fee? What "value added" services do you offer, and what is the
additional fee for those services?

No additional fees. All services are provided as part of a comprehensive
program issued by POOL/PACT and Alpine Insurance.

.If sclected as an exclusive Broker, how can you assure Storey County that you have

provided the most comprehensive and competitive product for their consideration.

Alpine has over 50 years combined experience servicing the POOL/PACT and its
members.  Our nearly 100 years of marketing/servicing and placing Nevada
businesses makes us experts in our field. Additionally, we have successfully created
individual self-insured workers compensation programs for Nye County School
District, Carson City School District and Humboldt County School District which
have saved the Districts millions of dollars over the years.



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

| Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.
BOCC Meeting |
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible approval of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
modifying the Solid Waste Collection Franchise Agreement between Storey County and
Waste Management of Nevada, Inc. to establish and reduce Sunday trash collection rates
for commercial customers in Virginia City and Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada from
December 1, 2021, through the remainder of the franchise agreement.

+ Recommended motion: | (commissioner) motion to approve Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) modifying the Solid Waste Collection Franchise Agreement
between Storey County and Waste Management of Nevada, Inc. to establish and reduce
Sunday trash collection rates for commercial customers in Virginia City and Gold Hill,
Storey County, Nevada from December 1, 2021, through the remainder of the franchise
agreement.

*  Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

« Staff Summary: Special events on Saturdays generate substantial volumes of solid waste
in Virginia City and Gold Hill. Commercial customers under the current agreement must
pay a higher rate for Sunday trash collection than for other days in the week. The
combined circumstances cause adverse financial impact to these businesses. After
hearing concerns from local businesses, Storey County officials and Waste Management
negotiated a proposed agreement where Sunday commercial collection rates will match
those for other days of the week. This agreement applies to Virginia City and Gold Hill
commercial customers only due to the tourism generated waste stream existing in these
communities.

« Supporting Materials: See attached

» Fiscal Impact: none

* Legal review required: TRUE

*  Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:



County Manager

Board Action:

Other Agency Review:

| | Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

| | Denied

[ ] Continued




b Vi \
) Ry
¥ ™

WASTE MANAGEMENT

October 29, 2021

Austin Osborne

Storey County Manager
PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Sunday Trash Collection Rate Realignment for Virginia City

Dear Mr. Osborne:

WASTE MANAGEMENT
100 Vassar Street
Reno, NV 89502

This letter is to memorialize our agreement that the rates below for commercial customers in Virginia City and Gold Hill will

be modified as follows:

12/1/21 Rate

Proposed Rate

1-96 Gal Cart - Sunday Service - per week $41.60 Eliminate

1-96 Gal Cart - Sunday Service - per Month $172.76 $38.98 (once per
week collection)

1-32 Gal Can - Sunday Service - per week $33.93 Eliminate

1-32 Gal Can - Sunday Service - per month $146.56 $10.47 (once per
week collection)

1 Yard — Sunday (Base Rate) 177.27 Eliminate

This adjustment will take effect December 1, 2021.

Sincerely,

WASTE MANAGEMENT OF NEVADA, INC.

Barry Skolnick
President

Agreed to and accepted by:

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:

Title:

Date:




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - | Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.
BOCC Meeting _
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and approval of Storey County Indigent Defense Service Plan
designed to meet the requirements of the State of Nevada in accordance with NRS
260.070 and to comply with the Nevada Supreme Court’s orders in ADKT 411.

*  Recommended motion: [ (county commissioners) motion to approve Storey County
Indigent Defense Service Plan designed to meet the requirements of the State of Nevada
in accordance with NRS 260.070 and to comply with the Nevada Supreme Court’s orders
in ADKT 411.

* Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

« Staff Summary: The Storey County indigent defense services plan is proposed to be
updated in accordance with NRS and orders made to counties in Nevada by the Nevada
Supreme Court in ADKT 411. This will update the DIDS plan from the September 21,
2021, board meeting and prepare it for submittal.

* Supporting Materials: See attached

+ Fiscal Impact: Pending

« Legal review required: TRUE

+  Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

* Board Action:

Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
pPp
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County Plan for Indigent Defense Services

Est. , 2021




STOREY COUNTY INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES PLAN

The Indigent Defense Services Plan (“Plan™) of Storey County (“Storey County™) is intended for
situations in which counsel is required to be appointed for persons under section 180.004 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS™). This Plan is designed to meet the requirements of NRS
260.070(2) placed on Storey County, and to comply with the Nevada Supreme Court’s orders in
Administrative Docket (“ADKT™) 411.

’ RECITALS

a. Storey County is committed to indigent defense. Storey County and the Courts have
previously established an indigent defense system providing a high level of indigent
defense to the people of Storey County. This system. a partnership between Storey County
and the Courts, functioned well and was not in need of fixing. In the history of Storey
County, Storey County is not aware of any person who has ever been adjudged to have
received ineffective assistance of counsel. Storey County was not part of the rural counties
that were named in Davis v. Nevada, Case No. 17 OC 00227 1B (1st Judicial Dist. Ct. Nev.
Aug. 11, 2020).

b. Nevertheless, the regulations of the Board of Indigent Defense Services require Storey
County to discard most of its successful indigent defense program and reestablish a new
one. The objective of this Plan, therefore, is to comply with the obligations placed on
Storey County under NRS Chapters 7 and 180, NRS 260.070(2). and the regulations of the
Board of Indigent Defense Services.

e Storey County also has significant concerns about a state agency having the power to
authorize the expenditure of county funds or dictate or override the autonomy of the elected
or appointed officials of a Nevada County. As such. this plan is not intended to authorize
any expenditures of county funds that are not authorized by elected or appointed persons
in Storey County. It is not the desire or purpose of the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners to authorize a state agency to expend county monies. Through this Plan,
Storey County elects to have its own independent contractors provide the services herein.

d. The functioning of the broader representation and defense services in Storey County relies
upon the State Public Defender representing parents in NRS Chapter 432B actions.
& Portions of this plan are contingent upon the State of Nevada paying for the increases in

the budgetary amounts caused by the adoption of this Plan. In the event that the State of
Nevada does not authorize the increase in expenditures, portions of this Plan may be
eliminated and the provision of services undertaken without such funds.

2. OBJECTIVES AND APPLICABILITY

a. This Plan is intended to continue to provide a system of selection and appointment of
counsel that provides indigent defendants accused of a crime or a delinquent act with an
adequate defense and effective assistance of counsel to protect his or her constitutional
rights; and to provide for the appointment and compensation of qualified counsel, without
waste of public resources.

b. This Plan is designed to be fully compliant with the Nevada Supreme Court’s Orders in
ADKT 411, NRS Chapters 7 and 180. NRS 260.070(2). and the regulations of the Board
of Indigent Defense Services.

Page 1 0of 9



C.

This Plan covers appointment of counsel for “indigent defense services,” as that term is
defined in NRS 180.004. This covers legal representation and services for a person under
the Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution, NRS 7.115, NRS 62D.030, NRS
171.180, and for any law imposing criminal liability on a person that requires or permits
the appointment of counsel for an indigent person. This plan does not address NRS 34.750,
NRS 62D.100, NRS 128.100, NRS 432B.420, and NRS 433A.270. or any other law not
included in NRS 180.004 where the appointment of counsel is required for a juvenile, an
indigent person, or any other person. This Plan does not cover NRS Chapters 159, 159A,
or253.

DEFINITIONS

“JCVT” means the Justice Court of Virginia Township in and for the County of Storey,
State of Nevada.

“Counsel” means the State Public Defender and a private attorney.

“Court” means a department of the FIDC or the JCVT, and “Courts” means the FIDC and
the JCVT collectively.

“DIDS™ means the Nevada Department of Indigent Defense Services.

“DIDS qualified™ means DIDS" placement of an attorney on the list of attorneys who are
qualified to represent indigent persons in Storey County.

“FIDC™ means the First Judicial District Court.

“Indigent Defense Coordinator™ means an independent contractor qualifying as a
“designee” of DIDS. Anindigent defense coordinator shall have the duties specified in this
Plan.

“Indigent Person™ means an individual deemed indigent under this Plan.

“Private Attorney™ means a DIDS qualitied attorney other than the State Public Defender.
“Represent™ or “Representation” means legal representation of an indigent person by
appointed counsel.

“Services” means services provided to an indigent person during appointed counsel’s
representation of that person. and includes investigative, expert, and other services.

“State Public Defender” means the Nevada State Public Defender’s Office established
under NRS Chapter 180 with whom Storey County has contracted with to provide
representation and services to an indigent person.

CASES IN WHICH COUNSEL MUST OR MAY BE APPOINTED
Mandatory Appointment. Representation must be provided for any indigent person:
1. who is charged with a felony or gross misdemeanor:

A who is charged with a misdemeanor in which jail time is mandatory or the
prosecution is seeking jail time (incarceration):

3. who is alleged to have violated probation or other supervision and a jail or prison
sentence of confinement may be imposed:

4, who is a minor alleged to have committed an act of juvenile delinquency, under
NRS 62D.030;

Page 2 of 9



5. who is in custody as a material witness;

6. who is entitled to appointment of counsel under the Sixth Amendment to the United
States Constitution or any provision of the Nevada Constitution;
7. who is entitled to appointment of counsel because due process requires the

appointment of counsel;

8. who is likely to face Court imposed jail or prison time;

9. who faces loss of liberty in a case and Nevada law requires the appointment of
counsel:

10. who faces loss of liberty for criminal contempt;

1. who has received notice that a grand jury is considering a charge against him/her
and has requested counsel: or

12. where Nevada or Federal law otherwise requires the appointment of counsel for a

person meeting the requirements of NRS 180.004.
Discretionary Appointment. When a court determines that the interests of justice so
require, representation may be provided for any indigent person:
1. who is charged with civil contempt and faces loss of liberty: or called as a witness
before a grand jury. a court. or any agency which has the power to compel
testimony, if there is reason to believe, either prior to or during testimony, that the
witness could be subject to criminal prosecution, a civil or criminal contempt
proceeding, or face loss of liberty; or
in any other case meeting the requirements of NRS 180.004 in which the court
determines in the interests of justice appointment of counsel is appropriate.

o

DETERMINATION OF INDIGENCY

A person must be deemed indigent. and is eligible for appointment of counsel to represent
the person. if the person is unable, without substantial hardship to himself or herself or
his or her dependents, to obtain competent and qualified legal counsel on his or her
own.

“Substantial hardship™ is presumed for a person who:

1. receives public assistance, including food stamps, temporary assistance for needy
families, Medicaid. or disability insurance:

resides in public housing;

earns less than 200 percent of the Federal Poverty Guidelines;

is currently serving a sentence in a correctional institution;

is housed in a mental health facility, or

6. IS a minor.

[f substantial hardship is not presumed for a person, a Court may deem a person to have a
substantial hardship based upon the person’s particular circumstances, including:

D o 1

1. the nature, extent, and liquidity of the person’s assets:

2. the person’s disposable income from all sources;

: the person’s monthly expenses:

4. the seriousness of the charges that the person is facing:

5. whether the person is able to comprehend the proceedings and the charges that the
person is facing;

6. the effort and skill required to gather pertinent information about the case;

# the length and complexity of the proceedings:

Page 3 of 9



8. local private counsel rates;

9. whether discovery is needed in post-conviction proceedings: or
10. any other consideration that bears upon the person’s ability to retain and pay an
attorney.

The Court may determine that a person is partially indigent if the Court finds that a person
can afford private counsel or has retained counsel. but the person cannot be effectively
represented due to the person’s inability to pay for necessary services.

SCREENING FOR INDIGENCY

Screening for indigency and substantial hardship will be conducted by the Storey County
Sherift’s Office, or other court or law enforcement personnel within 48 hours for a person
who is booked into the Storey County Jail or a juvenile detention facility and not released;
at the initial appearance for a person who appears before a Court and requests or is required
to be appointed counsel: or sooner as required by applicable law.

The screening results must be provided to the Court as soon as possible after completion.

TIME FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

The Court will review the screening results and, if a person has requested representation,
determine whether the appointment of counsel is mandatory or the interests of justice
require the discretionary appointment of counsel: and whether the person is indigent or
partially indigent.

An attorney must be appointed for any eligible indigent person as soon as feasible after
formal charges being filed against a person held in custody or a person’s first appearance
before a judge: as required by any other applicable provision of law; or when a Court
otherwise considers appointment of counsel appropriate.

An eligible indigent person must be appointed one attorney. except in a capital case, or two
attorneys in a capital case in which a person is reasonably believed to face capital
punishment. At least one of the two attorneys appointed in a capital case must meet the
minimum standard for lead counsel pursuant to Rule 250 of the Nevada Supreme Court
Rules and both attorneys appointed must conform to the performance guidelines or
standards for capital cases as adopted by the Nevada Supreme Court.

INITIAL APPEARANCES

Unless counsel has already been assigned to a person, the State Public Defender will appear
at all in custody pretrial release hearings, initial appearances, or arraignments. The State
Public Defender may provide limited representation to an indigent person, discussing only
matters pertaining to the initial appearance or arraignment to avoid creating conflicts of
interest.

If the State Public Defender determines that it cannot provide limited representation of a
person at the initial hearing or arraignment in a manner consistent with the Nevada Rules
of Professional Conduct, the State Public Defender shall immediately notify the Court so
that the Court may consider whether indigent defense counsel should be appointed.

If counsel other than the State Public Defender has been assigned as an indigent person’s
counsel before the initial appearance. the assigned counsel must appear at the initial
appearance.

Page 4 of 9



At an initial appearance, Counsel must be prepared to address appropriate release
conditions.

A timely initial appearance or arraignment should not be delayed pending a determination
of indigency.

SELECTION, ASSIGNMENT, AND APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL

Court Assignment of the State Public Defender

1. Unless a Court is aware of a conflict for the State Public Defender or any other
reason specified in this Plan why the State Public Defender should not be appointed
as counsel, the Court must first appoint the State Public Defender to represent an
eligible indigent person.

2. The assignment to a case of a specific attorney. or attorneys, working for the State
Public Defender rests solely within the discretion of the State Public Defender.

Assignment of Private Attorney

1. [f the State Public Defender cannot be appointed, the Court shall notify the indigent
defense coordinator.

Z. The indigent defense coordinator shall assign the next private attorney on the DIDS
list, unless the indigent defense coordinator is aware of a conflict or any other
reason why a specific private attorney should not be assigned as counsel.

3 The indigent defense coordinator must assign the next private attorney on the list
in the following order:

I. Private attorneys having an office in Storey County.

il. Private attorneys having an office in Carson City, Churchill, Douglas, Lyon,
Storey. or Washoe Counties.

iii. Private attorneys having offices in other counties are deemed to be too

remote to Storey County to provide effective assistance of counsel.

Appointment of Counsel When No DIDS Qualified Counsel is Available.

If the indigent defense coordinator is unable to assign a private attorney to represent an
indigent person, the indigent defense coordinator must notify DIDS and the Court of the
failure to assign counsel.

General Procedures for the Assignment of Counsel

1. Counsel assigned for co-defendants may not be from the same law firm.

2 The indigent defense coordinator may assign counsel that has been previously
appointed for an indigent defendant in a different action for the indigent person if
it would be in the indigent person’s best interests to have the same counsel and
would facilitate the indigent person’s defense.

Counsel must comply with section 13(d) in order to be assigned as counsel for an
indigent person. Counsel who refuses to comply with section 13(d) will be deemed
ineligible to be assigned as indigent defense counsel in Storey County.

2

Page 5 of 9



€.

10.

0

4. The indigent defense coordinator must use his or her best efforts to fairly rotate the
assignment of private attorneys on any legitimate basis, taking into consideration
conflicts, workloads. availability, qualifications, interest, track record of
responsiveness and dependability in accepting assignments, feedback from clients,
feedback from Storey County officials.

5 An assigned or appointed counsel must conduct a conflict check to determine
whether any conflict of interest exists which would prevent his or her representation
of the indigent person. If a conflict is determined to exist, counsel must notify the
Court (for the State Public Defender) or the indigent defense coordinator (for
private attorneys). Counsel must conduct the conflict checks and notify the indigent
defense coordinator within 1 day of being assigned or appointed.

6. The judges of the Courts will have no input regarding the assignment of counsel by
the indigent defense coordinator in a particular case.

Court Appointment of Counsel

1. When the indigent defense coordinator assigns counsel to the case, the indigent
defense coordinator will notify the Court of the assigned counsel.

2 The assigned attorney must file a notice of appearance indicating that he has been
assigned to the case.
3. The Court may enter an order appointing the assigned counsel to represent the

indigent person, according to its rules and procedure.

CHANGE IN ELIGIBILITY

An appointed counsel must advise the Court if, or when, an indigent person has a change
in his or her financial condition that may make him or her ineligible for public payment for
indigent representation. Such information is not protected as a privileged attorney-client
communication.

COMPENSATION

Storey County will compensate the State Public Defender as provided by NRS Chapter 180

for representation of indigent persons. Storey County will compensate private attorneys

under this Plan or other applicable law for time that is reasonable and necessary for

representation of an indigent person.

Unless otherwise provided in a contract, statute, or regulation, counsel may seek

compensation for representation of an indigent person through the following procedure.

1. Counsel must submit a request for compensation to the indigent defense

coordinator, using a form prescribed by the indigent defense coordinator.

The request must be supported by a sworn statement specifying time entries

rounded to the nearest one-tenth of an hour, a detailed description of the work

performed for the representation, a description of the compensation rate applicable

to counsel, a statement of any compensation already received from any source for

representation in the case, and any other material supporting the request for

compensation. The invoice must comply with the requirements of section 13.

3. Counsel should submit a request for compensation at least quarterly, but in any
event within 60 days after the date that the representation is terminated. Requests
submitted more than 60 days after the representation is terminated will be denied.

S

)

Page 6 of 9



4. The indigent defense coordinator will approve, modify, or deny the request for

compensation.
3 No hearing will be held regarding the request for compensation.
6. If the request for compensation is approved, the indigent defense coordinator will

send the request to the designated accounting personnel for entry into the City’s
payment system.

¥ If the request for compensation is denied, the indigent defense coordinator will
notify counsel that his or her request was denied.
8. If the request is denied, counsel may file a motion for compensation with the trial

court. A motion for compensation must contain the request for compensation, any
information accompanying the request, the denial of the request for compensation,
and a proposed order.

EXPENSES

Storey County will reimburse counsel for services that are reasonable and necessary for the
indigent person’s defense.

Storey County will pay expenses of the State Public Defender for representation of indigent
persons as provided by NRS Chapter 180 if the expenses are included in the budget of the
State Public Defender. Storey County will pay expenses of private counsel as further
provided in this Plan.

Unless otherwise provided in a contract, counsel may incur expenses for services costing
$1.000 or less. but must obtain pre-authorization for expenses for services costing more
than $1.000. All expenses must be reasonable and necessary for the representation of the
indigent person, and reimbursement for expenses for services costing $1,000 or less may
be denied if it is determined that the services were not reasonable and necessary for
representation of the indigent person.

Counsel may seek reimbursement or pre-authorization for expenses through the following

procedure.

1. Counsel must submit a request for reimbursement or pre-authorization of expenses
to the indigent defense coordinator. using a form prescribed by the indigent defense
coordinator.

2. The request must be supported by a sworn statement specifying the services

rendered or requested, the cost of the services, why the cost of the services are
reasonable, and why the services are necessary for the representation, any
compensation already received from any source for the services, and any other
material supporting the request for expenses. The invoice accompanying the
request must comply with the requirements of section 13.

3. Counsel should submit a request for reimbursement or expenses at least quarterly.
but in any event within 60 days after the date that the representation is terminated.
Requests submitted more than 60 days after the representation is terminated will be

denied.

4, The indigent defense coordinator will approve, modify, or deny the request for
reimbursement or expenses.

3 No hearing will be held regarding the request for reimbursement or expenses.

Page 7 of 9



[o]

o

14.

o

6. If the request for reimbursement or expenses is approved. the indigent defense
coordinator will send the request to the designated accounting personnel for entry
into the City’s payment system.

7. If the request for reimbursement or expenses is denied, the indigent defense
coordinator will notify counsel that his or her request was denied.
8. If the request is denied. counsel may file a motion for expenses with the trial court.

A motion for expenses must contain the request for expenses, any information
accompanying the request. the denial of the request for expenses, and a proposed
order.

PAYMENT FOR COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES

Requests for compensation and expenses or for reconsideration will be denied if not timely
submitted. Approved requests will be paid reasonably promptly.

Invoices for requests for compensation and expenses under sections 10 and 11 must
conform to government accounting standards.

Invoices for representation or services provided to an inmate of the Nevada State Prison
system, or any person acting in concert with the inmate, for an escape, an attempted escape,
or a crime committed while incarcerated, which are considered a state expense pursuant to
NRS 212.070, must state on the invoices that the services are provided to such an inmate
of the Nevada State Prison system. If approved, Storey County accounting personnel will
submit the request for payment to DIDS at didscontact@dids.nv.gov with “Prison
Expense™ in the subject line.

Any person requesting payment from Storey County must be registered with Storey County
as a vendor and have a 1099 tax form and a business license on file with Storey County.
Any person requesting payment from the State of Nevada must be a registered vendor with
the State of Nevada Controller’s Office.

Counsel may request that Storey County pay the vendor directly if the vendor complies
with this section.

REQUIRED DUTIES OF COUNSEL

Counsel must comply with the caseload and time reporting requirements for DIDS.
Counsel must comply with the workload standards specified by DIDS.

Jail and courthouse facilities for attorneys” use for discussions with witnesses or clients are
generally available to counsel representing indigent persons for attorney/client meetings to
the same extent that they are available to other counsel. Such facilities include the attorney
meeting rooms outside of each courtroom, and private meeting space within the jail.
Counsel who are not familiar with the accommodations at the Courts or the Storey County
Jail may ask the Court Clerk’s Office or jail personnel for assistance in speaking privately
with the indigent person.

Counsel or the Courts must provide client surveys authorized by the Nevada Board on
Indigent Defense Services to an indigent person appointed counsel under this Plan.
Complaints about counsel or attorneys must be forwarded to the DIDS.

If counsel becomes aware of a complaint concerning representation of an indigent person
that rises to the level of interfering with the representation of the indigent person, counsel
must timely notify the Court.

Page 8 of 9



Counsel must comply with all applicable law concerning representation of an indigent
person, including, but not limited to: the U.S. and Nevada Constitutions, the Nevada
Revised Statutes, the Nevada Administrative Code. the Nevada Rules of Professional
Conduct, and the Nevada Indigent Defense Standards of Performance implemented by the
Nevada Supreme Court.

Counsel and attorneys must comply with all court rules.

Counsel appointed to represent an indigent person is expected to represent that person
though every stage of the case. at every hearing, and at trial, unless a court order is entered
substituting another attorney in place of the original attorney or otherwise relieving the
original attorney of the responsibility of representing the indigent person. This provision
does not prohibit another attorney from appearing at a hearing for the appointed counsel to
represent the indigent person if the appointed attorney has an unavoidable scheduling
conflict, provided that the appointed attorney has sufficiently appraised the other attorney
about the case to enable the other attorney to provide effective assistance of counsel.
Counsel appointed to represent an indigent person is expected to provide effective
assistance of counsel to the indigent person. This includes: meeting with the indigent
person before the first appearance after counsel is appointed; updating the indigent person
on his or her case at least every 30 days, unless, in counsel’s professional opinion, there
are no significant updates in the indigent person’s case; and advising the indigent person
not to waive any substantive rights or plead guilty at the initial appearance, unless to do
otherwise is, in counsel’s professional judgment. in the client’s best interest.

Appointed counsel shall not request. require or accept any payment or promise to pay or
any other valuable consideration for representation under the appointment unless such
payment is approved by order of the Court.

Page 9 of 9



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners |
| Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - ' Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.
' BOCC Meeting |

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: Discussion, public workshop, and possible
direction to staff on formulating for future board action the FY2022 — 2028 Storey
County Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) including facilities and infrastructure, plans and
studies, and equipment and vehicles. A final CIP draft will be considered for approval by
the board at a later meeting.

Recommended motion: | (commissioner) motion to direct staff to proceed with the draft
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) as presented by staff, but with the following
amendments from this workshop (list amendments), and to bring a final draft CIP back to
this board before the FY2022-23 budget season for possible final consideration and
implementation.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: County department heads. elected officials, and other stakeholders for
the past year collaborated and engaged with the public and business owners to build a
draft capital improvement plan for the board and public to review and discuss at this
workshop. The draft CIP includes needed projects which are likely to occur in the next
eight-year period. The capital items listed for this workshop also include a “wish list™ of
items which do not appear to be feasible to consider within this timeframe. They are.
however, to be included in this workshop for review and consideration. Following the
workshop, county staff will amend the CIP for board consideration. The final board-
adopted CIP will be used in building the FY22/23 and later budgets. The CIP draft aligns
with known elements of the county’s draft strategic plan which is expected to be
completed in January 2022. Staff may bring the CIP back to the board for amendments if
elements are found to substantially misalign with the final strategic plan.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: Pending

Legal review required: TRUE




*  Reviewed by:

Department Head

County Manager

*  Board Action:

Department Name:

Other Agency Review:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




‘anyo F_UEn_.u_u>uD AYUnuWwo) 03 a3ueljua uiew 0} Anua Jie plo3/wooipnuw ppy PNIA ASQ wwio) as 000°sZ 3 (74 saey 4o ad
®aie Bunyed uawdojanag Alunwwio) 61 Siedwing pue spJejjoq ppy. ‘sdwing "AaQ WWo) [E) 00004 S [ sajie] i) ad
wawdojaaag Ayunwwo) je asueydwod yay asoidw| YAy A3Q Wwa) a0 000007 B ST S30e] 41 [(E
SPUN0Id puUE BUIP|ING Jalua) PIFGSIQ O] SUSWAAIOTW) ADUsDIR)e pue ‘ALumas Aajes Rnaas yaedsig Tuno) 000002 3 [33 INPINIISELu| yiedsig
“papaau aueAasuaday SBFUIEIP YLIOU-0J-4IN0s PPy SaBEUitip put BUIping (15 SAOLIS] O} SA1IQ ABUPAS J€ J€s-ap-jr 181109 eg-20n) Asuphs 141 0000001 & 3 speoy Md
[ro>aunos 12a1s |) proy spunciliie] aAed put apein “PY Spunciiney 3A 000001 3 [33 speoy S10A
"SANAIPS JOIUS PUE 13S0 POO) SIUSAS A1EU[IDR) J3NSQ O} J31UI) ANUNWILIO) IEM] YR J14oIlay J8lUa) Wwod LW ] 000051 3 [33 seuoes dD Md
"o 05/va ) Buaow ssaun S ||AMOH puT YOEIG Y1 1T JAUAT SIONSIA JLIA MaU png Prng 1aua) JIOA [ wisunoy 0000007 & ST ETETY J10A
2050 05/vQ 01 BUIADW ssajun WS [|SMOH PUE YOBIE 3y) 1€ JIUD LIOUSIA DLDA MU ulisag udisaQ i2ua) DDA Runoy 000'0E1 [ [ J10A] ETRT)
“auop podas saunpnng suydew Jadosd pue UIapOoW YIIM asNOYLINOD AJUNoD) AaJOlS Ul J01EIaUa8 SOBRT 2oejday U3 NI HI Auno) 0000 [ [~ sanioey d Md
[T suopwodal simpnag, #SnoyLNG AUno) Aaiols Ul Burim [Esuise)a aoejdey R L TEE) 000'05¢ S [33 sa01I7e3 diD Md
Aupoep uegdwod pue patepdn yum (004 Bulunms AjunoD) A2103S F9g1 aJejday 004 WiMg DS JA 000'000° S [73 aInnselu| Md
papaau uejd IIIH P1o9 uj saul| Jamas asejday 53Ul 19MaS HO Ho [ 0000007 $ | 000007 S| gzwen [ 1ames Md
diD 104 Juawled jenuuy wawaaly wawdojaaaq Jad ainaniselu) jo yoegheg (4] [enuuy ¥Z ¥oeqAeg 4] 000'005 € 3 [73 yoeqAed §1 "dwao)
PASN pun4 ey |RA S|ES JUad 7 10dag &ai4 op punase ease Sunped aaeg Buiaeq jodag DA JA 000007 3 v ey Md/DLOA
3D 10; JuswAed jenuuy Wawaaily JUsWa0|aAaq 130 aINPNNSELU] JO YIEqARg (4] [EnuLY €7 1°°qAeg (4L 000005€ S 33 XoeqAed 141 dwoy
Pasn pun [iey ['RA SHeS Juad 67 (318 Swoonsas 'spel W) vay) 19daq wHaig DA 01 uawasosdun vay vay 10d3d JA oA 000°0Z S € [ Md/IIOA
Pasn pund iy LA S3|€s a0 57 s1aBuassed Joj UIe] 0} 1DIUUOT 0) 1008Q I BaI3 HD 03 GWE] PPE HO dwey vav 10820 HO HO 00005 s 13 310A] Md
$323ne) 2auy) Joy spunasllie HA e sdnyjooy Jaem J3EA spunciiiney Runoy 000'S [ [73 DDA DA
Ajuo MOy paumo-Ajunod 104 13U [IR1ISNPU| OUSY-30Ye] JO) Spaau adeuielp alenjeAa 0] Apmis Apms aBeueuq ¥] M1 | ooo'oot ¢ [ ooo'or [3 [73 Buiuueld ueyd
ansap pue Aypqiya Suipuag UISI] UAWAACIdU| [B13US5) UOALES O 13m0 ALUN0D W0J) UOKRIaUL03 SABMOIIA Q193 &1 13q4 M1 Ajunoy 000°T 3 [73 1 10
“alisap pue Aypqia Buipuag ‘a0 vonesodio) ApUnwiwo?) poomyo] o Jamo] AJunod Walj UCDSUL0D SAEMOI A 371 01 123G M1 Aunoy 0001 [3 (73 1l 1
2J153p pue Aypigqidije Juipuag BSNOYGNID YOH PUPg MOGUIRY 0] Jamal AIUNGI Wo i) UGHISUUOD SARMOIIN § MOqUIEY 01 Jagid M1 [ Aunod 000'1 S [ 1 1
"sBUIP|ING D0 PUE MOGUIRY 01 PUE JSAN] b/ UOITEIS 'UONEISGNS S USaMIaG YUl SAEMOIIW PUE 1Mo AU SSPRIM/I2GII M1 || Auno) 000°59 B 33 1 1
‘aUOp JeaU 30 M Juawase] poomya0] —:a:u:n.:t SUDIDAUUOD PDSUIIUI JABMOIINL JJeVOe) 0} UONEISQNS OF Puiyaq Jamo| IMO] BAEMOIDIN M Runoy 000’0l [ [74 11 11
mou Suuedaig 523208 APUNWIWOD J0j 3040 s AJUNoD ppy BUIPiing JEINPOW MaU YIIM UGHEISqNS POOYMOCT OS a2eiday uoEISGNS 05 M1 Auno) 000°00¢ 3 [73 saped diD HUAS
“wiashs Womiau yomlau oipey ‘yaledsiq ‘Alunod-penp ay jo dweaas Jeak-01 11 yun J2q1 uoiiay Auno) 0007005 [ [33 1 M
Pasn pung ey | §A $31€S U0 57 1009 WBial] DA UO 001 M3 JA jo0y 1043 DA | wsuno 0007051 B 53 AN
{7z Ad) 1707 1290000 pig 01100 131U Apunwiwiod 3wodaaq 01 Aeq sniejedde Bunsixa moje o) sAeg 7 UONEIS aid HOA sheg 2414 HOA HOA 000°00€ < 13 INPANRSEIU| Md
sheq 7/ vonels Buipuag (sAeg 7/ uonEls a4 Jaye UDIINIISUDD) J1@ SWO0NISal 1J0Jjal JUIPIING Jaluad AJUNWWIOD HDA 13)Ua) W0 HOA HOA 000051 [3 [33 aINPNASeyU| Md
N Wwon/503 mou Fuialieg 131437 UDIIENDEAS PUE D03 9PN|IUl PUE MaU UM J31Ua0 ANUMWLLOD PUB JOIUSS PODMAIT Jajua) Wwoy M1 M1 | 000005T 6 | 000006 €| ecen [ SInpPnnsenu| Md
L RINTINISRIUI IO GIURIUIRPY “xadwiod URLIEDOW S/ UCIEIS (4] VO SJUSWaA0duwl Jo0s pue Jooiay 54 141 Jo0yay Runo)y 000°00Y [] 13 aIUBUBIUIRIN Md
d1D J0) wawdled jenduy Juaaaidy USLLd0ojaAaE 490 SINPNISElU] JO {IBGARS (4] [Enudy 77 4oeqhed (u) 000000F S Tt yoeqAey (u] “dwo))]
ZPUNy 2IN1INASEIJUl 10 SPEOY PEOY apeis Jiqd (O 01 UNOD) @xsn| BUSAUUOD AEMBALP PPy PeOY Jeay LING) aonsn[ Kunody 0007001 3 €7 specy dr
10f Burped Jajue) axnsnf 01 Wwawased pue "Buipesd “spiejoq PPy Burped Lno) 200sn[ Kunoy 000'SLT (3 3 dOf 4D df
¢Buipun; yduy Piq 01 1n0 VQV pue K1ajes 0} 83nOYLING) JO IUOI| Ui ABMY|EM BUDIS UBLIEY PUE [8A3] WEMIPIS HO B3 000002 g 43 SAUIEI dD| KIS 1V/AG
a0 0] Juipea) s1iels Jadoid Yiim ady0 § 1#|00dWwo) 1yonay S1el8 040 Kuno) 000705 [3 a3 sagged| g/ idwod
UMOUY JOU SUSIIpUODfaunjes uoisuedxa Aiajawa unod aiminy 10} uiep pajuaied ane-(g7 annboe J0 aseyding e g7 Aalawa) Ajunory 00002 [3 £z SINPINNSELU| FUOleaY /ueld
207 YEm Juawase] SJ0I3aI JBYI0 pue ‘jjem Buiuie]al pEngas ‘pecs Bunsixa ased JUIWISES PEOJ J3MO] T M1 peoy samo] MY M1 000051 [3 F3 AIMPINISeLU| Md
ueyd IMEM LRIp 935 TFH P10 Ui $aui] UORNGLNSIP JA1EM aoeday. S3UTY JAIEM HO HO | 00000ST S | 000 00E S| ez e ST TSIEM Md
"Syue] adepdal 0) aaPuIaY andsues] 10U Op Juswaoedas Ue) 1o} SIURIE § USR] JBUl| JUE] JSIBM 73S Bulur] yue ] JBIEM JA A | 000°00E $ | ooo'oos 3 FZd IWEM Md
ueld Ja1Em JJEIp daG Ao eudia Ul saul uoungUIsIp Jajem adejday SUP J21BM DA JA | 000°00S°T 5 | ooo'oos s | £z e [33 FESTTA Md
uw|d 1318M 1RIp 335 yue| Jaem sojhe | aseiday yuej sopfe | aA | 000054 S | noo'ost S| ez wen ST J3IBM) Md
ueid 1a1em eip @ yue sarep A sans aceday yue] I3A)S 13aps | 000°0SL s | ooo’ost S| ez ey ST 1eM, Md
ueyd Jajem yeip aas U] UOISSIUSURL] Jaem AL JaAIS 0] Jue) aping aun sanep sanis | saNisHA | 0000027 S | ooo'ove S| €7 e a7 eI Md
ueyd Jajem yeup 335 yue ] Jaepm aping aoeday FUEL 3PN H9/oA | 000'0sL $ | ooo’os1 < ez wen 97 IEM Md
ueyd JIIEM LEIP 835 BUI| UISSIWISURI] JI1EM YUR | JEIEM SPINQ O) SHUEB] IPISIIH yuBj IPIS|H HO/OA | 000°P00'T S | 008807 £7 Wwein 97 IRNEM Md
ueyd Ja1em YoIp 335 212 SaiAIas 'UONEYEISUI ‘S|ELAIEW] LB JALEAN 12011S UOIUN O 1aaUls § sun Ja1eMm 1S 9 A | 00000572 S | 000005 [ £Z lumig [53 Jaiem Md
(LI
S3HON “(wunied yay
uatunuod
Ul %0Z yen) di3 Awno) wihiey
uondinsag SweN poys | uopexay 0L wen | sveumsa ol _l-uﬂ”uh-m - pung| waunsedag| Mpoug
pajewns3

S12310Hd INIWIAOELNI TYLIdYD

‘pafieinoau s| WBWW Jjqnd saded Supel € s sy

‘udliessaau0) ueyl Jaying Juigihue Joj pasn aq jou Aew 1o ‘DAl 10 puedsa Aew ‘anelual 51 sy ayL TIEPNG

“PUE UEA SIIA] € 16] PAISPIEUGS 59 160 KEW 10 K Moj5q SWSTT UL ‘wed patadpng o “ueyd feudes ‘erd e 134

10U s SIyJ "§TOZ-TZ0Z Wouy AJuncd ay) w papaau aq Aew ey sBuryy apqissod |je Jo ISy ysim_ € 51 JU3WMOoP siy|

IONVHD OL LI3rANS B3dVd ONINTYL
(L4vya) doysxiom dijqnd 104 dId Hela oL o oL

“SUOISSNISIP AjUNWLI0) pue ‘uoide pieoq ‘afueyd o3 Paigns | Jvya saded Buyel

Awno) Aasois




Bursnoy ajgepiogy 00000075 AUO 151 s ]
oy saepiony 000000T__ S LIEEED Md
0000005 __ S 0357 4SIAA Wi
006000T__§ RS v o uEg
“PRURLIATSP 3G OF VG0 0000007 RUO BT USIM|_ VaMuA,
000008 5 U0 3511 g s |
—_ouode1 Aq uswisie Bupuag 000'000°T UG 1511 US| M
X A0 351 ysim| Md
133701 POOII N1 4uim uf 1L 00000077 ST Y5M) Md
00000001 00 51T 4o "
LIEERD weld|
"001 33135 (nd 4904 paruied 000005 STTYSM HES IV
000001 5 AUO 1511 4sim| 120 - ¥d|
00000t § U0 1511 45 [=]
6
.x..mso LUOLDI3IPSUOD PUD M3iAas doysYIoM Jof 210 A3y L “3wi) SIy3 30 diD 243 Uj PPNyl 3q 03 pasodoid Jou 2:0 pub Ajuo 1si] ysim,, 0 210 bummoyof 2yl
vioi8ns 000'88£'00T $ | 005'800TZ ¢
uoiydo asn jjny, siedal Auoajeg Auodjeg s adig Auno) 000°05Z < 87 s1adig J1OA
woday s2INjoNS JU0YSIH 235 $100p 3sNoy adeied 7 Pjingai/ysiqinjas ‘sioop asnoy adelse] Joy Suiuado 7 daig asnoy adenie) s adig Ajunogy 00004 3 87 siadid LA
Hoday $ainIns J0IsIH aag azis (aued apauayy apelddn ‘uaydly Buiiales man uayouy sJadig Ajunon 00009 < 87 siadig DA
woday s31nIN1S JU0ISIH 225 J0jelauad Auadialia ppy 'Y00S O 8diAlas apeiddn 18213333 s Jadid Ajunody 000'STT < 87 siadid JLOA
woday saimanig JUolsiH 23S ppe 'u juan joos ‘uoiiejuan ap Buljood aajesodeAs pue Buneay SIUCIPAY WNUCUPNE ‘Jaleay 07y U0||e8 03 PPY BUIQWIN|d/IVAH § Jadig Auncy | 000’001 S | oo’z ¢ szwenn 87 siadig J0A
yoday saimonig JUO0lSIH 335 [PPY '2Pis YUON SIIE)S SS2183 Jolaia mum_amx ‘S100p U0 / ySiqinjay "Jeg Jaulo) PO 38 Jeuow - EEIL] xmn..t.ar__mnox Joiieixd s jadig Ajunod | 000°00T s | oosz9 < g7 Wwen az siadid J1DA
yoday saInionig JUoIsIH aag sjeruly Suissiw adejday ‘suey 1sneyxa Woonsay | s1sixa 5e, siedal Auodjeg ‘Aucojeq o) saiels a1ajdwon sieday s Jadid Aunoy 000°8E F3 97 ssadid ETRY)
voday saJmonis JUoIsIH 235 syuawanaidwil Aempeoy 132135 anoiduw| peoy s jadig Ajuno 000°058 < 97 speoy 1A
yoday sanPniIs JUoIsIH 2% UOIEI|YUI JjEM/||em BUIp|ing 1SaM AININIIS [ 5 Jedig Auncy 00050k < az [ZENES) J10A
3NUIUDD O] UCIESIBAUDD [OON A3 eIuiEnA Ul TPE ¥S JO PUB Y1IOU U0 20U3PIsal 0} JUAJEIPe |[eM BUlulelal 1Dnisuodsy 1|EAA UIBI3Y [PE WS JA | 00088189 5 | 000'00S 3 9z speoy Md
"S321YaA |PDJBWIWCD 81| PUe sNIEJdde 2il) )PPOIWOIIE 0] doys adimas puedxy doys ¥onu) aig md Auno 000'005'T s 9z sanjiae4 di3 Md
doys sy1om Nqnd 18 yuey |any pauij-sgnop soejday Md 18 Sjue] |ang Auno) 000°05 S ST 1dag XN d1D Md
¢duipuny s33an5 Uiew, |00425 PIEA YLINO4 pue 3d140 S USamiaq 133115 ) jO J3PNOYS 15€a BUOE y|EMapIS yBMpPIROg 35 D 1SIM JA 000°000'T 5 BZ Saiupe4 4 Md/ueld
$Buipun; $3aans uien,, 100425 PIEM YLINC PUE 32140 OS UAaMIaq 123115 ) |0 2BPa 153M BUOJE Y|EMBPIS UBPOoMm adejday Ylempieog 15 Jise3 A 000°005 < 87 Sanijioed dio Mdfueld
Apeay a12|dwod sulisauiau] “13841S @ 01 D WOy 5J1els 13ans JojAe] dosiy aoejday sHelS 1S JojAe] A 000°051 [ 8 sanijeq dio 31OA
‘papaau Burddeyy “30daQ 141314 |jIH P|OD puncie ease Bunped aAeg aAeq Buiyied 10dag HO HD 000002 3 [T ey Md/DLOA
“3UOp 11003l S2INNIS S2IMINI35 UOIEAHL aXeNnDy1IEa quim asnoyLnog AJunos AaJols 14oiay 011ey 2yenbype3 o) RKunod | 000'00p ¢ | oc00007 S| 9zwen 87 PTS) Md
Buipuag Apmis. urejdpooyy Y34 241 40 1N0 ¢/ UONELS @il POOMYI0] aAOW BAOPY UONEIS 8114 M1 alng 0000007 S 87 aJmanaseyu| EYE]
spuejydiH 1e ezejd x0q|IewW 1314as mMOUS puedxa pue 1InJjsuolay ezre|d xoqyiey HOA HOA 000001 [3 az diD Md
“spunoJd 131Ua) AJIUNLLLLIOY UIBM] YIEy U EZE|d XOqIEL Pajeplosuoy) 22| XOQIEWN IW 1N 000°05 g 97 dD Md
spuncidiey JA je SWooisay woailsay spunodiiey Awno) 000°001 3 ar J10A J10M
4100q 13521} SPUNCIIE] BUNSIXa |apowiay S32321] spunoidiey Alungy 000°01 3 a7 J1OA J10A
SaAJRUIAYE IND} O BUQ ‘1 2uiBu3 Apagn pue seydaz Ussmiag 10] JUEDEA 1€ swoo5al gnd PRy 13305 ) SwWoonsay B 000°007 [ [13 J10A J1IA!
MOU 55358y aseyd Aisaoosi( Ajj1an sed |einjeu M Mau 03 D 19auuod o] Adlsug AN mojfy "3D7 InoyBnoly) saul| uonnqIIsIp sed adejday saul] seq 377 M1 000°000°T 3 eda Annaseyu) uejg
wawaady wawdojanag Jad AUNINISeIjU| jo Ieqhey [y [enuuy T y2eqARd [4] 000000 5 (74 ¥aeqAeq |y dwo))|
121U33 AUNWWoD Ulem| yiew 1e 10| Sunyed aeday aaeday wwio] |y 7] 000°007 g ST saupded 40 JJ1N
131u3) AJUMUWIo) UleMm | YJB 3Y] punole Uonesii pue "saan ‘Suideaspue) ppy §334] wwod JIN 1A 000°00T 5 ST 201w
“131ua) ABUnWIWo) ulem| e puncle Junydl 1o) sunped pue Buiydi) Joalxs [|BIsu] sy wwoe) 1N 1A 000°0L S ST pail]
eaie Aeq nm.guuo Bunsixa ojur puedxa ued 371 0s snyesedde 211y Joj Buipjing a1eiedas ppy Aeg a8y wWwod [N ) 000052 3 (T4 i DLW
4 BINIDNIISELU) IO IDUBIUIRINY sljedal AJessaau ayewl pue JOo) |ejaw §oay) JO0Y WWo) [N W 00001 3 Sz EEETs] BRIT,)
1aua) AUNWWo) uiem] yIepy 1 s18yealq pue [eau3d3)3 apesddn 1B2L133(3 wWwo) |y I 000°SL < (54 saed 4o R,
“s}ij0.3a) palejal pue "Aupqissadde yQy Ainl 'swooi1se) yay YUM asnoyunod Aunan Aaions 1jonay SWo0JIsayY Yay Ho Aunod 000052 s ST 40 ETETR)
UOI19MuIsuUoJa) adeulelp pue ‘sjuawasaiduw) Japinoys “Buiuapim peoy umolesno| UMo3asnal HOA 000°000°C [3 14 speoy
Uoionijsucdial mwm:_m:u pue ‘sjuawaacidwi apnoys Buiuapim peoy JyBumue) WyBumue HOA 000°'000°2 S (54 speoy
LPUNY 1By | gA Sa|es quad g7 133135 4 pue peoy spunoidiey 1e Buissoud Yy [eudis Alzadord pue 19103 'udljesy HY "PY spunodneq A 000°052 3 ST speoy
auop uejd ‘00l SMD "yaiew uok] 318 ‘spaAnNd 'sJuswWasea ‘suIseq uonualap dmmc_m._ﬁ.m:.v:_uc_ uejd iasew JyAQ wewajdw) Juawdw| JWVAD LN 1w | ooo'ooo’'or  $ | ooo'o0z [3 S7 U 87 Buuuelg
Apmis Buipuay 213 'SUaAND "S1UALLSSEa 'UOHUSap “aSeuieIp BUINPOUl aBRUIRIP (] Juawadu) wawajdw) adewesq Y] M1 000°02 S 8¢ Bujuueyy
Apmg Buipuag 218 'SUBAND 'S ‘uofiualap ‘adeurelp Buipnpul ad P |I'H PioS uawaduw) wawaydw] adewielg HY HO | 000'0007 S | 000702 $| szivein 87 Fuuueld
23uajjeyd Bunywiad vd3/d3aN 21 'SUAAND S1UAWASES 'UOIUAISP SARUIEIP BUIPNIUI AN SBEWEIQ Ay XIS JUaWajdw| uawajdw| pooj N § DA | poo’o00'0T  $ | 000002 S| s7wen o7 Buluuelg
Apnis Buipuag 23 'SUAAIND "SJuBwasea ‘suiseq uoljualap ‘wmmc_m:.._ ucﬁ:ﬁu:_ Apms wnwm:_ﬂo JA WuawWaduw) wwawajdw) adeuieiqg DA A | 000°000°0T S | 000002 [3 87 1UBIG 87 u:.::wK
{s1k9-¢)
Tv10L18NS 000'pEB'LT  § | 00B'IOV'SZT §
uawdojaraq AJUNWLIG) O} Jolesauad Anyoeq ppy ‘U9 "ARQ WWO) [i5) 00001 3 57 2e4 410 ao!
2Jmny U pasnal aq Uea pjloy “PloWw 511502 150 “AIRPUNO} UaY] PO “2Ua) U0K IYBNCIM asnoylno) jo suoiiod soejda) pue Jieday Jieday eouad esnoypno) Aunod 00002 S €7 DEJ D Md
WNOD a3435N( 1€ J0| Buiyied aAoidull pue eaeg aansn[ Aunod 0005, < [ sal|eq 41 df
SUOIIE2IUNWIWOD PUE ‘9BRI0IS SNY'| 'SaNASp YIOMIaN NV Auna) 000021 3 73 2INIINISeljU) 11
spunasdiled DA 8yl aAIas 03 sdny0oy pue sa0d Jamod 13mM0d spunosBney Ajuno)y 000°S/ 3 [13 2L0A JLOA




SIDIHIA ANV INIWLINDI
W1018NS 0000051 § | 000505 &
Apn: “¥03SWI0) PUR SpUBYBH 10§ UOINGLISIP nﬁchS_Ea:a.—umu_ wwwwwwww Apnis 1sap ey g JAJHDA 0000 3 9z ueid
21 J@ans J pu TOLE yaa dooj pue 0 J0) Apmis waned Jyyen eundnp 00000 S 9z ueld
eq 15500 JO} paiapisucd ag A RO 1RYM FUILLIF Hodai pue Apnig Apris uopueqy Auno) 0000 [ 3 Buuul uelg
YN POCMY307 10} SPOYI W UOIENIW Poo]; dojarap 01 Apms Apms pooly M1 M1 [ 0000051 S | 000°SL S (13 uu uejq
v /W 33/dI0N Buipnjoutl ucAuE) i XIS 10§ Spasu aBe 1enjeAa 01 Apmis Apmis afeureig JA 0005 3 v Buuu ueld
W34/, u 3§ ue 'H PI09 ‘uoAue]) pjog 10} spaau ade jenjeAa 0 Apms 1S adeuieig HO 000'S $ 73 Fuu uelg
®UIA J0) ApniS Bur 7661 01 \epdn Apras Buiyieg DA 000°00 S €7 ueid/J1IA
LA U uey S aepdn| 000 ued adajens Auno; 000°0S 3 [£4 HES IV
DUBISISTE [ENUYIA] PU nsi 1epdn ued Jaise Auna) A21015 JEaA-0T aiepdn) uwd Jase Auno) 00000 3 € ueld
s210N “wunjod yay
Wwalunuod
Ul %07 YaIew) Kuno)y wiiey
il UOREAT | eropwuesn | svewns3 jesoy l.ﬂuﬂ sea) feasiy Wiameha
patews3
S310N1L5 ONV SNV1d
w101 papuny 1A JoN
~_papeau 9q hew ssepind puel 57 10430 14Bi13 [[IH PIOD PUncit puU Ui pus] S1Ep0suGOa) pur Eeaiming 91550 HO B i
T Bapusdislond eI AN TYPOISIO) PUE HOA U1 S355915NG PUR S90UIPISa OF UIEW MaU Wai) saul w5 £L29Imin) wqiRod | SATHOA 000000C_§ e
T Bupusd 1aloxd Misu3 AN ) o o woyj saul SO [EImEN Gii qis0d | IAVHIA urid]
T ansep KGUNWILOD 01 NGNS waie A G saun) s A 0000007 MIOLN|
T Apunwwos 01 1elgns ulTeq él.mmuiqmda Juo pusY. 448NN HqI0g ED 0000005 MPLA
T Rmnwiwes o algns ke | A 0005 Md
T Runwiwos o3 palgns ulseg | B G00'000'5 Md
HOA 0000005 Md
A B00'000°0¢ Md
HOA 00000002 ™
HOA 000°000°S Md
[ Haunoo 0000001 s
Runoy 000000 % El
] 0000007 ]
wid 0000007 a3
[ e DA
A 00005 ueid]
[T 000'00L el
L 000000 Uwid
. i oL 00T ueid
— UONEI0| AEAN WEI[EA 1€ BUIBEys G015 10Q PUE Jayeys Nq WSURI] PRISAs) ] T 000°001 “ueig
[—_dews pur; soqrem, o1 el : [ U6 aages Puv Gepm LieIminy wqsiog 1 "
[ w0ysep, wics) dems pue) 1anbay —_PUPG MOGUIRE JO GLIOU PUF) JURIRA SAnGoY {eminin) mqsiog [ 000°000°1 uid
o RTINS S3N0H g Ceimn] aiiog A 0000005 S d
TIUapISa] POCMYI] |[€ Aq $5930F O] PUSE MOGUIEN PUF SENUSY Usamiaq 31 ‘9peys WEMIBAN teceIming qisog " 000°000T [T
pue SHIOM Jand SUWSAI0U O3 pZ UOREIS 311J PAYEIeA LI9AUOD Zedaimn] aqsog | Aunag 000°001 S
[ uswysmbuyai 10ON Jod 99115 3 UD Swd8) [EININI Uk 1 qun 1epInoys PTTEY Q) 0000005 d
[ visqueg Munwwog TEM350 SAGW USM 5179 1F S19qUITYI GOS0/ PIeoq o1 sujonag ZLeaamin) gissod | Runoy 007 WS Y]
LINGD WEWa: BIROYLNG] 3 ZT1 01 5aAGUI [00U3% USM 5]00US 193115 3 01 SATEITSIUIpE SAGUI GY SOy Zedaiming aqieog | unoy 0000001 HES IV
“peod UmoIInG] pue FLaMIa9 U] U U1 11 eq I J00PING D Zec9InIn) QIO VOA 000'00T d
391050 AN WO PUF 130 Usamiaq Ge8 Uj UIemL NITW Ul 100pIN0 £icIming Hqsog I 000°001
ilugﬂ.%ﬂﬂwé ) 001 "
J1¥d Jag 95IN0) JESU POOMIZ0T Ul 11 ESYUBLIE JOOPING 13IISU0) e @Iy Mqod [ 000001 S md]
i vy Mausog
@ PR PG (00435 01 i34 i...o SICISSIA DA 031 3330 AENqEyal pue i mmn] wQievod | wisunol 000005 30A
§ sAnwwalY IR PE v 01500 L JA 000002 0505
¥ aAneay D) "000'005 e1d/0s 05
W 005 Md
B 0000001 Md
E 000°SL 5
T Jedopmpoiies 3 00000 [T
D) 000001 "
" 000001 M|
WO 00001 ™d
] 000°0¢ iy
Runoy 000052 1i




AU Uy 5 ALBpN JUIES IF dUeMpURY pue ‘sa: dde "5y i@ uaysuy apesddn JA 000°00T S JVWNS
1aua) Py s, e Juies Jo jouaixa Buiping uo Junuiodal pue 's¥oUq ‘UonEpuncy E 000°001 $ IVINS
“Ja1ua) Wy 5 ARy JUIES O] |PIL1D3)2 PUE a8eiols oIpnis ue num._ﬂ,.._ pue puedxy JA 000°SZ [ VNS
J31Ua) Uy 5, AIE JUIES 1€ SWalsAs J9y30 Pu® '5J0]Da18p UOIIOW 'SEIaWes AWINoas pueaxg A 000°ST B VNS
191U Ly 5 Aeyy TUIES 1€ SWalshs 19)10q 03 2Auas dasp pue apesddn ‘soeday JA 000051 H JVINS
13130 LY 5 AR JUIRS 1E Sjualiaje Suidelspue| [Da1ioo pue apesddn JA 000°5L H VNS
Aua) Uy s ey Juies v yay snd swoonsas Buipjing [je us }J0m Jaylo pue sasueyade apeiddn JA 000°00T [ JVWS
121Ue) Uy s Ay JUieS 0F smopuim wuols apesBidn pue aopday JA 000°0% S IVNS
181UT) WY 5 AU 1UIRS JO J01IaIU1 BUpIng W) suey Buipad pue SUny® uayolq pue aeLdoIddeU; 2oedey A 000°SZ < IVINS
181Ua) Ly 5, e TUIES jO Joual Buipjing 0] sepesddn Bulily oipnys pue Juajes ppy A 000'8 < JVNS
JaUIe) LY 5 MEpy 1U1ES jO Bujdeospue] o) 0f uoned) 1adoid ppy A 0005 B IVINS
Jaua) Uy s Auepy uies jo aBeudis Juoyj 03 Bunydl pue |E3NNd3|a ppy. A 000'S H IVING
1auna) Wy s Aiepy uies o Buny®y pue samod yum oqazen ppy oA 00057 S JYNS
N009S 18 paiewinsa JesuiBul Jalus) LY SAUER JUIES 03 JOJBAR|2 YOV PPY. A 0007009 < IVNS
-
“diD AJUn03 241 JO] PIIIPISUG) J0U BID SN I5I]
1034 sl [ ] el %, Rl A uy sway )
SON _ (wunjod 3y
Ul %07 YW Ahunoy | ey 1aliey
R YRR im0y ues | ovewnsareror | seonjeasy [-sean pesig Cpmos: s
pajewnsy
SWILl ALINOING LIFOHd-NON
100425 Yl DA I® 19180 aoeday oA 000°0% $ asas
SWOOS JXI0] SHOA IF 31l LIom aoeiday JA 000°05 S asxs
100425 Aiejuawia] apisiiH 18 SWo0s Uaaas U Jadied aoeday M1 000'SE B as3s
WASAS U A |jEISUI PUR JOOYDS .._lﬂx DA 18 YEMApIS pUe SIieYs uuﬁmuox A 000'001 S ass
uoEdYIINeaq spunasl |0oyds Aiejuawal] apis)iH M 00052 < [
100435 YiH DA 18 washs SyAH apeaddn DA 0007051 B asas
5 01 paieuop #q o1 $IOH/SWOA A Ul sndwies ajuis @ 03Ul Sassepd ZT) 21EMI|0SUOD O] UOIIPPE (00425 oA 00000051 $ ass
0SS 1ad se |1 oo 1€ Jayays dojs snq |0oYIs palasc) HO 000'05 S asos
0505 sad se Ay eyl 18 sapays dois snq |00yds paiaao) A 000°001 < asJs
4SS 12d 58 y20Y Paluieg 1€ Jayays dO)s $nq [0OYDs paiaac) Hd 000°05 H ass
0SS 12d ¢ SUICIEI0] POOMYIOT 18 Jelj@ys OIS NG [O0YDS Paaao) M1 000°001 s asos
HOA W 0S0S 13d @siauayo pue ezed xoqpiew HOA 1€ 13)jays dois snq [OOYIS PaIaA0)) HOA 000001 H asos
1IN U1 0S5 12d s€ aSIMIAQI0 pue Ja1uaD) ANUNWILIOD UIBM] YIELN 18 1a3|ays 035 $Nq [O0YDS paiano) ] 000'00T S asos
snduwied SHIA Buiisixa 01 jo0yds g-) PPY 53010 |00YS PO asos 0000000 S (14 ¢ asIs ¥
PI0sIq 100435 Kuno) Aa3035 34) 01 31qEaE 348 Kay1 1) Kunos aui jo 1ied 10U 2iF pue Ajuo IUDIDJAI 10} DIE UONIDS SIYY L) S|
SIoN “{wunjod yay
Ul %0Z YR Aunoy | jelsey whiey
i YRR | erorwein | avewnsaeion | seanjeany | ean esi e iy
paiewns3
SWILI ALIMOIEd LDMLSIO JOOHIS ALNNOD AHOLS |
TVL018NS 0000157 §
AMPNIISA IS5 SANAIIS IOIUSS 10 OIS PUR SI0[ISUNDY) "SI EI0APY AQ MOdSURI] 0] YA Jaduassey uenuiy / ANS M1 000°SE 3 |74 28525 2505 - WD
& SPUn) Ja1em/speo iy “Jamas pue Jatem o) ||ays yum dnyd sed paq-Loys JND SPUG/SBUIPING JND Md 000°SY 3 [53 Jamasf1a1em Md
“1BMIS puR J31eMm 104 [|34s yum drydid sel pag-1oys JND Spuo/sBuipling JND Md 000°sY S £7 Jamasfiarem Md
“Idiam |[nd 01 spaaN spuncia/sauip|ing 10} paq AN|IIN ‘M |95 J0OP-p JND SpUS/sBuIp|ing JND Md 000°09 s ST SpuS/pjing Md
Wydam ||nd 01 spaaN spuUncId/sBUip|ing 10 paq AN|ILN M (353 JOOP-b JIND SpuUG/sBuIping JND Md 00009 3 3 SPUS/pjing Md
I'H P10 pue JA w podsuen gng Ajjor) LA 000°00T 3 [74 J10A JUOA
WELNG) 10§ JJOM JUAAS pUE SPUNCIERE 1O Paq dnyvd yum ALN JIDA ALN JLOA 000°02 [3 £ LA J10A
paaydwod asuad) yy4 3@ ‘wnpruseyu ‘sanualiawa jo Lallewn |euae Joj auaig auciQ 1l 0005 3 [F3 11 /w3
B|NPaYIs UOHIEI0 Jad SOnyaA Juaund aeday aD dnyxg @ 000t 3 8z 5] aj
2NpayIs UoNEIo) Jad Fpryas Juaund aceyday ad dmpig a 000°0F < 97 a a
#[NPay3s UoNel0) Jad apiyaa JuaLnd aeday a2 dnyaig i8] 000°SE S |44 a ad
~ {Md ‘141 M) Auno)) AaI01S JO pua YLIOU 8AJ9% O] ¥3NI] I0IDEA MBN {quiou] yanu oA Md 000059 S Lz 13jem/peoy Md
(LW "HOA 'HD DA] Auna) A8101S jo pua yInos aAJas 0] Yanl | Jo1oeA uiom aceiday {yanos) yani] jo1ep Md 000°059 3 [73 Jajem/peoy Md
-3a8pnq sad 77, wi paseyound joN A euiiliiA jo 5189135 molieu pue daajs Jo) MO|d UMO] |[ews MOjg UMD ||BWS Md 000071 (3 [74 specy Md
13pein) 1010 i3] uyof 13pei) 100N Md 000'05¢ S ST speoy Md
2Bei03s put SuiBUeY Japues Jelwns 10) seueld Aued japues Jepues M 00005 3 73 speoy Md
P dwnp [aeym-0] Mau ypm x| dwing 00061 P14 soejday yoni] dwing Md 000'002 [3 92 specy Md
310N {wunjod 33y
adag | U %07 WieW) | asuadig Aunoy [ jalsey ke yusciedaa) Kijoua
101 WUeJD | NeWHIS] [BI0L | -JEAA [EISH | -JRD) (€IS
pajewns3




S3IEWNSS SAOQE 4] Ul PApN[IuI JOU 5 Palels ssaun 1anap (g 100y patureg

MOU MIAG) UT 3J8 SWEN 1DUISIQ (00425 AJUNOD) ABI0NS

UBWND0p syl Ul palsy aq 10u Aew pue 410 pasodide Pieoq BUIalsIXa @41 Ul PIpNUl A€ 41D pZ0Z-020C

USWNIOP 5143 Ui PAPNIUI 10U 51 PUB () SPPOY JUIISIXa Ul Papn|aul @3UueuaiuiPul pEoy

UELIEION 40 183U [BUISNPU| DUGY-SOUE] = (4]

Y20y pajuied = Hd

ulEm ] e = [N

PoOMOT = M1

WH P19 = HD'

spuelyBiH = HOA

Ay ewnlng = op

s [poyds Ajuno) Aaions = 0sIs

1uaWdo|aA3p JIOUO WELING) BuIlI0adns jO 2500iNd a1 J0] 385 = J1A,

@pimAIUNG) pasn PUISIQ and = ali3

SPIMAIUNGS pasn saIjoe) Munod = Aunos

SaloN

“UOISSNISIP ALIUNWII0D PUE ‘510113 "UOIIE PIE0] ‘aJuey) 0} 153IqNs pue yeip € 5| JuioBaio) ayl

<< q¥L U0 0i5

S3ION vondinsag
SILON ON3|
000'v80'Y  §

S@uslawan 90€4)a] IO 0) UONI3UUGD J1318M S ||ny Speiddn Aunc) 000001 H 30

SUU [elaew Suiping pue juawdinba 10} €15 JyNG 10) dnynd ppy VS dnyig OYINS 000°SE [ IVING - ¥

DLW D5M1 "Smd "$D35 "100 DWIAS] s1yasd-uou |je o) s1amojq mous SIAMO(G MOUS M1OA 000'9 s STOS IV - ¥

100435 prep YyUno4 1 swalsAs Junonp e aendosdde Ajesuoisiy uisn JyAH pue SuioRipuod iy A 000°005 [3 PR YN0

¢ eAuRW MOH 100425 PIEA YIINO4 1€ SUBH Jiy JA 000'S S PIEM yUNOY

100435 pieAy YLNo4 1® 031 01 sapesBdn Bunyly souauy DA 000°L [3 PIep yunoy

JO0YDS PIEA Y1iN0 JO JOUN tuieg A 000°s1 s PIEM YLNo4

(€2 000'ZS 1¥ SMOPUIM 6] [OOYIS PIEA YLINOS 1€ SMOPLIM ||B jO SJOLAIU) SI0ISaY 00085 [ PIEM Yoy

(®2 000TS 18 SMOpUIM §7] [OOYIS PIRA LLINOS 1B SMOPUIM ULIOTS 8J0]52Y 000°'8S 3 PIEM YUINO§

{ €2 000’8 1P SMOPUIM BT ] SMOPUIM JOOY PIPSUBY 000°0E7 s PIEM Yuinog

100YIS PIEA YHNO4 JO S100p 10U3)XS JO)SAI PUE ySiulay A 0007 [3 PIEM YuNo4

100435 PIBAA YLINOS 1B SAIUCD|RQ 3U0153Y JA 000521 < PJEM YUNo4

100425 PIEM YLINOS 18 WalsAs Uonedii) pue 'sainiay Jiloaja SjEIpuey yjEmpieog ‘Buidelspue) apeiddn A 000581 [3 PIEM YLINOS

1207 auop aq Aew “|90475 PIEM YLINOJ 4] JO SEIR JOLIBIXA ||B 300 NS pue Juieday JA 0007054 S PIEA, quNGy

131033 LY 5 AJRIA JUIRS JO S1USWAIa PUE WL pOOM Juiedal pue aderds, A 000°07 < IVINS

32U Uy 5 ARy JUies JO SWO0IsSe]D pue "sauay el 10uU2)1Xa O] swajsAs punos opne puedx3 JA 000°0T < VWS

133UBD) Uy 5, AJEW JUIES O 3168 AEMaALD PUE 33Ua) Jayid B3 PPy A 000°08 $ JIVINS

3a3ua]) Wy s ARy Juies 1€ Ajajes aji| 10 S1j0aa) HWSIas Wijuo)) A 000'0SE 3 VIS

12UaD Uy s Aepy Juies Je adesols Joj Buipiingino ppy JA 00057 S IVNS

J3ua) Uy 5 AR 1UIRS 01 JyAH Jadoid pue Buiuoiipucd JIe ppy B 000051 (3 JIVIAS

131Ua) 11y 5, Iejy 1U1eS J0 530; Buped oF Bung ) 100pInG PPy A 000001 [ VNS




Storey County Board of Couhty

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetfng date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.
- BOCC Meeting _ _
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Discussion, public workshop, and possible direction to staff on formulating for
future board action the FY2022 — 2028 Storey County Fire District Capital Improvement
Plan (CIP) including facilities and infrastructure, plans and studies, and equipment and
vehicles. A final CIP draft will be considered for approval by the fire board at a later
meeting.

Recommended motion: | (fire commissioner) motion to direct fire district staff to
proceed with the draft Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) as presented by staff, but with the
following amendments from this workshop (list amendments), and to bring a final draft
CIP back to this fire board before the FY2022-23 budget season for possible final
consideration and implementation.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne on behalf of Jeremy Loncar

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: Fire District staff collaborated and engaged with Storey County
officials, public, and business owners to build a draft capital improvement plan for the
fire board and public to review and discuss at this workshop. The draft CIP includes
needed projects likely to occur in the next eight-year period. Following the workshop,
district staff will amend the CIP for possible consideration by the fire board. The final
fire board-adopted CIP will be used in building the FY22/23 and later fire district
budgets. The CIP draft appears to align with known elements of the fire district’s
strategic plan.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: Pending

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:




Board Action:

[ ] Approved

[ | Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




00°000'Z€ S TLT #S4 Waishs 1sneyx3

00°000°8L S sAeqddy maN 03 7/ #54 129UU0)

00°000'0T S duipis padeweq ade|day g Z/4# S4 ied

00'000'00s'E  § /4 UOIES 2114 MaN
00000002t S 9/ UCHE)S a4 a,mz-
00°000°S S 6/ uonels ul siapenp Suidaals ﬁ_c_u—
00000002 JA T£ uones aily _sm_z_
NoLLnyLsNod)
czoz/oror | ozozsseor | szosvror | veorsezoz | seozzzor | zzoz/zez | :SHYIA TWISH 1DIY1SIA #_&

12141S1d 3414 ALNNOJ AFHOLS

‘pa3eInoduad si JUBWIWO Jljgnd
*Jaded 3upjjel e st SiYy] "UOIIESIDAUOD
ueyy sayuny SuiyzAue 1oy pasn

aq jou Aew 10 ‘3oea3a4 Jo puedxa Aew
‘anizelua; si 3s1| ay| 398pnq pue ueld
21NN} © 10j PaJ9pISUod aq jou Aew Jo
Aew mojaq swail ay] ‘ue|d paiadpnq
1o ‘ueid jended ‘ueid e 324 Jou

S1S1Y1 "8Z0Z-TZ0Z wodj Ajunod ayy

ui papasau aq Aew jeys sSuiyl sjqissod
[1e JO ,,1SI] YSIm,, B S JuaWnIop syl

JONYHD Ol 133rdNS 43dvd ONIXTVL

(L4vya) doysyiomn a1jqnd 104 d1D Hedg



00°000'8Y

TL# UONRIS JOJ §INJ| MO|d

TL# S438 2N Jeppen S

du3 1 adAl

)'000

9/# S4 12 audu3 1 adA ]|

00°000°SZL

TL# 5438 2uiBul | adAy

00'000°052

000007052

00°000'05¢

00°000°052

$

juawade|day ajuejnquy

00°000'05Y

q/# S4 18 12pua] J31EAM

00'0002L

BINYIA Sjary) a4

00'000°0€¢

G4 S4 18 auiBuy || adA)

00°000°0CE

vL# S4 38 auiBuy | adA)

00'000°0Z¢

7.8 6418 audug ) adAL

00°000°0ZE

124 S41e auiBug ) adA)

*SIDIHIA

00°000°ST

00°000'sT

w

00000°ST

(puejpjip) sdwing ajqeliod

00°000°ZS

0000075

00°000°ZS

S|00] UONEILIXF JLII3|I

0000007

00'000°0T

sasuenquiy 8uilsix3 uo apty iy

00°000°S

000021

S)2Ed YSIA J0) penbs pue suoilels |1 LWaAuo)

00005,

00'00S°L

Nl nganln

$JapullAd vE2s

‘IN3IWdIND3

00°000°8¢

0000082

SUOISIAA Jueldwo) YIm soipey yg ade|day

00°0000T

00°000°01

00000°S

walsAs oipey ejosoloW mau uodn pjing

SSNOLLYIINNWIWOD

00°000'5T

00°000'SZ

M3y UOREIS PUB Sauo| Ayljea Jeay |eisu|

000009

000009

$

00'000'9

000009

00°'000°09

000009

(4eaA jad p) sieah v Auane suaindwod ade|day

00°00Z'S

00'009°€

$

00°002'S

00'009°¢

00°009°¢

000021

(Jead sad g) sseal y Auana speqdl asejday

‘ADOTONHIIL zo_Es_zEz_-




— (202/9202 _ 9z02/5202 — 5202/¥202 _ vzoz/eT0T _ £202/2207 _ zz02/1707 _ “EE:S%B_E_SE_

_ _ _ _ [ _ [ ]
NV'Id LNHINHAOYdIN] "TVNOILLVHHd ()

0000v'(8T'y S| 00°009'TTIS'E | 00'0OV'6SL'E S| 00'00T'6TT'E ¢ | o00OT'LEL'E  $ | 00'009'EES s|ejol

00'000¥T S 00'000'v1 S | 00°000%1 S suanbiuuey Suiuiel)

0oo0z't S 00°002°T S 00°00Z°1 S 5ysap ¢ o.,.EQowi

.H__z_

00'000°5L1T S ¢ J1920Q mujamx_

00°'000°Z9 S suonesadQ 321YyaA Ja1Yd ..::a.wn_—

00 000°8S S Buluies] apIYaA JaIyd Eznwn_—

00000027 $ Z# 54 oy joned|

00°000'0¢ S 32143 BAIBLSILILIPY|

W

00'000°0SY S €4 Jopua] Jalem mum.mn_mx_




00'000'26 S T UBISISSY BALIRIISIUIWPY|

0000092 S j31yD uoljeneg /13y wawadeuey sian4

00°000'552 S suonesadQ / jaiyd Ayndag

% uoisialg dututes] / jayd Ayndaq

S

S

: L #S4 LINIV/Ia)

: LL 854 N3V /12143

.., L4 #S4 LNTV/1oaydiyaay

3 9L #S4 uielde 14
S uielde) aJy
$ uielde) a4
000°SET 5
D00'SET 9L HS4 MP3N/1214 B
00°000'SET $ 9L #S4 NP3W 1814 BE1aI14
00°000°8T1 S 9/ #54 LW3Iv/1e1y8
00811 S ayd
000'8T1 3 L #54 LINIY/133y8yaaiy
00°000'811 $ TL #S4 LN3V/181yByaiyy
00'000'811 $ TL #54 LW3v/ia1y3iany
00'000'811 S T4 #54 LN3Y/1a1y8yaiy

uyers




Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 11/16/2021 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: To approve disposal by means of auction, donation,
or sale, surplus District Self Contained Breathing Apparatus, and associated fire equipment.

2. Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the disposal of excess self-
contained breathing apparatus and associated equipment by means of auction, donation, or
sale.

3. Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar
Department: Fire Telephone: 847-0954

4. Staff summary: In 2020 we were successful in receiving a grant to replace all the District Scott
self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) that were nearing their end of life and useability. This
grant allowed us to replace all our current SCBA’s with a newer model and brand. We now have a
stockpile of old SCBA’s that still have some value to neighboring organizations. Ultimately, we
prefer to sell these units to assist in purchasing additional equipment and supplies for our new
MSA SCBA'’s but will assist less fortunate agencies where we can.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: N/A Fund: ~_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_JL_ Fire Chief Department Name: Fire District

~_ County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:

[] Approved

[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

,_.,_.
——

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 16, 2021  Estimate of time required: 10 Min

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. : Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible approval of the granting of
easements to NV Energy for Canyon Way, Wild Horse Drive, Megabyte Drive and
Waltham Way for underground gas pipeline facilities that will extend from Tracy to South
Reno

2. Recommended motion: The motion can be handled in either of two fashions. If all of the
proposed easements are acceptable a single motion encompassing all of the proposed
easements could be made as follows: | (commissioner), move to approve the granting of
easements requested by NV Energy as to the Canyon Way, Waltham Way, Wild Horse
Canyon Drive and Megabyte Drive for a consideration of $1.00 for each of the easements
conveyed and authorize the chairman to sign. If any of the proposed easements are not
acceptable, the unacceptable easements could be deleted from the previous motion.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff summary: See attached.
5. Supporting materials: Proposed easements for Canyon Way, Waltham Way, Wild Horse
Canyon Drive and Megabyte Drive. Also included are maps of the locations of the proposed
casements
6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
——



Agenda Item No.
STAFF SUMMARY

Sierra Pacific Power Company dba NV Energy is proposing to build a 16 inch diameter steel high
pressure gas line from the Tracy Station to South Reno in two phases. The first phase will be from
Tracy to Lockwood. Among other benefits this will allow Sierra Pacific to replace its propane
system in Lockwood with natural gas distribution lines for its Lockwood customers and will
provide service to an additional customer base in the Mustang area. The briefing memo prepared
by the staff of the PUC in docket No. 20-06019 indicates that this conversion will save several
hundred thousand dollars in expenses. The second phase of the project will be to extend the
pipeline from Lockwood to South Reno to address growth in the South Reno area and to diversify
the sources of supply to that area.

NRS 244.279 allows a county to sell or lease rights of way to public utilities without first
offering the right of way to the public. Nor is the County required to go through and appraisal
process to determine the price for which the right of way may be conveyed. See NRS 244.2795. In
this case the deeds recite that a consideration of $1.00 is being paid for each of the easements
requested.



Location: Canyon Way

The undersigned hereby affirms that

this document, including any exhibits

hereby submitted for recording does

not contain the personal information

of any person or persons (Per NRS 239B.030)

RECORDING REQUESTED BY:
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
Land Resources

NV Energy

P.O. Box 10100 MS S4B20
Reno, NV 89520

GRANT OF EASEMENT

STOREY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantor"), for One
Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and
conveys to Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation, d/b/a NV Energy
(“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right and easement, with the
joinder of Storey County Properties Limited Liability Company (“SCP”), a Nevada limited
liability company, in order to agree to the terms and conditions of Section A hereof.

1. to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove aboveground
and/or underground communication facilities and gas systems for the
distribution and transmission of gas underground, consisting of pipes,
valves, fittings, regulators, meters, vaults, and other equipment, fixtures,
apparatus, and improvements (‘Underground Utility Facilities”) and
valves (aboveground or underground), service boxes/meter panels
(aboveground or underground), regulators (aboveground or underground),
bollards (aboveground), and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and
improvements (“Additional Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and

Location: Canyon Way

RW# RW-0407-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: GG-South Reno Lateral
GOE DESIGN GAS



through the property described in Exhibit “A" hereto and by this reference
made a part of this Grant of Easement ("Easement Area”);

2. For ingress and egress to, from, over and across the Easement Area for
the allowed purposes defined in numbered paragraph 1 above and for all
other activities permitted by this agreement;

3. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees,
other vegetation and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the
Easement Area as Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe
and proper use and maintenance of the Utility Facilities or the Additional
Utility Facilities within the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by Grantee
negligently constructing, operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility
Facilities and/or the Additional Utility Facilities, to any tangible, personally property or
improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement. However, this paragraph does not apply to and
Grantee is not responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights
under numbered paragraph 3 above so long as it exercises its rights in a prudent and
non-negligent manner.

Grantee shall bear the entire cost and expense of installing and maintaining said
Utility Facilities and Additional Utility Facilities in said Easement Area.

Grantee shall, at its expense, comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules
and orders regardless of when they become or became effective, including, without
limitation, those relating to health, safety, noise, environmental protection, waste
disposal, and water and air quality.

Grantee shall coordinate initial construction and/or maintenance with any existing
lessees/occupants of the real property and shall use its best efforts not to unreasonably
interfere with use/access of such lessees/occupants in the course of its construction
and/or maintenance.

Grantee agrees that no assessments will be levied against the property of
Grantor to defray any part of the expense incurred in connection with any construction
in the Easement Area.

Grantee agrees to investigate, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless
Grantor, its officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from all claims,

Location: Canyon Way

RW# RW-0407-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE _DESIGN GAS




liability, cost and expense, howsoever same may be caused, including reasonable
attorney's fees, for loss of or damage to property for injuries to or death of persons
arising out of the construction, reconstruction, maintenance, or use of the Easement
Area by Grantee, its employees, agents, licensees, invitees, successors or assigns.

Grantee shall fully pay for all materials installed in the Easement Area and shall
pay in full all persons who perform labor thereupon. Grantee shall not permit any
mechanics’ or materialmen’s liens of any kind or nature to be enforced against the
property for any work done or materials furnished thereon at Grantee's request.

Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns, that no
building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such
structures and improvements to include, but not be limited to, drainage, trees, bridges,
signage, roads, fencing, storage facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities.
Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee's consent by both signing Grantee's
standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains, for its benefit, the right to
maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes;
provided, however, that all such purposes and uses do not interfere with Grantee's
rights herein, Grantee's gas practices, and standards. The exception to this
requirement is that the construction of an effluent pipeline to be owned, operated and
maintained by the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District along a
portion of the easement granted hereby will not be in violation of this provision. Grantee
may use this easement to provide service to any of its customers.

A. Consent and Waiver of SCP. Grantor acquired title to the Right-of-Way from SCP
by that certain Quitclaim Deed of Dedication (“Dedication Deed”) on September 10,
1991 recorded as Document No. 068169 in the office of the Recorder of Storey County,
Nevada. The Dedication Deed contains the following restrictions, reservations and
exceptions:

This Dedication of Real Property is made on the express condition that Grantee
accepts the obligation to maintain and keep open the roadway located on the
Real Property in a reasonable and safe condition and pay for all costs and
expenses necessary for the repair, maintenance and Improvement of said
roadway. If any portion of the dedicated Real Property shall cease to be used
as a public roadway or maintained in a reasonable and safe condition, then all
right , title and interest in and to the Real Property and the improvements
located thereon shall revert to and revest in Grantor, or its successors and
assigns, as fully and completely as if this Deed had never been executed.

Location: Canyon Way

RW# RW-0407-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE DESIGN GAS



SCP executed this instrument to agree and consent to the provisions hereof, to
wit:

(a) Grantor holds fee simple title to the Right-of-Way, subject to the
restriction and reservation of the Dedication Deed stated above in this Section
13

(b) The Property conveyed to Grantor pursuant to the Dedication
Deed has not reverted to or revested in SCP;

(c) SCP waives and releases Grantor from the restrictions, and the
reversionary and revestment rights of SCP in the Dedication Deed stated above
as to the Right-of-Way, Temporary Easement and the grant of easement
contained herein, and consents to the grant of easement contained herein; and

(d) no subsequent reversion or revestment shall affect the validity
and charge of this grant of easement.

(signatures on next page)

Location: Canyon Way

RW# RW-0407-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused these presents duly to be executed the

day and year first above written.
GRANTOR:

Accepted for the County of Storey,

by the Board of County Commissioners

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

GRANTEE:

Sierra Pacific Power Company

Name:Matt Gingerich

Title: Manager, Land Resources

Date;: 10- 15 -2\

Agreed and Consented to as to Section A above:

Storey County Properties Limited Liability Company,

a Nevada limited liability company

By \ ez T e

o
Name: Procter 7. //uj
Title:  #7_

s

Date: 9//v/ >,
=7
(acknowledgements on next page)

Location: Canyon Way

RW# RW-0407-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN GAS



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

STATE OF A/£VADA )
) ss.

COUNTY OF wASHotL )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this P day of

oc7e8ck_ | 2021, by Matt Gingerich as Manager, Land Resources of Sierra
Pacific Power Company d/b/a NV Energy.

g R N
L W Chris Rob a \ P
N [ s
STATE OF NEVADA “~—Notary Public
X 7 Appt. No. 13-10241-2 |
! ok My Appt Expires December 16, 2024 |
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )
This instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
. 2021, by as

of the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Notary Public

STATE OF NEVADA )

Location: Canyon Way

RW# RW-0407-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE DESIGN GAS




) Ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this M day of
8

S&’fﬁ 2021, by Procter . HUC\ as_NMaAnNnaqge v

( .

of Storey County Properties Limited Liability Company.

Larn L( ) ( LU@.L/_D

Notary Public

-

E L LT SR
..............

JAN OLIVERO :
%) Notary Public - State of Nevada :
/) Appointment Recordod in Washoe County |

No: 94-0989-2 - Expires Septamber 25, 2022

Location: Canyon Way

RW# RW-0407-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN _GAS



“ NVEner 1237

W.0. 3003505662
Storey County
Canyon Way
EXHIBIT "A"
EASEMENT

A portion of the Southwest % of the Northeast quarter, the south %2 of the Northwest 4 , the
North % of the Southwest ¥4 of Section 21 and Southeast % of the Northeast quarter and Lot 1
of Section 20, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., Storey County, Nevada;, situated
within that Parcel of land described in Quitclaim Deed of Dedication Document, recorded as File
Number 68619 on September 10, 1991, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

An easement encompassing the entire 60 foot width, of Canyon Way located within the
Southwest % of the Northeast quarter, the South half of the Northwest quarter of Section 21 and
the Southeast v of the Northeast ¥ and Lot 1 of Section 20, Township 19 North, Range 21 East,
M.D.M the aforesaid parcels of land, as described in said Document 63619.

Above described Easement contains 8 99 acres of land, more or less.

See Exhibit "A-1" attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Prepared by Doug Larson, P.L.S.

Page 1|1
P.0. BOX 98910, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA B9151-0001 6226 WEST SAHARA AVENUE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89146
P.O. BOX 10100, RENO, NEVADA 89520-0024 4100 NEIL ROAD, RENO, NEVADA 89511  nvenergy.com




'EXHIBITA—I'

CANYON RD.
DOC. 68169
ESM'T AREA:8.99 ACRES*

1" = 800

SCALE:

28JenTN-14: 08

m% mmmmm\

A

.|.
|
|
)
|
|
I
o
7 9
NELL RD.
NVEnergy mmo "NV eosi1
-834-4011
. y
EASEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
CANYON WAY
TION. R21E. S 20 & 21 MDM
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
1/2021 l 1 OF 1

A




Location: Wild Horse Canyon Drive

The undersigned hereby affirms that

this document, including any exhibits

hereby submitted for recording does

not contain the personal information

of any person or persons (Per NRS 239B.030)

RECORDING REQUESTED BY:
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
Land Resources

NV Energy

P.O. Box 10100 MS S4B20
Reno, NV 89520

GRANT OF EASEMENT

STOREY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantor"), for One
Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and
conveys to Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation, d/b/fa NV Energy
(“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right and easement:

1.

to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove aboveground
and/or underground communication facilities and gas systems for the
distribution and transmission of gas underground, consisting of pipes,
valves, fittings, regulators, meters, vaults, and other equipment, fixtures,
apparatus, and improvements (“Underground Utility Facilities”) and
valves (aboveground or underground), service boxes/meter panels
(aboveground or underground), regulators (aboveground or underground),
bollards (aboveground), and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and
improvements (“Additional Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and
through the property described in Exhibit "A” hereto and by this reference
made a part of this Grant of Easement (‘Easement Area”);

Location: Wild Horse Canyon Drive
RW# RW-0687-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS



2. For ingress and egress to, from, over and across the Easement Area for
the allowed purposes defined in numbered paragraph 1 above and for all
other activities permitted by this agreement;

3. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees,
other vegetation and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the
Easement Area as Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe
and proper use and maintenance of the Utility Facilities or the Additional
Utility Facilities within the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by Grantee
negligently construction, operating, adding to, maintain, or removing the Utility Facilities
and/or the Additional Utility Facilities, to any tangible,, personally property or
improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement. However, this paragraph does not apply to and
Grantee is not responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights
under numbered paragraph 3 above so long as it exercises its rights in a prudent and
non-negligent manner.

Grantee shall bear the entire cost and expense of installing and maintaining said
Utility Facilities and Additional Utility Facilities in said Easement Area.

Grantee shall, at its expense, comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules
and orders regardless of when they become or became effective, including, without
limitation, those relating to health, safety, noise, environmental protection, waste
disposal, and water and air quality.

Grantee shall coordinate initial construction and/or maintenance with any existing
lessees/occupants of the real property and shall use its best efforts not to unreasonably
interfere with use/access of such lessees/occupants in the course of its construction
and/or maintenance.

Grantee agrees that no assessments will be levied against the property of
Grantor to defray any part of the expense incurred in connection with any construction
in the Easement Area.

Grantee agrees to investigate, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless
Grantor, its officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from all claims,
liability, cost and expense, howsoever same may be caused, including reasonable
attorney’s fees, for loss of or damage to property for injuries to or death of persons

Location: Wild Horse Canyon Drive
RW# RW-0687-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE _DESIGN GAS

(3%




arising out of the construction, reconstruction, maintenance, presence in, or use of the
Easement Area by Grantee, its employees, agents, licensees, invitees, successors or

assigns.

Grantee shall fully pay for all materials installed in the Easement Area and shall
pay in full all persons who perform labor thereupon. Grantee shall not permit any
mechanics’ or materialmen’s liens of any kind or nature to be enforced against the
property for any work done or materials furnished thereon at Grantee’s request.

Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns, that no
building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such
structures and improvements to include, but not be limited to, drainage, trees, bridges,
signage, roads, fencing, storage facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities.
Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s consent by both signing Grantee'’s
standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains, for its benefit, the right to
maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes;
provided, however, that all such purposes and uses do not interfere with Grantee's
rights herein, Grantee's gas practices, and standards. Grantee may use this easement

to provide service to any of its customers.

(signatures on next page)

Location: Wild Horse Canyon Drive
RW# RW-0687-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, Grantor has caused these presents duly to be executed the
day and year first above written.

GRANTOR: GRANTEE:

Accepted for the County of Storey, Sierra Pacific Power Company
by the Board of County Commissioners

By: By ///,/% /4[

Name: Name:Matt Gingerich
Title: Title: Manger, Land Resources
Date: Date: 10-15-72(

(acknowledgements on next page)

Location: Wild Horse Canyon Drive
RW# RW-0687-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN GAS




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

STATE OF A/EVAD4 )
) ss.
COUNTY OF pAsHo £ )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this /511 day of

OC7pR2 2021, by Matt Gingerich as Manager, Land Resources of Sierra
Pacific Power Company d/b/a NV Energy.

~ ChnsRobinson | - .
NOTARY PUBLIC | <
STATE OF NEVADA | — :
Appt. No. 13-10241-2 | Notary Public
My Appt Expires December 16, 2024 |

STATE OF NEVADA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF STOREY )
This instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

, 2021, by as

of the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Notary Public

Location: Wild Horse Canyon Drive
RW# RW-0687-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS



V«NVEnergy

W.0. 3003505662

Storey County
Wild Horse Canyon Drive
EXHIBIT "A"
EASEMENT

That portion of the 60-foot width of Lot 2005-12A (now called Wild Horse Canyon Drive) as
shown on Record of Survey for Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center LLC recorded as file number
100662, recorded on May 4, 2005 in the Official Records of Storey County, located within the
northeast quarter of Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East, M.D.M., Storey County,
Nevada, more particularly described as follows:

An easement, 140.00 feet in width, lying 70.00 feet on each side of the following describe
centerline;

COMMENCING at the southernmost corner of Lot 2005-12A as shown on said Record of
Survey;

THENCE, along the east line of said Lot 2005-12A, North 25°12°53” East 637.66 feet to the
beginning of a tangent curve to the left having a radius of 630 feet and an included angle of

4°22°397;

THENCE, continuing along said curved east line, a distance of 48.13 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING;

THENCE, leaving said east line, North 68°28°58" West, 60.00 feet to the west line of said Lot
2005-12A;

Sidelines of the above easement to be extended or shortened to end on the east and west lines of
said Lot 2005-12A.

Basis of Bearing is said Record of Survey 100662.

Above-described Easement contains 8,408
square feet of land, more or less.

See Exhibit "A-1" attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Prepared by Doug Larson, P.L.S. ,” 777 9/'//"3 0.
2
Page 1|1 /
P.0. BOX 98910, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89151-0001 6226 WEST SAHARA AVENUE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89146
P.0. BOX 10100, REND, NEVADA 89520-0024 6100 NEIL ROAD, RENO, NEVADA 89511  nvenergy.com




( EXHIBIT A-1
\ \ *
\\ \ X o~
\ CURVE TABLE %/
‘.\ CURVE # | LENGTH RADIUS | DELTA /,"
\ g —— // |
\ o | 4813 630,00 | 422'30" P / 4
\ L —— S—— - —— —————— / / ',f /
/
\ PROPOSED GAS LINE /
I STOREY COUNTY ' 140/00" \
LOT 2005-12A \
R/W 100662 —— o UNITED MILLING! -
EASEMENT 7 AND SPRINGBO
| AREA: 8,408 SQ. FT. % DEV. :
| / 005-021— |
? C / .P.o.;/
TRILC. L &% - P
005-021-02 S Y,
S / P
R 4 SCBP OWNERS ASSOC.
i /& 005-021-18
A A
. I
7 cimn Dev. co. ue / S/
; 005—-021-01 _@" N
. PR
s / / - 3 {U - e
s / Q% —~
\> ‘? \\ //
» 6()3' / ¥ N ///
é@ /"’ RS ‘.‘é‘ \\\_‘/,,,,,*h =
S 2
GILMAN NE TABL
/p 000 / /& DEV. CO. LLC. LIE. TABLE
P , i 005-021-14 DIRECTION LENGTH
s ~/P.0.C. Nié- 28'58"W | 60.0¢
s LLG HOLDINGS s 009_1 .
004-161-23 |
N
.|
S |
N r \\\ s <
"o \ smo NEIL RD.
' \ ‘NVEnergy , NV 89511
i \ '?75-834—4011
ij \ p
3% \ [ EXHIBIT MiP )
B \ EASEMENT
A\ STOREY COUNTY
| WILD HORSE CANYON DR. |
T 19N R 22E S. 6 MDM
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
K Reno Ind Source GAS\dwg', — —
I ARG W7 e & 9/13/2021 ] 1 OF 1

J



Location: Megabyte Drive

The undersigned hereby affirms that

this document, including any exhibits

hereby submitted for recording does

not contain the personal information

of any person or persons (Per NRS 239B.030)

RECORDING REQUESTED BY:
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
Land Resources

NV Energy

P.O. Box 10100 MS S4B20
Reno, NV 89520

GRANT OF EASEMENT

STOREY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantor"), for One
Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and
conveys to Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation, d/b/a NV Energy
(“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right and easement:

T

To construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain, replace and remove
communication facilities and electric line systems for the distribution and
transmission of electricity above ground and underground, consisting of poles,
other structures, wires, cables, bollards, pole-mounted transformers, anchors,
guys and other equipment, fixture, apparatus, and improvements (“Utility
Facilities”), and service boxes/meter panels, cabinets, bollards and other
equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and improvements (“Additional Utility
Facilities”) upon, over, under and through the property legally described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Grant of
Easement (“Easement Area”);

Location: Megabyte Drive

RW# RW-0977-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_OH_UG



2. For ingress and egress to, from, over and across the Easement Area for the
allowed purposes defined in numbered paragraph 1 above and for all other
activities permitted by this agreement;

3. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area
as Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and
maintenance of the Utility Facilities or the Additional Utility Facilities within the

Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by Grantee
negligently construction, operating, adding to, maintain, or removing the Utility Facilities
and/or the Additional Utility Facilities, to any tangible,, personally property or
improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement. However, this paragraph does not apply to and
Grantee is not responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights
under numbered paragraph 3 above so long as it exercises its rights in a prudent and
non-negligent manner.

Grantee shall bear the entire cost and expense of installing and maintaining said
Utility Facilities and Additional Utility Facilities in said Easement Area.

Grantee shall, at its expense, comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules
and orders regardless of when they become or became effective, including, without
limitation, those relating to health, safety, noise, environmental protection, waste
disposal, and water and air quality.

Grantee shall coordinate initial construction and/or maintenance with any existing
lessees/occupants of the real property and shall use its best efforts not to unreasonably
interfere with use/access of such lessees/occupants in the course of its construction
and/or maintenance.

Grantee agrees that no assessments will be levied against the property of
Grantor to defray any part of the expense incurred in connection with any construction
in the Easement Area.

Grantee agrees to investigate, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless
Grantor, its officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from all claims,
liability, cost and expense, howsoever same may be caused, including reasonable
attorney’s fees, for loss of or damage to property for injuries to or death of persons

Location: Megabyte Drive

RW# RW-0977-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN OH UG

[




arising out of the construction, reconstruction, maintenance, presence in, or use of the
Easement Area by Grantee, its employees, agents, licensees, invitees, successors or
assigns.

Grantee shall fully pay for all materials installed in the Easement Area and shall
pay in full all persons who perform labor thereupon. Grantee shall not permit any
mechanics’ or materialmen's liens of any kind or nature to be enforced against the
property for any work done or materials furnished thereon at Grantee's request.

Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns, that no
building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such
structures and improvements to include, but not be limited to, drainage, trees, bridges,
signage, roads, fencing, storage facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities.
Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee's consent by both signing Grantee's
standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains, for its benefit, the right to
maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes;
provided, however, that all such purposes and uses do not interfere with Grantee's
rights herein, Grantee's electrical practices, and the National Electrical Safety Code.
Grantee may use this easement to provide service to any of its customers.

(signatures on next page)

Location: Megabyte Drive

RW# RW-0977-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN OH UG



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused these presents duly to be executed the
day and year first above written.

GRANTOR: GRANTEE:

Accepted for the County of Storey, Sierra Pacific Power Company
by the Board of County Commissioners

By: By////éf’f }“/6

Name: Name: M Graoe o
Title: Title: Mavaemr Lavd 2ESoOUES
Date: Date: 0. 15 - 2 ¢

(acknowledgements on next page)

Location: Megabyte Drive

RW# RW-0977-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN OH_UG




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

STATE OF _AJEVADAL )
) ss.

COUNTY OF pAsyeos )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this e day of

CCreer 2021, by AU T S peicd as
HAvAGER, LAD Resewgess  of Sierra Pacific Power Company d/b/a NV Energy.

Chris Robinson : ( ,Aé

S e NOTARY PUBLIC | .
F, 850 E)  STATE OF NEVADA Notary Public
iy Appt. No. 13-10241-2

\ﬁ"ﬂgj Appt. Expires December 16 .‘H;‘!l

\

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

, 2021, by as

of the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Notary Public

Location: Megabyte Drive

RW# RW-0977-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN OH UG



%NVEnergy

W.0. 3003505662
Storey County
Megabyte Dr.
EXHIBIT "A"
EASEMENT

A portion of the southeast quarter of Section 31, Township 20 North, Range 22 East M.D.M,,
Storey County, Nevada, situated within that Lot 2005-12A as shown on Record of Survey for
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC recorded on May 4, 2005 as Document 100662 in the Storey
County Official Records more particularly described as;

An easement, 20 feet in width, lying 10 feet on each side of the following described centerline:
COMMENCING at the southeast corner of said Section 31, as shown on said Record of Survey;

THENCE, North 8°46°23” West, 309.44 feet to the west line of Waltham Way and the POINT
OF BEGINNING;

THENCE South 80°22°28” West, 68.26 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve to the left,
having a radius of 9.50 feet and an included angle of 94°49°06”;

THENCE along said curve a distance of 15.72 feet;

THENCE South 14°2638" East, 17.96 feet to the north line of Lot 2007-117 (Pentium Drive) as
shown on Record of Survey for Reno Land and Cattle, LLC. recorded as file number 107557 on
September 10, 2007 and the POINT OF TERMINUS of this description.

Above-described Easement contains 2,040 square feet of land, more or less.

The Basis of Bearings for this Exhibit is said Record of Survey 100662.
See Exhibit "A-1" attached hereto and made a part hereo J.

Prepared by Doug Larson, P.L.S. #15685 / il o

Page 1|l
P.0. BOX 98910, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89151-0001 6226 WEST SAHARA AVENUE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89146
P.0. BOX 10100, RENO, NEVADA 89520-0024 6100 NEIL ROAD, RENO, NEVADA 89511  nvenergy.com




( ( EXHIBIT A-1) ~
S80°22'28"W " /
o 68.26'
D=94"49'06 -
R=9.50' ~_
L=16.72_—<  _ l.-
S1426'38°E O
1798 -
// ol
//, &- "/.
/’ .&' /
2
/ \‘Q’G‘. ’,/’ t
e P ‘ _ N846'23"W
y /, /7 309.44'
/ / MEGABYTE DR.
¥ LOT 2005-12A
/ / ROS 100662
/ ESM'T AREA:
g 2,040 SQ. FT.
f” 'f‘
/ /
[
-
N \ {
. : \ X
o ) )
o | I X
| {,/ \ 6100 NEIL RD
< f 2 O\ ‘NVEnergy RENO, NV 89511
s r. 775-834-4011
Ly L’ ' >_ <
S iy EASEMENT
P STOREY COUNTY
MEGABYTE DRIVE
7 e T20N R22E S31 MDM N
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
S BB SR S i e o e 9/30/2021
3 1 1 OF 1




Location: Waltham Way

The undersigned hereby affirms that

this document, including any exhibits

hereby submitted for recording does

not contain the personal information

of any person or persons (Per NRS 239B.030)

RECORDING REQUESTED BY:
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
Land Resources

NV Energy

P.O. Box 10100 MS S4B20
Reno, NV 89520

GRANT OF EASEMENT

STOREY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantor"), for One
Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and
conveys to Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation, d/b/a NV Energy
(“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right and easement:

1. to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove aboveground
and/or underground communication facilities and gas systems for the
distribution and transmission of gas underground, consisting of pipes,
valves, fittings, regulators, meters, vaults, and other equipment, fixtures,
apparatus, and improvements (“Underground Utility Facilities”) and
valves (aboveground or underground), service boxes/meter panels
(aboveground or underground), regulators (aboveground or underground),
bollards (aboveground), and other equipment, fixtures, apparatus, and
improvements (“Additional Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and
through the property described in Exhibit “A” hereto and by this reference
made a part of this Grant of Easement (‘Easement Area”);

Wa
Location: Waltham Way
RW# RW-0778-2021
Proj. # 3003505662
Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS



2. For ingress and egress to, from, over and across the Easement Area for
the allowed purposes defined in numbered paragraph 1 above and for all
other activities permitted by this agreement;

3. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees,
other vegetation and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the
Easement Area as Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe
and proper use and maintenance of the Utility Facilities or the Additional
Utility Facilities within the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by Grantee
negligently construction, operating, adding to, maintain, or removing the Utility Facilities
and/or the Additional Utility Facilities, to any tangible,, personally property or
improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement. However, this paragraph does not apply to and
Grantee is not responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights
under numbered paragraph 3 above so long as it exercises its rights in a prudent and
non-negligent manner.

Grantee shall bear the entire cost and expense of installing and maintaining said
Utility Facilities and Additional Utility Facilities in said Easement Area.

Grantee shall, at its expense, comply with all applicable laws, regulations, rules
and orders regardless of when they become or became effective, including, without
limitation, those relating to health, safety, noise, environmental protection, waste
disposal, and water and air quality.

Grantee shall coordinate initial construction and/or maintenance with any existing
lessees/occupants of the real property and shall use its best efforts not to unreasonably
interfere with use/access of such lessees/occupants in the course of its construction
and/or maintenance.

Grantee agrees that no assessments will be levied against the property of
Grantor to defray any part of the expense incurred in connection with any construction
in the Easement Area.

Grantee agrees to investigate, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless
Grantor, its officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns from all claims,
liability, cost and expense, howsoever same may be caused, including reasonable
attorney’s fees, for loss of or damage to property for injuries to or death of persons

Wa
Location: Waltham Way
RW# RW-0778-2021
Proj. # 3003505662
Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS

8]




arising out of the construction, reconstruction, maintenance, presence in, or use of the
Easement Area by Grantee, its employees, agents, licensees, invitees, successors or
assigns.

Grantee shall fully pay for all materials installed in the Easement Area and shall
pay in full all persons who perform labor thereupon. Grantee shall not permit any
mechanics’ or materialmen’s liens of any kind or nature to be enforced against the
property for any work done or materials furnished thereon at Grantee's request.

Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns, that no
building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such
structures and improvements to include, but not be limited to, drainage, trees, bridges,
signage, roads, fencing, storage facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities.
Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s consent by both signing Grantee's
standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains, for its benefit, the right to
maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes;
provided, however, that all such purposes and uses do not interfere with Grantee’s
rights herein, Grantee’s gas practices, and standards. Grantee may use this easement
to provide service to any of its customers.

(signatures on next page)

Location: Waltham Way

RW# RW-0778-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN _GAS



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused these presents duly to be executed the
day and year first above written.

GRANTOR: GRANTEE:

Accepted for the County of Storey, Sierra Pacific Power Company
by the Board of County Commissioners

Name: Name:Matt Gingerich
Title: Title: Manger, Land Resources
Date: Date: jo-1s -2\

(acknowledgements on next page)

Location: Waltham Way

RW# RW-0778-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

STATE OF _AEZu4Dd )
) ss.

COUNTY OF wWAsHes )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this /5~ 7% day of

OCc7oR ey , 2021, by Matt Gingerich as Manager, Land Resources of Sierra
Pacific Power Company d/b/a NV Energy.

-

Chris Robinson ( (o
NOTARY PUBLIC | A S—
STATE OF NEVADA | Notary Public
Appt. No. 13-10241-2 |
My Appt. Expires December 16, 2ﬂ24;

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )
This instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

, 2021, by as

of the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Notary Public

Location: Waltham Way

RW# RW-0778-2021

Proj. # 3003505662

Project Name: G-South Reno Lateral
GOE_DESIGN_GAS



W_NVEnergy

A

W.0. 3003505662
Storey County
Waltham Way

EXHIBIT "A"
EASEMENT

A portion of the northwest quarter of Section 5, Township 19 North, Range 22 East, and the
southwest quarter of Sections 32 and the southeast quarter of Section 31, Township 20 North,
Range 22 East M.D.M., Storey County, Nevada, situated within that parcel of land described in
Document 78479 recorded on August 29,1996 and Document 79808 recorded on April 2, 1997
in the Storey County Official Records more particularly described as;

An easement, 20 feet in width, lying 10 feet on each side of the following described centerline:

COMMENCING at the southernmost corner of Parcel 99-24A as shown on Record of Survey for
DP Management Services, Inc. as recorded on September 21, 2000 as file number 88191 in the
Official Records of Storey County;

THENCE along the southwest line of said Parcel 99-24A, North 26°52°01” West, 38.51 feet to
the POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE South 52°09°30" West, 45.17 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve to the right,
having a radius of 9.00 feet and an included angle of 100°53°47";

THENCE along said curve a distance of 15.85 feet;

THENCE North 26°56°43” West, 76.40 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve to the right
having a radius of 830.00 feet and an included angle of 19°23°17";

THENCE along said curve a distance of 280,86 feet to the beginning of a reverse curve, concave
to the south, having a radius of 9.50 feet and an included angle of 90°28°01”;

Page 1|2
P.0. BOX 98910, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89151-0001 4224 WEST SAHARA AVENUE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89146
P.0. BOX 10100, RENO, NEVADA B9520-0024 6100 NEIL ROAD, RENO, NEVADA 89511 nvenergy.com




%NVEnergy

THENCE along said curve, 15.00 feet;

THENCE South 81°02°33” West, 14.61 feet to the west line of Waltham way as described in
said Document 79808.

Above-described Easement contains 8,960 square feet of land, more or less.
The Basis of Bearings for this Exhibit is said Record of Survey 88191.
See Exhibit "A-1" attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Prepared by Doug Larson, P.L.S. #15685

Page 2|2
P.0. BOX 98910, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89151-0001 6226 WEST SAHARA AVENUE, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89146
P.0. BOX 10100, RENO, NEVADA 89520-0024 6100 NEIL ROAD, RENO, NEVADA 89511  nvenergy.com



A
e
Q
M

SB1'02'33"W e
DR
— mEG"BﬂE

[ ( ExHIBIT A-1 )

D=90'28'01"

~R=9.50"

L=15.00'

AT STOREY COUNTY
‘c,&;’a?’ 2 WALTHAM WAY
L 2 3% EASEMENT AREA:
._ A 8,960 SQ.FT. + :
2 \ A% %ﬁ
\ \\ V2, >,
\\ \‘ o ICON RENO PROP
; ‘- R=830.00'
L\ L=280.88° OWNER POOL 3 NV
ANGI NARESH \ R/S 88191
KUMAR & SUDESH \HAR'iA . #PAR. 99-24A
LoT 2007-118 | | N26°56'43"W o’ P
ROS 107557 P
I R
j £ )
j' J /G N o
/o S Fa
4 ”’
Fd
‘ P.0B. -
| d
o  N26'52'01"W .
D=100'53'47" = 38.51"
R=9.00"— ’
_ L=15.85" P.0.C. /’
$52'09°30" -
> /‘/ ! \
&
IS /
. ( j
b 6100 NEIL RD.
. W NVEnergy rawo, v sosit
= 7758344011
" . )
3 ( EXHIBIT MAP )
» EASEMENT
STOREY COUNTY
WALTHAM WAY
‘ TION R22E S5, T2ON R22E S31 & 32 MDM
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
1) Reno 2nd Source CAS\dwg)
%ﬁ%m | e/e0/z021 1 OF 1




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:November 16, 2021  Estimate of time required: 10 Min

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible approval of amendment to
the Development Agreement between Tahoe Reno Industrial Center LLC, (TRIC ) DP
Operating Partnership, LP and Storey County (Development Agreement) regarding the
spacing of marijuana establishments within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center as set forth in
that amendment to the Development Agreement approved on August 17, 2021 which
would reduce the required distance from an existing marijuana establishment tfrom 1 mile
to 500 feet.

2. Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to deny the proposed modification to the
development agreement to reduce the distance required between marijuana establishments
from one mile to 500 feet within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

If the motion is to approve then it should be conditioned upon TRIC consenting to the
amendment and authorize the chairman to sign the notice of amendment if approved.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: See attached.

h

. Supporting materials: Notice of Amendment
6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: _ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

~ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

R —
[E——



Agenda Item No.
STAFF SUMMARY:

The Development Agreement was amended on August 17, 2021, to provide that the distance
between marijuana establishments within TRIC must be at least one mile. A second applicant for
licensure as a marijuana establishment has requested that the distance be reduced from 1 mile to
500 feet. In order for this to occur, a new amendment to the Development Agreement must be
approved by the County and TRIC. Accordingly. this agenda item provides for consideration of
such an amendment.



AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

The Development Agreement entered into between Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center LLC,
DP Operating Partnership. P and Storey County dated February 1, 2000, (Development
Agreement), a memorandum of which was recorded in the official records of the Storey County
Recorder’s Office as Document No. 86804 on February 7, 2000. The Development Agreement
was amended as reflected in the Notice of Amendment to Development Agreement dated
November 9, 2021 and recorded in the Official Records of the Storey County Recorder’s Office
on November 11, 2021 as Document No. 135085. The current amendment to the Amended
Development Agreement is incorporated herein and attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

COUNTY OF STOREY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada

By:

Jay Carmona, Chairman of the Board of Storey County Commissioners

Attest;
Vanessa Stephens. Storey County Clerk

STATE OF NEVADA )
)Ss
COUNTY OF STOREY )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of 2021, by
Jay Carmona, Chairman of Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Notary Public



EXHIBIT 1

This Amendment to Development Agreement (Amendment) amends and modifies the
Development Agreement dated February 1, 2000 (Agreement) by and between the County of
Storey (County) a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, DP Operating Partnership, L.P.
(DPOP) and Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center LL.C (TRI) a Nevada limited Liability Company.

1.

(%)

General All definitions and meanings of terms used in the Agreement shall have the same
meanings when used in this Amendment. Except as amended hereby and by previous
amendments which have not been rescinded. all provisions of the Agreement remain in full
force and effect. Any conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement as previously
amended by amendments which have not been rescinded shall be governed by the provisions
of this Amendment. This Amendment may be signed in counterparts and any signed copy of
this Amendment shall have the same validity as the original.

Applicability. The provisions of this Amendment do not bind DPOP, the DPOP Property or
its successor Owners, and DPOP does not join in the execution hereof. The provisions of this
Amendment apply to all other property within the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRIC).

Amendment. That provision of Exhibit 1 to Document No. 135085 filed in the Official
Records of the Storey County Recorder’s Officeon November 9. 202, identified as section
17.37.030 Permitted uses: is amended to provide as follows (deletions are identified by
eross-outs and additions are italicized):




17.37.040 Uses subject to permit. The following uses are permitted in the I-2 heavy
industrial zone and include all uses allowed in the I-1 light industrial zone if they are
compatible with the surrounding I-2 heavy industry. I-1 light industrial uses shall be
governed by the provisions of Chapter 17.36, except that special use permit required
under Section 17.36.030 shall not be required.
A. Manufacturing and assembly operations which create a finished or partially
assembled product for sale or distribution except those listed below in Section
17.37.040 as requiring a special use permit.

B. Agricultural industries excluding animal processing plants;
. Bottling plants.
D. Breweries, distilleries, wineries;
E, Truck terminals;
F. Petroleum products storage;
. Public utility service yards, electric substations and gas transmission
stations;
H. Manufacturing of signs and billboards;
l. Public Utility or public service buildings, structures and uses;
J. The accessory buildings and structures necessary to such permitted uses

located on the same lot or parcel of land;

K. Ten percent of the total area in the heavy industrial zone as designated in
the Storey County master plan may be utilized for commercial use. A site plan
must be approved by the Storey County building and planning department. No
special use permits shall be required of commercial uses, but Chapter 17.62 shall
apply to commercial uses;

L. Ten percent of the total industrial building improvements may be used for
commercial sales to the general public;

M. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board of
county commissioners to be consistent and compatible with the other uses
permitted within the zone after considering a recommendation of such use by the

planning commission—0+&—359-§2part}1999)



N. Marijuana establishments. See Chapter 17.10 for definitions. Retail
establishments may follow the minimum parcel size and building setbacks may
follow the C Commercial zoning requirements. All establishments shall be located
within a structure and include odor control devises to mitigate odor impacts to
neighboring properties as necessary. Retail establishments shall not exceed one
retail facility within a-eremileradius 500 feet measured from doorway to
doorway.



' Iﬁecting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - ' Estimate of Time Requiréd: 15 min.

| Storey County Board of Eounty

Commissioners
‘ Agenda Action Report

' BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Update, discussion, and provide direction to county staff and lobbyists regarding
SCR 11 (formerly BDR 1109 and 1148) interim legislative committee to study
Innovation Zone draft legislation, and other properly related matters.

Recommended motion: [ [county commissioner] motion to direct county staff, lobbyists,
and professional services to continue appropriate research, analyses. and action on SCR
11 (Innovation Zone interim study) which will best protect and represent the county: to
continue opposing separatist government concepts; and to promote economic and land
development, including a PUD at Painted Rock, through existing legal framework and the
2016 Master Plan of Storey County, regardless of the status of the legislative interim
committee.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: A letter from Blockchains, LLC was submitted to Governor Sisolak on
or about September 30 stating that it will withdraw its interest and participation in the
innovation zones legislative interim committee. that it will no longer be pursuing
development at Painted Rock, and that it will pursue innovative technologies within
existing regulatory framework. Storey County and other interested groups are
communicating with state and regional leaders to determine the status of the committee
henceforth. The county has maintained consistent support for technology and certain
residential development, and opposition to separatist governance. Notwithstanding the
status of the legislative interim committee, county staff recommend that the county
continues to support innovative technology development, cryptocurrencies and similar
currencies when appropriately regulated by the state, and mixed-use residential
development at Painted Rock in accordance with the county master plan. Latest known
materials on this matter are posted on the county’s website at
https://www.storeycounty.org/63 1/Innovation-Zone-Updates .

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: none




Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:

Department Head

County Manager

Board Action:

Department Name:

Other Agency Review:

pproved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[
[

1A
1D

enied

[ ] Continued




April 6, 2021

STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ OFFICE

Storey Counry Cowrthouse

26 South 13 Street [ Jeav Carmona, Chair
P O. Box 176 Virzuna Ciry. Nevada 89410 [ Clay Mirchell, Viee-Cluair
Phone. 775 847.0968 - Fax: 775 847 0949 Lenee Gilinan, Commiissioner

COMDESSTolersiear sroreyconiin [21Y

Honorable Governor Steve Sisolak
State Capitol Building

101 N. Carson Street

Carson City, NV 89701

Re:  Storey County’s Position on Innovation Zone bill draft as of 04/06/21

Governor Sisolak:

The Board of Storey County Commissioners on March 2 and 16, and April 6, 2021, directed county staff and
lobbyists to take certain positions on BDR 1109-related draft legislation providing for the creation of Innovation
Zones. Storey County opposes the Innovation Zone bill as presented thus far; however, the board finds merit in
certain elements of the bill including expanding technology uses across the county and developing a mixed-use
residential community at Painted Rock. The following summarize the board’s directives and provides further
cxplanation on the county’s position on the matter.

1. Technology Support and work with legislature and applicable elected officials to explore Blockchain,
cryptocurrency, stable-coin, and other such technological advances and currency.

_rJ

Storey County is Nevada's forerunner in embracing and utilizing new technologies, and the board
finds that new digital platforms such as stable-coin and Blockchain to be the potential digital capital
of the future. We will seek guidance from the Nevada Department of Taxation; county recorders,
clerks, and treasurers; and other such agencics and associations to evaluate the viability of these
technologies and develop appropriate framework for their implementation.

Residential “Smart City” — Continue to support 2016 Storey County Master Plan as applicable to neo-

traditional and new-urbanistic design as proposed by Blockchains' “Smart-City".

The Storey County Master Plan supports large-scale residential development at Painted Rock. A
mixed-use community integrating commercial, residential, and live-work use patterns is preferred
over suburban sprawl. Graphic renditions by Blockchains, LLC and R&R Partners illustrating high-
rise buildings clad in stainless-steel and glass, situated within clustered high-density nodes, and
supported by multi-modal transit and “smart™ infrastructure are aligned with the goals and objectives
of the plan for this area.

Storey County to-date has received no development application from Blockchains or its affiliates for
the Painted Rock arca. We engaged with representatives of Blockchains about the draft bill and stated
that an application for a mixed-use development may be submitted for consideration in accordance
with Title 16 Subdivisions, Title 17 Zoning, the master plan, and other local and state statutes. The
representatives were reminded that a master plan amendment is not required, and they were also
reminded that a mixed-usc residential development application by another developer at Painted Rock
was approved by the board with action by the planning commission in 2006,

3. Separate Local Government — Oppose separatist governing control and carving up Storey County.

Carving out a separate government within Storey County is not necessary for the advancement of
technology, innovative industries, or residential “smart city” development. Storey County has for 20
years been Nevada's leader in attracting, permitting, and supporting technology, manufacturing, and
energy sectors, and transforming northern Nevada from dependence on gaming to the diversified
economic powerhouse it 1s today.

Tesla, Panasonic, Switch, Google, Fulcrum Bioenergy, and nearly 20 million square-feet of other
companies made Storey County their home because of fast and simple permitting, easy access to

Page |1 of 2



elected and appointed officials, and a dedicated team capable of finding innovative ways to overcome
economic, social, environmental, and geographic obstacles. The proponents of the Innovation Zone
envision a “sandbox” in which inventive minds are free to develop advanced technologies through
expression and experimentation. We respond that this vision dovetails seamlessly into our current
master plan, zoning allowances, development agreements, and proven business-friendly culture.

Storey County's mastcr plan, zoning designations, and ordinances facilitatc a wide range of land uses.
Diverse zoning encourages residential and community development, while also providing for
revenue-generating commercial and industrial uses that offset costs of providing services to the
county’s residents and businesses. The draft legislation stripping Storey County of roughly one-third
of its land, much of which is commercial and industrial designated, will result in persistent fiscal
instability potentially causing its inability to provide public safety protections, social services, and
other core functions to current and future residents and businesscs.

Storey County has been a proven leader in the state in economic development. Removing the county
from the proven calculus it formulated may cause adverse economiic, social, and environmental
impacts to the county and region, and, morcover, may cause the same for the proposals identified the
draft bill. We will continue exploring ways in which objectives f{or residential and tech development
in the draft legislation may be achieved within existing local and state regulatory framework.

4. Planning & Development — Reach out to Governor, Blockchains, and others for meaningful and authentic
good-faith discussion to coordinate planning and oversight within existing governing framework.

Conversations about the proposed legislation must consider state and local regulations, and binding
agreements in-placc in Storey County such as the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRI-Center)
development agreement, TRI-Center infrastructure payback agreement, the TRI General
Improvement District regulations and responsibilities, the inter-county effluent water line Tax
Increment Arca agreement, economic development and diversification districts for technology and
manufacturing sector abatements, court degrees, utility and other easements and rights-of-ways, and
government services agreements. These obstacles to Innovation Zone legislation have been shared
with Blockchains representatives, and there remains unanswered questions as to how the proposed
legislation will function properly within these frameworks.

5. Progress — Periodically update the Storey County Board of County Commissioners on the status of
Innovative Zone BDR and bill, to and seek amended direction as conditions change and are known.

We will periodically update the board on research findings into the Innovation Zone matters and seek
direction as conditions change and more is known about the drafl bill.

We respectfully request a meeting with you and your team to openly discuss the Innovation Zone bill. We look
[orward to being part of a conversation about the potential benelits in the draft bill, and ways to overcome
challenging aspects of the proposed legislation within existing fiscal, economic, environmental, and land usc
regulatory structures.

Respectiu Il};—ubmillcd)/- -

Austin Os
Storey County Manager

Enc:  Storey County Master Plan - https://www.storcycounty.org/292/Master-Plan

Cc.:  Storey County Commissioners
Storey County District Allorney
Storey County Lobbyists
Governor’s Office of Economic Development (GOED)
Nevada Association of Counties (NACQO)

Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County

| Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

E_Mecting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - | Estimate of Time Requiréd: 5 minutes
- BOCC Meeting ,
_ Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible approval of update to Storey County Administrative
Policies and Procedures, Policy 613 — Leave for Coronavirus (COVID-19) Related
Reasons.

Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, 1 (Commissioner)
motion to approve the amendments to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures 613 — Leave for Coronavirus (COVID-19) Related Reasons.

Prepared by: Tobi Whitten

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures is to establish authority to implement and manage the personnel program on a
consistent basis. These policies and procedures require that review and necessary updates
occur every five years or otherwise as needed. The intent of this policy update is to
extend paid leave options for employees that were previously provided under the
Families First Coronavirus Response Act. Because the COVID-19 pandemic is still
ongoing, it is important to encourage employees to stay home if they are not feeling well
and avoid widespread exposure within the workplace and communities.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: Unknown

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 613

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 07/01/2021
EXPIRATION DATE: 12/31/202021
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: AAAO

SUBJECT: Families-First-Coronavirus-Response-Act-{HR-6201}Leave for Coronavirus (COVID-19)

Related Reasons

1. PURPOSE:
This policy extends complies-with-the-Families-First-Coronavirus-Response-Aet-to-grant-eligible

employees protected leave for qualified reasons related to COVID-19.

This policy will remain in effect until :12:00-p-m-en-Becember31-2020.

s 12:00 p.m. on December 21, 2021, OR - {Form.ned: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + ]
«__The state or federal government declare the end of the COVID-19 publc health emergency, LAligned 3t 045" +indemtardr” =0 |
OR
+_The state or federal government take other action regarding employee paid leave for COVID-
19:

whichever occurs sooner.

2. Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL)
2.1. Policy

Full-time employees will receive up to a total of 80 hours of emergency paid sick leave (measured
backward) retroactive to June 30, 2021. Part-time employees will receive the number of hours
equal to the number of hours s/he works on average over two weeks. If a part-time, seasonal,
casual, or temporary employee works varying hours to such an extent that the employer is unable
to determine with certainty the number of hours the employee would have worked if leave had not
been taken, the employer will look at the average number of hours the employee was scheduled
over the past six months; or if the employee had not worked the past six months, the employer will
use the reasonable expectation of the number of hours the employee would normally be scheduled
to work.

2.2 Reasons for Leave

EPSL may be granted to employees who are unable to work or telework due to the following
reasons:



(1) The employee is subject to a federal, state, or local quarantine or isolation order related to
COVID- 19,

(2) The employee has been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine due to COVID-19
concerns.

(3) The employee is experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 or has been sent home form work
because of exposure to COVID-19 and is seeking medical diagnosis.

(4) The employee is caring for an individual who is subject to a federal, state, or local
quarantine or isolation order related to COVID-19 or has been advised by a health care provider
to self-quarantine due to concerns related to COVID-19.

—{MWWOMMMMMWMKWM

2.3 Employee Eligibility
With exceptions, all employees are eligible for EPSL, regardless of their status.

Health care providers and emergency responders may be excluded from the application of EPSL.
The County will provide EPSL for conditions 1-3 in 2.2 above. EPSL will not be provided for
conditions 4-&-in 2.2 above.

For the purposes of FFERAthIs policy, an emergency responder is an employee who is necessary
for the provision of transport, care, health care, comfort, and nutrition of such patients, or
whose services are otherwise needed to limit the spread of COVID-19 (within Storey County this
includes the Senior Center Director). This includes but is not limited to military or national
guard, law enforcement officers, correctional institution personnel, fire fighters, emergency
medical services personnel, physicians, nurses, public health personnel, emergency medical
technicians, paramedics, emergency management personnel (within Storey County this includes
the Emergency Management Director and Community Relations Coordinator), 911 operators,
public works personnel (within Storey County this includes water, sewer, roads, service,
buildings and grounds, and parks/pool), and persons with skills or training in operating
specialized equipment or other skills needed to provide aid in a declared emergency as well as
individuals who work for such facilities employing these individuals and whose work is necessary
to maintain the operation of the facility (within Storey County this includes the County Manager,
Comptroller, Administrative-Officer/HR Director, and Fire Marshal). This also includes any
individual that the highest official of a state or territory, including the District of Columbia,
determines is an emergency responder necessary for that state’s or territory’s or the District of
Columbia’s response to COVID-19.



2.4 Compensation During Leave

2.4.1 Employees will receive 100% of their regular rate of pay for reasons related to the
employee’s own quarantine, isolation, or symptoms of COVID-19 (reasons 1-3 in section 2.2
above) up to a maximum of $511 per day.

2.4.2 Employees will receive 2/3 of their regular rate of pay for reasons related to the
employee’s need to care for an individual who is in isolation or quarantined-erte-carefora

- ——mnerchidd due to-a seheol/ehddeare dosure, or tho amployeo s oxpornioncing any other
———substantialysimilar-condition (reasons 4-6-in section 2.2 above) up to a maximum of $200 per

day.

2.4.3 Employees may substitute comp time, annual leave or sick leave for the pay not covered
by the EPSL. Once accrued leave is depleted, the remainder of the leave period will consist
of unpaid leave for the pay not covered by EPSL.

2.5 Notice of Leave
An employee intending to take EPSL shall give notice as soon as practicable.
2.6 Certification

The County will comply with applicable law whenever it requests certification or documentation
supporting the employee’s eligibility for leave under this policy. Before returning to work,
employees should be symptom free and meet the criteria for discontinuing home isolation as
advised by the employee’s healthcare providers and state and local health departments.
Employees who take leave to care for an individual with COVID-19 should also follow CDC
recommended precautions before returning to work.

2.7 Carryover

EPSL under this policy does not carry over from year to year. Subject to the duration limitations
set forth in Section 2.1, an employee will no longer be eligible for any PSL beginning on the
employee’s next scheduled shift immediately following the termination of the need for EPSL.

3. — —Emergency FMLA (EFMLA}
- —3-}-Policy
——baved&mag—a—}%meﬂ%h-ﬁﬂmd—Fhes—ﬂﬂ%&med-bﬁkwmd#m thedatean










Storey County Board of County

| Commissioners
' Agenda Action Report

' Meeting date: 11/16/2021 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 0-5
- BOCC Meeting
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and possible approval Business License Second Readings:

A. Commerce Construction CO LLP — Contractor / 4050 W. Sunset Rd. ~ Las Vegas, NV
B. CraneTech, Inc. — Contractor / 42 E. Freeport Blvd. Unit B ~ Sparks, NV

C. LiNiCo Corporation — General / 2500 Peru Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

D. Lund Mechanical LLC - Contractor / 345 Ash Springs Ct. ~ Sparks, NV

=. Zen Stained Glass — Home Business / 198 S. H. St. ~ Virginia City, NV

F. Potluck Nevada. LLC — Food Truck / 545 Crampton St ~ Reno, NV

G. QCS, LLC - Contractor / 504 N. Phillippi St. ~ Boise. 1D

o

Recommended motion: Approval

Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Contact Number: 7758470966

Staff Summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless. for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the next Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed
to the new business license holder.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:



[ ] Approved

| ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office November 7, 2021
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Fr: Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the November 16, 2021 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

SECOND READINGS:

Commerce Construction CO LLP — Contractor / 4050 W. Sunset Rd. ~ Las Vegas, NV
CraneTech, Inc. — Contractor / 42 E. Freeport Blvd. Unit B ~ Sparks, NV

LiNiCo Corporation — General / 2500 Peru Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

Lund Mechanical LLC - Contractor / 345 Ash Springs Ct. ~ Sparks, NV

Zen Stained Glass — Home Business / 198 S. H. St. ~ Virginia City, NV

Potluck Nevada, LLC - Food Truck / 545 Crampton St ~ Reno, NV

QCS, LLC - Contractor / 504 N. Phillippi St. ~ Boise, [D

ommUnw

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



